Craig Urban Renewal Authority Meeting
AGENDA
Wednesday, October 13, 2021 @ 6PM
Craig City Hall Council Chambers + Zoom Option

Where: Craig City Hall — Council Chambers

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/|/83010790078?pwd=UzJzRGdLZG1BRDJhWVEXckZOMmMZXUT09

Meeting ID: 830 1079 0078
Password: 859090

Meeting Agenda:

I.  Callto Order
II.  Approval of the Minutes
A. June 9, 2021 CURA Board Meeting

lll.  Staff review and recommendation of approval for the request of TIF assistance from the
URA from the Yampa Valley Adventure Center.

IV.  Public Comment
V. Consideration of a motion to adjourn into executive session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-
402(4)(b) for purposes of obtaining legal advice regarding the request for approval by the

Yampa Valley Adventure Center.

VI.  Adjournment


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83010790078?pwd=UzJzRGdLZG1BRDJhWVFXckZQMmZXUT09

Craig Urban Renewal Authority Meeting
MINUTES
June 9, 2021

Commissioner Jarrod Ogden brought the meeting to order at 5:59pm the Craig Urban Renewal Authority
meeting on this 9™ day of June 2021. In addition to Commissioner Ogden, those present were
Commissioners Chris Nichols, Paul James, Andrea Camp, Bruce Cummings, Ryan Hess, Kirstie McPherson
and Allen Weber. Staff present were Economic Development Manager Shannon Scott, City Attorney
Heather Cannon, and Executive Assistant Melanie Kilpatrick. Joining via ZOOM was Consulting Attorney
Carolyne White. Frank Moe attended as public at large and a presenter. Commissioners Jobeth Tupa,
Tony Bohrer, and Steve Mazzuca were absent.

Commissioner James moved with a second by Commissioner Hess to approve the minutes from April 27,
2021 meeting. Ayes: 8. Nays: 0.

Commissioner McPherson moved with a second from Commissioner James to approve the agenda.
Ayes: 8. Nays: 0.

Briefing, overview, and meeting update present by Carolynne White. Carolynne presented on an update
on the various taxing entity negotiation statuses.

Economic Development Manager Shannon Scott presented agenda item 5A, review and approval of
CURA Incentives Policy, Application and Budget Worksheet. Shannon reviewed the documents with
notation of the incorporated requested edits. Commissioner Nichols moved with a second from
Commissioner Camp to approve the CURA Incentives Policy, Application and Budget Worksheet
contingent upon clarification with intention of FTE/PTE. Ayes: 7. Nays: 1.

A motion to approve item 5B, Resolution CURA No. 7 (2021) recommending that the Craig City Council
make certain legislative findings and approve the URA #1 & URA #2 Urban Renewal Plans was made by
Commissioner Camp with a second by Commissioner Nichols. Ayes: 7. Nays: 1.

A motion to approve item 5C, Resolution CURA No. 8 (2021) approving the Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) No. 1 and Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 2 between the Moffat County
School District and the Craig Urban Renewal Authority for sharing of incremental tax revenue was made
by Commissioner Nichols with a second by Commissioner Camp. Carolyn reviewed that the agreement
outlined within both IGA’s specifies 75% of TIF from MCSD with the potential for the additional 25% for
special projects. Ayes: 7. Nays: 1.



A motion to approve item 5D, Resolution CURA No. 9 (2021) approving the Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) No. 1 and Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 2 between the Moffat County and
the Craig Urban Renewal Authority for sharing of incremental tax revenue was made by Commissioner
Weber with a second by Commissioner Camp. Carolyn reviewed that the agreement outlined within
both IGA’s specifies 100% of TIF from Moffat County for the first 13 years and 75% of TIF for the
remaining 12 years. Ayes: 7. Nays: 1.

A motion to approve item 5E, Resolution CURA No. 10 (2021) approving the Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) No. 1 and Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 2 between the Craig Rural Fire
Protection District and the Craig Urban Renewal Authority for sharing of incremental tax revenue was
made by Commissioner Nichols with a second by Commissioner Cummings. Carolyn reviewed that the
agreement outlined within both IGA’s specifies 75% of TIF from the Fired District. Ayes: 7. Nays: 1.

A motion to approve item 5F, Resolution CURA No. 11 (2021) approving the Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) No. 1 and Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 2 between the Moffat County
Affiliated Junior College District and the Craig Urban Renewal Authority for sharing of incremental tax
revenue was made by Commissioner Cummings with a second by Commissioner Nichols. Carolyn
reviewed that the agreement outlined within both IGA’s specifies 75% of TIF from the College District.
Ayes: 7. Nays: 1.

Economic Development Manager Shannon Scott introduced presenter Frank Moe of the Yampa Valley
Adventure Center project. Frank showcased an overview of his planned project via a prepared
PowerPoint presentation. Shannon helped facilitate discussion and questions post presentation.

Being no further business, Commissioner James moved with a second from Commissioner Hess to
adjourn the meeting. Ayes: 8. Nays: 0. Meeting was adjourned at 7:45pm.



Memo

To: Craig Urban Renewal Authority

From: Shannon Scott, Economic Development Manager

Date: 10/6/2021

Re: Yampa Valley Adventure Center & Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

CURA Application

The purpose of the Craig Urban Renewal Authority is to reduce, eliminate, and prevent the spread of
blight within the designated CURA Areas through redevelopment by private enterprises. One of the
most effective ways to accomplish this is through the renovation of existing buildings and/or new
construction. The CURA is made possible through the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF), which is a
method of financing that utilizes incremental revenues from sales and property tax to incentivize
development. TIF is only used when a project cannot be completed without the assistance of public
investment and in conjunction with private investment.

The Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
approached City/CURA Staff several months ago with a redevelopment project proposal to be located
within the URA #1. This project will occupy and redevelop approximately 90,000 square feet of the
currently vacant mall space located at 1111 W. Victory Way.

The Yampa Valley Adventure Center will be a privately owned, for-profit venture that generates
revenues from leases to the retail shops and restaurants that will be located within the mall. The
Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame will be a not-for-profit enterprise that
provides interactive displays, rides, exhibits and simulators to be integrated throughout the adventure
center. The CGOE will be the draw for incremental traffic to the area and will be an attraction to
outdoor retailers and recreation companies that will desire to locate in the YVAC. The overall goal of
the YVAC and CGOE is to increase the number of tourists and outdoor enthusiasts who will spend
money in hotels, restaurants, gift shops, convenience stores and gas stations throughout the
community. The project will also house and support local businesses and create both direct and
indirect jobs. For more details regarding the Project, and its estimated financial impact in the
community, please see the Project Summary, attached.

23239431.2



Along with the financial analysis provided by YVAC and CGOE, the City/CURA staff evaluated the below
criteria in reference to the proposed project as listed in the CURA Policy:

Eliminates blighted conditions in the area via a substantial renovation of the single largest parcel(s) of
blight in the west-end commercial district.

Increases employment opportunities by creating 186 direct and 111 induced jobs after stabilization at
year 5.

Strengthens the focus area’s identity by increasing the health, vitality, and continued growth of the
commercial enterprises in the immediate area. This development will also house and support 23
businesses and local artists and outfitters.

Supports the goals of making the area a cultural, leisure and tourist destination by attracting over
360,000 visitors to the region.

Implements environmentally friendly features, such as green building materials, rainwater harvest,
or low energy heating a cooling. A feasibility study that was funded by OEDIT is currently underway
for a renewable energy system that will power the facility.

Enhances the current sales tax base and property tax base within Moffat County by stimulating the
increase of assessed valuation and sales tax collections. The project is anticipated to generate
$16,987,323 in total annual local economic impact post project stabilization (year 2026) and will create
$10,615,202 in direct annual retail/entertainment/restaurant project revenue. The project will also
generate an estimated $1,828,141 in incremental local property tax through 2040 and $13,700,999 in
estimated incremental local sales tax.

Has the potential to encourage future development within the designated areas. Existing businesses
within, adjacent to, and in the vicinity of this complex will benefit from this development and
contribute to the economic sustainability of this underutilized/underperforming area of the City.

Staff has thoroughly evaluated the analysis provided by YVAC and CGOE. The expert retained by the
developer, Better Cities, has forecasted sufficient revenue to more than offset the requested
incremental support. The expert retained by CURA to review the information provided by the applicant
has also reviewed this analysis and confirmed the analysis. Thus, the consensus of the financial experts
is that the project will generate sufficient revenue to offset the requested incremental support.
Therefore, based on conformance with the criteria set forth in the CURA Policy and the financial
analysis conducted by subject matter experts, the City/CURA Staff is recommending the approval of
funding for the project.

CURA’s legal consultant, Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck, LLC, has negotiated an agreement in
which CURA is agreeing to share revenue, but not risk. The Project will be required to achieve a
progression of milestones, set forth in an exhibit to the agreement, in order to be eligible to receive
increment. CURA’s obligation is only to remit the agreed upon portions of the increment received. In
the event that the Project does not succeed or does not generate sufficient revenue, CURA has no
obligation to make up the revenues.

23239431.2



Yampa Valley Adventure Center
Craig Urban Renewal Authority Board
Project Summary

General Project Overview

Yampa Valley Adventure Center (YVAC) - The Yampa Valley Adventure Center (YVAC) is envisioned as
Northwest Colorado’s one-stop location for outdoor adventure and active lifestyles. The YVAC will
provide equipment and support for a variety of outdoor recreational activities along with specialized
retail offerings, unique eating experiences and services (such as outfitting and tours) for outdoor
adventures throughout the region.

YVAC will be a privately-owned, for-profit venture that generates revenues from leases to the retail
shops and restaurants in the renovated former Centennial Mall. The YVAC will also operate several
enterprises within the facility including an outfitter that will provide sales, service and rentals of outdoor
recreation equipment, ATVs, snowmobiles, hunting / fishing gear and tours.

Project costs (Uses) include:

e  Purchase of former mall site property $2,500,000
e Renovations — hard costs $2,462,000
e Renovations — soft costs S 712,235
e Operating Losses $1,000,000
Total: $6,674,235
Owners: Yampa Valley Adventure Center LLC
Location: Centennial Mall Site
Total Sources: $6,674,235
Owner Equity Investment: $1,100,000
Debt: $3,000,000
Tax Increment Financing: $2,574,235

Colorado Great Outdoors Experience / Museum & Hall of Fame (CGOE) — The Colorado Great Outdoors
Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame will create an immersive experience to introduce visitors to the
individuals, organizations, and companies who have been the pioneers of the outdoor recreation
industry — especially in Colorado. Interactive displays, rides, exhibits and simulators will be integrated
throughout the YVAC common areas

Project costs are for the furniture, fixtures and equipment for creating the interactive displays, features,
rides, etc. for the CGOE. The estimated total cost of these exhibits is $4,500,000 and estimated
operating losses for the start-up phase are $600,000 for a total capital requirement of $5.1M.

Owners: Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum
& Hall of Fame INC a 501c3 Non-profit

Location: Common Areas of Centennial Mall Site

Total Project Cost: $5,100,000

Tax Increment Financing: $5,100,000



Market Case / Project Viability
TAM - The Total Addressable Market (TAM) was calculated as follows:
e 2.5M annual vehicles pass through Craig on Highways 13 and 40
e $40,638,870 — Total Outdoor Recreation Spending / $7,122,914 — Outdoor Recreations Spending
Projections at YVAC
(Local market capture indicates the percentage of total outdoor recreation spending that stays in
the 3-county area. YVAC capture represents the percentage of local market spending that is
projected to be captured by the YVAC.)
0 $4,983,789 — Craig (75% local market capture / 65% YVAC capture)
0 $2,416,702 — Surrounding Area (75% local market capture / 65% YVAC capture)
0 $19,362,792 — Routt, Steamboat, Rio Blanco (75% local market capture / 8% YVAC
capture)
O $4,468,253 — Colorado (.1% local market capture / 5% YVAC capture)
0 $9,407,333 — United States (.0005% local market capture / 5% YVAC capture)
e $2,281,566 — Estimated Food & Alcohol Spending at YVAC

0 $9,874,076 - Craig (10% YVAC capture)

0 $4,788,064 - Surrounding Area (9% YVAC capture)

0 $47,016,400 — Routt, Steamboat, Rio Blanco (2% YVAC capture)
0 $7,149,566,562 — Colorado (.001% YVAC capture)

0 $407,213,459,899 — United States (.00001% YVAC capture)

Community Impact

The YVAC/CGOE will play a critical role in helping Moffat County successfully transition from the coal
and power generation industries. The Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
(CGOE) is a critical component of the positioning of Moffat County as the center of ‘great outdoors’-
focused experiences in northwest Colorado. The CGOE will be the draw that brings incremental traffic
to the area and will be an important attraction for outdoor retailers and recreation companies that will
desire to locate in the Yampa Valley Adventure Center. This symbiotic relationship will benefit both the
CGOE and the YVAC.

The YVAC/CGOE will bring incremental visitation to the community from travelers who are currently
passing through the without stopping. Tourists who are not presently visiting will be motivated to plan
trips to the area because of the quality of the experience offered.

The halo effect of the YVAC will be accretive to all businesses in the area. Increased numbers of tourists
and outdoor enthusiasts will spend money in hotels, restaurants, gift shops, convenience stores and gas
stations throughout the community — not just in the YVAC. For example, the projections are for the
YVAC's restaurants to capture only 10% of the local food and alcohol spending in the local market —
providing ample economic opportunity for other businesses.

Following are the key economic impacts:
e $16,987,323 — Total Annual Local Economic Impact (post-project stabilization — 2026)

0 $10,615,202 — Direct Annual Retail / Entertainment / Restaurant Project Revenue
(Source: DGC — Tax Forecast and County Impact Report, May 3, 2021: Page 16 Table 10
— total incremental sales tax divided by sales tax rate)

0 $6,369,121 — Indirect Annual Economic Impact (.6 multiplier) (Source: Better City —
YVAC Business Feasibility and Implementation Roadmap, June 10, 2021 page 19—
applying the .6 multiplier to the DGC estimate of incremental activity)



e $1,828,141 - Estimated Incremental Local Property Tax through 2040 (Hard and Soft Costs of
YVAC * .29 valuation * .0081736 mill levy)
O S534,714 - Moffat County
$424,872 - City of Craig
$711,833 - Moffat County School District
$ 67,189 - Colorado Community College
$11,183 - CRW
O S 78,350 - Craig Fire District
e $13,700,999 - Estimated Incremental Local Sales Tax through 2040 (Source: YVAC Feasibility
Study )
0 54,566,999 — Moffat County
0 59,134,000 — City of Craig
e 297 Jobs Created (Source — YVAC Business Feasibility and Implementation Roadmap, June 10,
2021, Page 18)
0 186 direct jobs
0 111 induced / indirect jobs
e 100,000 - Incremental hotel room nights (through 2040) / $10,000,000 — Incremental hotel
revenue / $200,000 — Incremental Lodging Tax (Source — YVAC Business Feasibility and
Implementation Roadmap, June 10, 2021, Page 19)
0 3,160,020 - Total Visitors (through 2040 -See Source visitation estimates)
0 3.2% - Local hotel capture rate
YVAC is a Community Amenity that will improve the quality of life for the local residents.

©O O0OO0Oo

Tax Increment Financing Request

YVAC - $2.5M TIF Request

The Yampa Valley Center LLC is the developer of the YVAC and is a private, for-profit entity. As a rational
(though community-minded) entity, YVAC is willing to invest $1.1M of capital to the YVAC project,
provided it can receive a market return on this investment - which has disproportionate risks because of
its innovative and unprecedented nature.

Through the first four years, the YVAC is projected to generate cumulative negative cash flow of
$872,322. The project already has a LTV of 63% so there is little capacity to take on more debt for
working capital — and the interest on the debt would only exacerbate the operating cash flow deficits.
The owners are not able to inject further capital. The Tax Increment Financing of $1M for the YVAC is
critical to its viability. But for this source of capital from TIF, the required renovations would not be
possible.

CGOE - $5.1M TIF Request

The CGOE is a 501c3 non-profit that will provide 40+ outdoor experiential displays and exhibits in the
common areas of the YVAC. Visitors will be able to purchase RFID bracelets that give them access to all
of the exhibits - providing experiential learning about conservation, climate, recreation, nature, history,
and health and fitness. These interactive activities, exhibits, and simulators will allow visitors to walk
behind and touch a waterfall, step into a fishing boat and reel in a big fish, hit the trail on a mountain
bike or snowmobile, and much more. Exhibits will also recognize and show appreciation to those
individuals, organizations, and companies who have advanced the recreational enjoyment and
preservation of our great outdoors through outdoor enjoyment and participation, dedication,
competition, innovation, product development, policy and preservation.

Property Tax TIF



Based on the current interlocal agreements, the following are estimates of the TIF available by
jurisdiction to support this project:
Total Incremental Property Tax: $1,828,141
Incremental Property Tax Available for TIF - $1,276,742
e 5401,035 - Moffat County
e $424,872 - City of Craig
e $341,680 - Moffat County School District (estimate)
e 550,391 - Colorado Community College
e S 0,000-CRW
e 558,762 - Craig Fire District

Sales Tax TIF

The total incremental City of Craig sales tax (including intergovernmental transfers) to the CURA (in
excess of that already being contributed by businesses currently operating within the mall) will be
$8,789,401. Assuming 100% of the City’s incremental Sale Tax is available to the project, the total TIF
available to the project would be:

Incremental Sales Tax Available for TIF - $10,846,624
e 500,000,000 — Moffat County
e 510,846,624 — City of Craig

The YVAC/CGOE request of $7,674,235 in tax increment financing for the project represents an
investment of 63% of the projected $12,123,235 incremental TIF funds to be generated over the next 20
years.

Renewable Energy

The YVAC project has secured a technical assistance grant from the Colorado Office of Economic
Development and International Trade Opportunity Zone to study and develop an implementation plan
for energy efficiency and possible energy independence by the utilization of renewable energy
resources.

Depending on the results of the study and the feasibility of making the facility more energy efficient and
utilizing renewable resources, the YVAC may approach the Craig Urban Renewal Authority for additional
funds to supplement any grants, loans, or donations from Federal, State and environmental
organizations.



Financial Summary

YVAC 5 Year Summary
Construction Yearl Year2 Year3 Yeard Year5
Investment Required $1,100,000 i P F ] %
Total Project Annual Sales $9,339,928 $10,533,232 511,816,743 $13,188,308 $13,562,195
YVAC Revenue $2,605,937 $3,003,401  $3,371,036  $3,797,503  $4,035,894
YVAC Expenses $2,825,163 $3,073,539 $3,362,862  $3,512,120  $3,439,325
YVAC Net Income {$139,226) {$70,138) $8,175 $285,383 $596,560
YVAC Cash Flow $376,139) {$310,005)  {$231,693) $45,515 $352,271
Cumulative Cash Flow $376,139) {$686,144)  {$917,837) {$872,322)  {$520,051)
Cumulative Return on Investment 34.2% -62.4% 83.49% -79.3% 47.3%
Desired ROI 12% 12% 12% 12% 12%
Cumulative Desired ROI $ 132,000 $ 264,000 $ 3965000 $ 528000 $ 660,000
CumulativeGap $ {508,139) $ {950,144) $ {1,313,837) $ {1,400,322) % {1,180,051)

CGOE 5 Year summary

Yearl Year 2 Year3 \CE) Year5

CGOE Reverue S 365,000 S 743,250 5 1,569,500 5 2,728,375 &5 4,330,000
Visitors per Day 100 200 400 650 1,000
Revenue per Visitor $ 10.00 $ 1025 % 1075 % 11.50 $ 12.00
CGOE Expenses S 777420 § 944921 5 1,223.220 § 1,341,274 5 1,492,359
Labor $ 577,200 $ 721,420 $ 963,295 $ 1,034,528 S 1,124,482
Headcount 13 17 22 24 26
Average Salary $ 44,400 $ 43,722 § 43,786 $ 44,022 § 44,097
SG&A $ 75,000 $ 78,750 $ 82,688 § 85,822 & 91,163
CCFees $ 10,220 $ 20,951 $ 43,946 $ 76,395 $ 122,640
Utilities $ 90,000 $ 96,300 $ 103,041 $ 110,254 $ 117,972
Maintenance & Supplies $ 25,000 $ 27,500 $ 20,250 $ 33,275 $ 26,603
CGOE Net Income S {412,420} S {196,671} § 346,230 S 1,387,101 5 2.387,141
CGOE Cumulative Cash How $ {a12420} § {609,091} § {262,810} & 1,124,291 $ 4,011,432







Yampa Valley Adventure Center

& Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

Feasibility Study

Commissioned by Frank and Kerry Moe
Completed by Better City

June 2021

Cover photo: SSRC / Larry Pierce



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Contact INfOrMatioN ....c.ceeuvierieireeirrcriirr e e reereenrennrensnenes 6

EXECULIVE SUMMANY ...cceeeeeieininnnenenenreresesesesesesesasasse 7

Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept.......ccceeeueerreennerreennnenns 7
Market ANalySis ......eererenierrenniirrenreerreecerreneeereeeneerennnsssrennnes 7
Market for Outdoor Recreation.........ccccceeeeecieeececieee e, 7
Economic & Demographic Factors........cccceecieeeiccieee e, 7
Total Addressable Market (TAM).....ccoccvievieeccee e 7
Financial ANAlySis ......ccceeveeiiieniiienierinirtnereneenencerenereaserennesennees 7
[0 J[=Tot ol o - o TSROt 8
Marketing Plan.........cceieieeireniieeerenncieenerenssereneresserensesensessnnees 8
Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept................ 9
Project Background .......c.ccceveeiieeerenniiinecienncenenerennerennerennesennens 9
Feasibility StUAY ...c.oeeviiieeeece 9
Planned Offerings........cccceeeiiireeieiiiiniiiiinnienienniennenesensennssensens 10
INAOOr AQVENTUIES ..eeeiieiieeeciiee ettt e e e evae e e e 10
Retail, Rentals, & Food & Beverage Offerings .......ccccceecvveeennns 11
Outdoor Adventuring Service Providers .......ccccceeeeccvveeeeinneenn. 11

= Yol | [ 4V 2R 12
Experiential DeSIBN ....cccvveeiieiiiee ettt 13
Conceptual RENAErINGS .....uvvvveciiiieiciiee et 14
Floorplan - East .......ueeeiciiieecciee ettt e 16
Floorplan - WEST.......ccciciiieeeciiee ettt et e et 17
Potential Economic Impact.......cccceeuceirirenccereienceneeennceneennnceneens 18
Job Creation & Payroll.........cceeeeiiecciieeee e, 18
Regional SPeNdiNg......cccceivecciiiiieeee e 19
Market Analysis.....cccceeieeeeienieeenceinnccennerennceenncsnneees 20
US Outdoor Recreation Market.......cc.cceeeiieeiiiinccieniiiencieenenenn. 20
Colorado Outdoor Recreation Market.......cccccceerieeiiieniiennennnn. 24

Outdoor Recreation Participation & Economic Trends ........... 24

Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market........................ 27

Moffat County GIS Visitation Analysis ......cccccovveeeriiieeeiciieeens 29
Yampa Valley Regional Airport Usage Analysis.........c.ccceeeuneee. 32
Route National Forest Visitation........ccccoceeeevciveeiciieee e, 33
White River National Forest Visitation..........cccccvveeeeeeeecnnnneen. 35
Dinosaur National Monument Visitation..........ccccoveeeeeeeennnns 36
Economic & Demographic Factors.......cccccceiriunniciienniciinaninnenns 37
INCOME & ECONOMY ..eiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee et 37
POPUIRLION .ot 38
Catchment Area Benchmarks.........ccoveeiiiiieeniiiineeiinneneiinnenenn. 39
Visitation Requirements for YVAC......cccciveiitencrreencrenncrennerennens 40
Total Addressable Market ........ccccciirieiiiiiiniiiiieecninnieenennnenenn. 41

FINANCial ANAlYSiS....ccceuvrueeirerereerenereneerecrenennnseenees &4

Revenue Projections.....c.ccccciecieiiieiieenieeninninniinicensiensiensrancnnnes 44
Revenue from Large Outdoor Retailer.......ccccceoeeecivveeeeeeeinnnns 45
ONEOING LESSEOS ..ciiiiiiiiiiiitieee e eeeiirte et e e e s s saeaae e 46
OthEr LESSEES ....uuviiieeiiieee ettt ettt et e s vae e s bee e e sree e e 47
Rents from Related Parties .......ccocceeevveeriieiniieniec e, 48
Rents from Restaurants ......cccoceeevveeerieeniieennieeniee e 49
ANCIllary REVENUES .......vvveeeiieee ettt et 49
Revenue FINAINGS ......ueeeiiiiiiciiiieeec et e e 51

Expense Projections .......cccciieiiieeiiienniiiecieeninieciennenensssnecnenes 52
Benchmarks for Operating EXpenses .......ccccoccveeeeecveeeeecveeeens 52
Operating Expense Projections.......cccccccviviiiiiii, 53
FaCility COSES...uviiiiiitiiieieiiee ettt ettt et e e e earee e e 55
EXNIDIT COSES ...uviiiiiiiiii ittt et 56

Capital STACK ....ceeeeireeecceeeccrreccerrr e e 56
EqQUity & DEDt ... 56
Tax Increment FINANCING ......uueuiiiiiiiccrcc e 56
Grants & Tax Credits .....uivvieeeicieee e e 58

Net Operating Income & Cash Flow Projections....................... 64

Project Plan ......cceceeeeeeirerenenenrerecesesseresessssesenesssseses OD

Business Model .......cieieiieiiiiiiiiiii e re e nes 65



Credo, Vision, and Mission Statement..........cccccceeevvvvinnnnnnnnnn.. 65

Role Of the CeNLEN....cciiciieeeeee e e 65
KEY PartNerS . cueeeeeiieiiiiii s 66
VOIUNLEETS ..cevveriiiiiiiiirennnisisniiiieenssesssissiininenssssssssssssesesssnsssses 67
Tenants & Retailers .....c.cccceeiiiieniiiiiieiiiiiiiiniiesen, 67
INCENTIVES ..t e 67
(070] 0111 =Y Lol 1SRRI 68
Stewardship MatriX.......coiveeiiiiieiiiiiinniiiinneeen. 69
Marketing Plan .........cccceeeiiiiiiennniisiinennnsssiiennnnsene 70
Marketing Strategy ....ccccveerrenireeerennereneereencernncernserennerenserenns 70
Phase 1: Branding, PR, & Paid Media ......cccccceveurrenncrenncrennennen. 71
270 T oo [TV - PSRRI 71
PUDIiC REIatioNS......uviieeeei ettt e 72

L [Te Y F=To - U UUUUROE 73
Phase 2: Targeted Marketing & Influencers.......cccccceveueereaneneee. 73
Targeted Marketing ....c..eeevcveeeiiciiee e 73
INFIUBNCETS oottt e e e e e e e e e e ranens 74
Phase 3: User Generated Content Marketing.......ccccccceveunnnennen. 74
Examples of User-Generated Content ........cccveevevciveeeeccineeennnns 76
User-Generated Content Strategy ......cccocveeeeeiicccciiieeeeee e, 78
Phase 4: Refine Marketing Approach ........cccceucerreenccrneennceneees 78
Refing APProach.......ccocueeei i 78
Events & ACLIVITIES ..uuviieiiieeciiiee et 79
Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation .........cccccereeenncreennnnnees 79
Outdoor Fitness TrainiNg........ccccvvveeeeeeeeeiciiiieeee e eeecrrrreee e 79
Target Shooting and Archery Participation.........c.cccceecvveeeneen. 81
(@10 14 1T V- TRR 83
Recreational Goods Rental........ccceeeveciiiiieeeiei e 85
BOOKING SEIVICES ...uviiiiieei ittt e e e e 85

Appendix A — Description of Offerings .................. 86
INdOOr AdVeNntUres ......cccieeiieeiiieeiiiteiitcrreisrncereeerensesensenenns 86
B I o 1= =T U 86
Indoor Gun and Archery Range........cccccuvveeeeeeeicccciiieeeee e eeeenns 86

ESCAPE ROOMS .t 87
INAOOr ADVENTUIE Park......cceevveeriieiieenieeesieesieeeseeesvee e 87
Indoor Climbing CeNter.......occveeiieciiee e 88
Indoor Sports & ACtiVIties .....c.eeeeecvieeeeciiee e 88
Shoot The Guns That Won The West ........cccecevevvcieeevnciieeeennee, 89
EVeNt Center. . 89
Adventure SUPPLIES ..c..cciiieeiiiiiiniiiiiiiinirei e senenas 89
SPOIrts WarehOUSE......cuviiiieiiiee ettt e 89
Wilderness SPOItS ..ceiviieeiiiiieee e e 90
Adventure Power Sports & RV .......ccccccvevivvciee i 90
Retail Adventures.........ccvveeeeeeiiiiiiiiinencisiiinnnrnsnnnenennees 90
Plush Wildlife Refuge Store......ccccecveeiieciieeeecieee e 90
LOCAl ArtiSan StOre ...cciivcieeeiiiiee et cceee et erre e sare e 91
Yampa Valley Art Gallery & Studio......cccccevvcvieeeivcieneceieeeee, 91
Food & Beverage AdVeNntures ......cccccceveeeecereennncereennceneeaneenenas 92
Black Rock Steakhouse & Grill.........cccccvevceeiniiiniereiieecieeeen, 92
Timers Sawmill Grill & Axe Throwing Bar..........ccccceveeeeciieeenns 92
Basecamp Canteen, Dominos & Village Inn..........cccceeeeieenns 92
Log Cabin Express Coffee, Beverages & Bakery..........cccuueee...e. 93
Outdoor AdVentures ........cccceieiiiuininiiiuiininiiiininnsens 93
Backpacking TOUN .....ccoi it 93
Hiking & Peak AScents TriPS .....ceeeccveeeeecieeeeecieeeeecteeeeecireee e 93
Guided Mountain Biking TOUrS .......ccccivieeieiiiieeceee e 93
Fly Fishing and FIOat Trips ....ccoveeeeciieeeccieee et 93
Sightseeing and Photographic Tours.......ccccccceveeeciereccciee e e, 94
Cross Country Skiing & Snowshoe Tours........ccccccvveeeeciieeennnee. 94
Yampa, Green and Little Snake River Rafting Tours................. 94
Snowmobile, Jeep and OHV TOUrS ......cveveevciieeeeeieee e 94
Guided Hunts for Deer, Elk, Antelope & Bear..........cccuuveeenn.eee. 94
Wild Horses of Sand Wash Basin TOUrS.........ccocvvercieenneeenneenns 94
Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame95
Inner City Scholarship Program.........cccoccveeevcieeeeeciieeeccieeeeens 96
Giving Vending Machine for Outdoor Donations..................... 96
Outdoor Essentials Vending.......ccccceveeveeeiicieee e 96



Credo, Vision, & Mission Statement Donor & Sponsor Wall ... 96

Trailnead KiOSK......euviiiiieiiieeiiee e 97
Birds Of Colorado ....uueiiiiiiieiiiiiieeeec e 97
Forests of Colorado.......ciiuiiieieeiiiiicieeeeeee e 98
Plants and Flowers of Colorado ........cccceveueeenueneeneneniinnnnn. 98
Bodies of Water of Colorado........cccevuueueeeeeenreeeeininnnnns 98
Yampa, Little Snake, and Green RiVers .........cccocvveeeeeeeeccnvnnnnnn. 98
Colorado Parks & Wildlife-Colorado State Forest Service ....... 99
BLM, US Forest Service, and US Fish & Wildlife........cc............. 99
Wall of FAMe oo 99
Eagle “Birds EYe VIEW” .....cccocivieiiiiieeseciiee e cevteeeesvvee e sveee e 99
Snowmobiling EXhibit..........ccceeviieiiiiiiiciee e, 100
OHV-ing EXhibit ...t 100
Canoe, Kayak, Boat, & Personal Watercraft Exhibit .............. 100
Beaver Dam EXhibit........coooovuveeiiiiiiiiiieeeec e 100
Majestic EIk EXRIDIt ......ccevveeiiiiie e 100
Wildlife Coloring Wall ........oooeriiiieieeee e, 101
A oY 00 Fo ] =T Lo TR 101
Browns Park National Wildlife Refuge Exhibit....................... 101
Deer, Antelope, & Moose Exhibit .........ccccceecvieeiiciiieeccineenn. 102
Dinosaur National Monument ........ccccvvvveeeiiiiieciieeeeeeee e 102
Outdoor First Aid & Emergency Services Exhibit ................... 102
Solar Powered Conservation Carousel........cccccueeeeeeeveecnnvennnnn. 102
Picnic EXRIDIT .o 103
Made in Colorado EXhibit........cccceeeveiiiiiieeeeeeeeecirieeeee e 103
Smokey Bear EXhibit ........ccoceeiviiieiiiii e, 103
Leave No Trace Exhibit.......ccccveeeeieiiiiiiiiieiec e 104
Wild Horses—Sand Wash Basin Herd Exhibit ........................ 104
Colorado’s Great Outdoors in the Movies.........cccoeevveeeeeeennn. 104
Craig Chamber of Commerce, Moffat County Visitors Center, &
Moffat County Tourism Association .........ccceccveeeriiieeescnneenn. 104
Museum of Northwest Colorado & Wyaman'’s Living History

1Y LT =] U1 o P 104

Craig Parks, Recreation, & Yampa River Corridor Water Park104

The “Smores” Story Exhibit.......ccccoveeeeiiiiiieiieee e, 104
Fish & Fishing EXhibit ........ccoocoiiiiiiiiiieeee e, 104
Citizen Environmental Scientist Exhibit ........cccccovvveviiiiinienns 105
Cross Country Skiing & snow Shoeing Exhibit....................... 105
Wild Turkey EXNibit .....c.eeveiiiiiiiiecieee e 105
Trout EXNIDIt....ceeieiiie e 105
Rock Climbing EXhibit........ccoocoiiiiiiiiiiieiec e 106
Geocaching EXhibit.......cccocoeviiriiiiiiee e 106
Stargazing EXNibit........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiee e 106
Dog Sledding EXhibit..........ccoocouiiiiiiiiiieeciiee e 106
Interactive Virtual AQUarium........ccccveeveiieieniiiee e 107
Additional Offering Concepts......ccceerreeerenirenereencerencernenenenns 108
Glamping AdVENTUIES......cccuveeeieiiee ettt 108
Yampa Valley Adventure HOStel.......coccoveeeiiciieeiicieee e 108
BOUIAEN Park....ocveeeieieiieeciee sttt s 109
Natural Playground ...........ccoocuieieiiiiiieecieee et 110
Appendix B — Traffic & Licenses..........ccceerrennnnnnens 111
L i 111
OHV RegiStrations .......ccuvvieeeiiiiiiiiiiieetee e sinneees 111
ATrPOrt Arrivals ....eveee e 111
Annual Highway Traffic Counts.......cccccovveeeiciieeiccieee e 112
Hunting & Fishing LICENSES .......cceveeeiiiiienieiiieeccrrececcreeeaeens 112
Appendix C— Data Sources..........cceeeeiennniniennnnnans 115
Data SOUICES......cieeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiirtec et reeereneaes 115

Appendix D — Colorado Certified Community
Development Financial Institutions..................... 117

Appendix E- Selected Sections from the Meeker

Feasibility Study.....cccccceeiiiieniiiiinniiienniciicnnnienne. 119
EXeCUtiVe SUMMArY ....c.ccciveiiiieiiiiiiiiienciennireeereneeesensneesenennens 119
Competitive Advantage......ccccceeeeccviiiieee e 119

Total Addressable Market...........oouuueeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeceeeeeee, 119



Existing Industry Micro-CIUSters .......cccccovveeeecieeeeccieeeeecieeennn 120 Contact Information

Proposed C.enter. for Outdoor Adventure........cccccveeeeeciveeeennns 120 Yampa Valley Adventure Center and
Propo.sed Financial Str.ucture ................................................. 120 Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
Economic & Demographic Summary ........cccovveecirieencciriennnnnns 121 Frank Moe
Demographic Overview of Meeker......ccocvvvcieeiviiieeincineenn, 121 1111 W. Victory Way Suite 123
(o Yor= | Y, =1 (= PR 122 Craig, Colorado 81625
Economic Overview of Rio Blanco County .......ccccecvveeercnnnennn. 124
Real Estate in Rio Blanco County .......cccccveevvcvieeiniveeesscinennn. 125 Phone: 970-756-7109
ClIMATE o 126 Email: frank.moe.fm@gmail.com
Additional Services & Amenities ......cccceeeeenirirncerencerenerennenenn. 128 Websites: www.YVAC.biz | www.ColoradoQutdoorExperience.org
INErOAUCTION .. e 128 Promotional Video: https://voutu.be/ZIHxT 9Kouo
Wildlife-Watching and Site-Seeing Tours ........ccccceeeeveeeeennen. 128
Off Highway Vehicle Rental and Training ........ccccceevvveeeennnen. 131
Snowmobiling Rentals and TOUrs........ccceeveeeeicieeeecciiee e, 135
Backpacking Trips and Training........ccceecveveeeciiee e, 135
ClasSrOOM USE......ceecuiiiriereiieesieeesiteesieessieeesteessaeeesveesnvaeenes 136
Indoor Shooting Ranges in the United States...........ccccuuee.. 137
Archery Rangesinthe U.S.......ccooviiiiciiiei e 138
Local/Competing Shooting Facilities...........ccoeeeveeecrereeneennee. 139
INAUSEIY SUPPOIT c.oviieeeeeeeceeeee e e e e e e 140
Proposed Facility & Cost Analysis.......ccccceeeerreencereeenncereennnnns 142
Facility AMENIties .....cocccciiie e 142
LOCATION. ..t 143
Pricing StruCTUre......ueeee e 145
Additional Services Offered by the Facility .........ccccceeevveeenns 147
FaCility COSES...uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e aaee e 151

CONCIUSION e 154


mailto:frank.moe.fm@gmail.com
http://www.yvac.biz/
http://www.coloradooutdoorexperience.org/
https://youtu.be/ZlHxT_9Kouo

Executive Summary | Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept

Frank and Kerry Moe developed the concept to create the Yampa
Valley Adventure Center (YVAC and Center) and the Colorado
Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame in Moffat
County to create jobs and diversify the local economy. They hired
Better City to conduct a feasibility study for the YVAC. The Cen-
tennial Mall in Craig will be redeveloped to create the Center.

The Yampa Valley Outdoor Adventure Center (YVAC or Center) is
envisioned as a facility which will serve as a one-stop location for
everything related to outdoor adventure and support an active
lifestyle in Northwest Colorado. The concept is for the YVAC to
provide equipment and support for wide variety of outdoor rec-
reational activities along with specialized retail offerings, unique
eating experiences and services (such as outfitting and tours) for
outdoor adventures throughout the region.

Market Analysis

MARKET FOR OUTDOOR RECREATION

Nearly half of the U.S. Population participates in outdoor recrea-
tion. Although participation in hunting and fishing has not been
growing, and overall spending has been flat, these activities re-
main popular with traditional participants and micro-markets are
growing, such as outdoor fitness training, hunting events and con-
ferences, and target shooting.

Jogging, bicycling, and hiking are steadily increasing. Of particular
note is the growth in observing, feeding, or photographing wildlife

which contribute $80 billion to the U.S. Economy. Overall, the rec-
reational goods industry has average eight percent real growth
over the past decade.

The YVAC will see increasing opportunities in the future as Amer-
icans continue to shift their spending towards experiences, saving
money to go to new places to take part in new activities.

EconomiC & DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS

Among reasons to locate YVAC in Craig is to help build Moffat
County’s economy where residents earn 25 percent less per
household than in the rest of Colorado and where population
growth has been stagnant. Adding new business and recreational
activities to the county could be a factor in attracting new resi-
dents and income.

TOTAL ADDRESSABLE MARKET (TAM)

Projected top-line revenues for YVAC are $7.8 million, around 65
percent of the Total Addressable Market for YVAC, which is esti-
mated at $12.1 million.

Financial Analysis

The Center’s revenue sources would include Large Outdoor Re-
tailers, Ongoing Lessees, Other Lessees, Related Parties, and An-
cillary Items.

Based on assumptions in the current proforma model, the bottom-
up estimate of Total Revenues for the first year, $2.7 million, is



below the estimate of the Total Addressable Market (TAM), $12.1
million. Based on the GIS Visitation Analysis of the visitors to
Moffat County, 15 percent of travelers from inside Colorado and
15 percent of U.S. travelers from outside Colorado need to visit
YVAC to support projected top-line revenues.

Project Plan

The Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado Great Outdoors
Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame is a regionally based entity
dedicated to economic development of Northwest Colorado
through the creation of jobs and business startups in the outdoor
and indoor recreation industries for locals who are being nega-
tively affected from the closure of local coal mines and coal fired
power plants and other fossil fuel contractions.

Upcoming tasks that need to be completed include:
e Finalize TIF Approval

Update Firm Construction Costs.

Finalize Capital Stack & Funding Plan.

Apply for Grants.

Identify Key Partners.

Obtain Financing.

Create Phase 1 Marketing Collateral

Apply for Tax Credit Programs.

Purchase Building.

Executive Summary | Project Plan

Recruit Retailers, Participants, & Partners.
Redevelop Building.

Hire YVAC Employees.

Execute Phase 1 Marketing Plan.

YVAC Grand Opening.

Launch Phase 2 Marketing Plan

Marketing Plan

The primary goal of the proposed marketing methods is to spread
awareness of the proposed Center. Early exposure of the Center
will decrease the time spent during the “start-up” phase associ-
ated with the Center, as an increase in visitation would impact sta-
bility and profitability. These marketing methods will build antic-
ipation for the proposed Center and maintain momentum needed
to attract the types of sponsors and operators that will help make
the project successful.

The Center could hire a marketing manager or marketing firm to
create the advertisements and conduct ad placement services.
The marketing strategy is divided into four phases.

1. Branding, Public Relations, & Paid Media

2. Targeted Marketing & Influencers

3. User Generated Content

4. Refine Approach & Increase Interconnectivity



Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept |

YAMPA VALLEY ADVENTURE CENTER CONCEPT

Project Background

Frank and Kerry Moe are longtime residents of Craig, Colorado,
and owners of the Best Western Plus Deer Park Hotel & Suites.
Being highly invested in the community, they became concerned
for Moffat County as the largest taxpayers and employers in the
County (Tristate Generation and Transmission’s coal-fired Craig
Station, along with the Trapper and Colowyo Coal Mines) face clo-
sure within the next five years.

Mr. and Mrs. Moe were aware of a project
that had been planned but not imple-
mented for an Adventure Center in the
neighboring county of Rio Blanco. They
determined to revisit and improve upon
this concept to create the Yampa Valley
Adventure Center and Colorado Great
Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of
Fame in Moffat County to create jobs and
diversify the local economy.

The Yampa Valley Outdoor Adventure Center (YVAC or Center) is
envisioned as a facility which will serve as a one-stop location for
everything related to outdoor adventure and support an active
lifestyle in Northern Colorado. The conceptis for the YVAC to pro-
vide equipment and support for wide variety of outdoor recrea-
tional activities along with specialized retail offerings, unique eat-
ing experiences and services (such as outfitting and tours) for out-
door adventures throughout the region. The YVAC will also be
home to the Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall
of Fame - a 501c3 Non-Profit (pending IRS approval) with over 40

educational and interactive exhibits that celebrate outdoor recre-
ation and the environment of Northwest Colorado.

The Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado Great Outdoors
Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame will be designed to provide
an immersive experience into nature and be a basecamp for
exploring Northwest Colorado. YVAC will offer a flavor of the
wilderness of Northwest Colorado through nature and outdoor
education, history and the recreation, health and fitness, dining,
and shopping elements will focus on supporting a healthy life-
style and outdoor experience.

FEASIBILITY STUDY

In 2020, Mr. and Mrs. Moe hired Better City to conduct a feasibil-
ity study for the YVAC. Better City conducted the feasibility study
for the Meeker Outdoor Recreation Center, and this study for the
Yampa Valley Outdoor Adventure Center builds upon and im-
proves the Meeker concept. For this study, Better City reviewed
industry reports and databases to determine market viability and
created high-level financial projections for the Center.

This study provides a summary of the YVAC concept, an overview
of the market for Outdoor Recreation and analysis of economic
and demographic factors, existing visitation metrics and required
visitation, and the Total Addressable Market. A high-level Cost
Analysis provides information regarding revenue and expense
projections, development costs, and initial Capital Stack. The Pro-
ject Plan provides an overview of the Business Model, Funding
Sources, and Development Plan. The Marketing Strategy and Im-
plementation Roadmap delineate next steps for implementation.



Planned Offerings

The proposed VYAC will leverage the region’s existing micro-in-
dustry clusters to capture a significant portion of the total ad-
dressable market. In order to differentiate and attract sufficient
interest from potential visitors and establish itself as a destination
attraction, the Center will need to provide a unique blend of activ-
ities and technologies including the most popular traditional
shooting sports amenities, the latest simulation technology, ex-
pert instruction, and retail and rental equipment for all outdoor
adventures.

The YVAC concept is inspired by and modeled on a variety of out-
door themed experiential retail and entertainment centers, in-
cluding the Detroit Outdoor Adventure Center, Scheels, Cabela’s,
Bass Pro Shop, REI, Sportsman Warehouse, Power Sports Store,
RV Center, an outdoor-themed Dave & Busters, I Play America,
and Outdoor Adventure Theme Park. Rather than depending on
one business type (such as retail) to keep their business viable,
each of these combines one or more goods, services, and/or expe-
riences to attract clients. YVAC will offer a wide variety of experi-
ences, goods, and services related to outdoor recreation.

CO GREAT OUTDOORS EXPERIENCE/MUSEUM & HALL OF FAME

The purpose of the Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum
& Hall of Fame is to recognize and show appreciation to those in-
dividuals, organizations, and companies who have advanced the
recreational enjoyment and preservation of our great outdoors
through outdoor enjoyment and participation, dedication, compe-
tition, innovation, product development, policy, and preservation.

These exhibits would be places throughout the common areas of
the facility, and in addition to paying homage to contributors to
outdoor recreation—these exhibits will allow visitors to experi-
ence hands-on activities, exhibits, and simulators—walk behind
and touch a waterfall, step into a fishing boat and reel in a big fish,

Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Planned Offerings

see what’s swimming in our aquarium, hit the trail on a mountain
bike or snowmobile, and more. Educational kiosks teach about
the US and State parks, monuments, lakes, streams, reservoirs for-
ests, wildlife, and fish.

Visitors can buy RFID wristbands that allow them to activate the
40+ interactive exhibits, ride the Conservation Carousel, use ar-
cade and simulators, and enter the 4D Theater.

INDOOR ADVENTURES
It is anticipated that the Center will provide the following experi-
ences:

e 4-D Theater, an immersive theater that would feature ex-
citing and informative educational presentations show-
casing nature and wildlife of Northwest Colorado—utiliz-
ing participants’ senses of sight, smell, touch, and sound.

¢ Indoor Gun & Archery Range, with over 7,000 square
feet of range and retail offerings, including a gun smith and
bowyer. There would also be virtual reality courses and
accommodations for private parties.

e Escape Rooms, providing a western-themed adventure
game, where a group of participants would find clues and
solve puzzles to escape the room before time runs out.

e Indoor Adventure Park, with a TAG Interactive Arena—
a technologically advanced gamification of obstacles and
events would provide contests of strategy, speed, aware-
ness, bravery, and fitness and enables participants of all
skill levels to enjoy the challenges throughout the arena.

e Climbing Center, this a unique indoor climbing facility
would feature a 40-foot climbing mountain and interac-
tive climbing experiences. Additionally, there will be pro-
gramming for climbers, yoga, and kids.

e Indoor Sports & Activities, a wide variety of family
friendly activities would be available, including Mini
Bowling, Top Golf Swing Suites, Interactive Curling, Axe

10



Throwing, Billiards, Foss Ball, Air Hockey, Giant Jenga, and
Chess or Checkers.

Shoot the Guns that Won the West, a unique experience
for any ‘wild west’ enthusiast—this will be an opportunity
to shoot a collection of reproduction historical firearms.
Event Space, multiple spaces would be available for any
type of event—for gatherings from 10 to 1,000 attendees.

RETAIL, RENTALS, & FOOD & BEVERAGE OFFERINGS
A wide variety of retail, rentals, and dining options will be availa-
ble within the Center.

Sports Warehouse, for anyone needing outdoor cooking
gear, clothing, footwear, or other activity accessories for
hunting, shooting, camping, and boating.

Wilderness Sports, providing sales, services, or rentals
for activities including Camping and Hiking, Climbing, Cy-
cling, Paddling, Running, Fitness, Snow, and Travel.
Adventure Power Sports & RV, provider for sales, ser-
vice and rentals for the enjoyment and exploration of over
3.5 million acres of surrounding scenery and spectacular
outdoor adventure. The inventory includes 4-wheelers,
ATV’s, OTV’s, Motorcycles, personal Watercraft, Boats,
Motor Homes, RV’s, and spectacularly furnished Sprinter
4-Wheel Drive Adventure Camper Vans.

Plush North American Animals, a wide range of plush
animals from the mountains and plains. 10 percent of the
Plush Wildlife Refuge Store’s sales are donated to the Cen-
ter’s Northwest Colorado Conservation Partners.

Local Artisan Store, a large inventory of unique and
beautifully hand-crafted treasurers, all produced by Colo-
radoan artisans with products including arts, crafts, gifts,
food, and beverages.

Yampa Valley Art Gallery & Studio, where anyone can
stop in and see locally acclaimed and nationally

Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Planned Offerings

recognized photographers, painters, carvers, and sculp-
tors create artwork right before your eyes.

Black Rock Steakhouse & Grill, an experience in great
dining and cooking—each diner cooks their food to their
preference on the heated volcanic rock at their table.
Timers Sawmill Grill & Axe Throwing Bar, guests throw
axes and enjoy their drinks and casual food such as pizza,
burgers, hotdogs and sausages, sandwiches, soups, and
salads in a log cabin sawmill themed atmosphere.
Basecamp Canteen, providing iconic camping foods,
served from a campervan converted into a food truck.
Log Cabin Express, provides premier drive thru coffee,
beverages, and baked goods—proudly brewing Caribou
Coffee.

OUTDOOR ADVENTURING SERVICE PROVIDERS

To become the true adventure basecamp, the Center will contract
with outfitters to provide outdoor adventure packages and expe-
riences for a variety of experiences across the region that visitors
to the Center can plan and purchase while at YVAC.

Backpacking Tour, multi-day hiking trips.

Hiking & Peak Ascents Trips, guided trips to stunning
views.

Fly Fishing & Float Trips, custom designed to match the
interest and experience level of participants.

Sightseeing & Photographic Tours, tour guides delve
into the cultural, and natural history of the state and share
amazing stories of Colorado’s past and present. The tours
take place across Northwest Colorado.

Wildlife Tours, guided viewing or hunting of elk, deer, an-
telope, and bear.

Cross Country Skiing & Snowshoe Tours, experience
stellar backcountry terrain and uncrowded slopes.

11



Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Facility

e Green, Little Snake, & Yampa River Rafting Tours,
whitewater rafting trips ranging from beginner family
friendly to wild trills for the experienced adventurer.

e Snowmobile, Jeep, & OHV Tours, to experience the 3.5
million acres of public land accessible on motorized vehi-
cles.

e Wild Horses of Sand Wash Basin Tours, The Sand Wash
Basin, located northwest of Maybell, CO, is a scenic ex-
panse of high desert country that is a destination for OHV
enthusiasts. The area is home to the world-renowned
wild horse herd that can be viewed most of the year.

e Glamping & Hostel, providing lodging options for people
visiting the area.

See Appendix A - Detailed Description of Offerings or visit
www.yvac.biz for additional details on these planned offerings.

Facility

Redeveloping an existing building decreases the upfront capital
needs for the project and accelerates the delivery timeline. The
site selected for the YVAC is the Centennial Mall in Craig. This fa-
cility is in a high traffic location and has great visibility, accessibil-
ity, and parking.

Some current tenants will remain in the building, which will pro-
vide immediate lease revenue even as the other areas are devel-
oped. Most of the spaces will be refinished to create the cohesive
experiential design to tie together the overall concept.

The Centennial Mall building is located along the main retail cor-
ridor of Craig, with 15,000 vehicles per day passing the facility.

12


http://www.yvac.biz/

Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Facility
EXPERIENTIAL DESIGN

Dimensional Innovations is the firm that will help design and de-
velop the Center. They bring a single interdisciplinary team of in-
dustrial designers, brand strategists, graphic designers, archi-
tects, interior designers, content creators, engineers, fabricators,
general contractors, and project managers which will enable
YVAC to move from concept to completion with one team. Dimen-
sional Innovations motto is: “The world is full of mediocre experi-
ences. We Help Our Clients Create Remarkable Ones.”

“We have a borderless mindset that demands we cre-
ate experiences our partners and their audiences ha-
ven'’t even imagined yet.”

-Dimensional Innovations

13



Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Facility
CONCEPTUAL RENDERINGS

Below are some of the exterior and interior conceptual design ren-
derings created by Dimensional Innovations for the Yampa Valley
Adventure Center.

The design will be cohesive between the exterior and interior of
the building, with colors and elements that bring the outdoors in-

doors.

14



Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Facility

The Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
501c3 will occupy the public space in the mall to provide the 40+
outdoor experiential displays and exhibits. As noted on the maps
in the following section, these displays are throughout the entire
building’s common areas, providing interesting and entertaining
ways to learn about and engage with the outdoors.

Remainder of page left intentionally blank.

15



FLOORPLAN - EAST

1.Vending machine for donations to
outdoor and wildlife projects in North-
west Colorado.

2. Vending machine for outdoor neces-
sities.

3.Yampa Valley Adventure Center
credo, vision statement & goals.

4. Birds of Colorado.

5. Forests of Colorado, wildfire fighting,
and Smokey the Bear.

6. Plants and flowers of Colorado.

7. Rivers, lakes, streams, and reser-
Voirs.

State parks & Wildlife.

8. Yampa River, Green River and Little
Snake River.

9. State Parks & Wildlife.
10. BLM & US Forest Service.

11. Wall of Fame: Hunting Shooting,
Fishing, Climbing, Cycling & Paddling.

12. Wall of Fame: Hiking, ATV, Snow-
mobile & Motorcycling.

13. Eagle view like University of lowa
Children’s Hospital Camp Cinemark.

14. Snowmobile Exhibit.
15. ATV Exhibit.

Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Facility

Tag Interactive Course

Sky Ropes & Sky Tykes

|
|
|
|
Trampoline Park !
|
|

iack Bk Snowmobile,
: Timbers ack Rocl ATV, Kyak,
Birthday Party Saw Mill Grill Steak House Veterans Motorbike,
MeBetlng Room & Axe Throwing & Grill Telehealth Eagle Soar
anquets Bar Arcade,
Class Rooms Simulators
Ticket
Sales 12
. 13
15 © "
20'Wide
6) 14 Carosel
Base Camp _ " 10
Western Plush Ganicen
Outdoor | Animal 8
Art Gallery | Wildlife ) ‘
L | e o oA R
Pool Shuffle Board
—> S S Air Hockey, Foosball
3 6
Adventure Power Sports Fastenel
UTA, ATV, Snowmobile, Motorcycle, Campers
Sales, Service & Rental 5

I B

‘w1 2,
d

Dollar Store

\_/ﬁ_‘_/

Log Cabin
Express

Double Drive Thru
Coffee

16




Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Facility

FLOORPLAN - WEST

16. Canoe, Kayak, Boat, & Personal
Watercraft Exhibit.
__l__ Yampa Valley

17. Beaver Lodge Exhibit.
18. Majestic Elk Exhibit. interactive Gimbing via

19. Camp Cinemark Theaters Wild-
life Coloring Wall.

| |
20. 14’ers of Colorado Exhibit. Sports ; AREIRE

4-D Theater
= | &
R5a Escape Rooms

1A

——’ Climbing

i ‘
22. Deer, EIk, Antelope, Bears, Etc. i Mountain

Warehouse

21. Browns Park Wildlife Refuge Ex- | Huring

Fishing REER
hibit. camong [ || ||

SN . S—

18 17

i Waterfall &
and all small animals. Taxidermy 6

Display
23. Daniels Woodland Shooting Gal- “
lery.

19

23

3D
180" Virtual
Range Simulator

Locals

24. Citizens Scientists Exhibit. r - 26 31 Ronk|

SunRange Archery Range Wilderness Sports
Sales, Services, Rentals

25. Northwest Colorado Museum

Cowboy and Gunfighters Collection 27 30
Exhibit. Yampa Valley

Shooters Guild
26. Shoot the Guns That Won the
West Exhibit.

Auto, RV,

Guns & Archery : 28 29
Sales & Service \-

28. Vending machine to donate to tompa Vlly Adventure Centr

i I
donate to Outdoor and Wildlife Pro- e
jects in Northwest Colorado.

27.Dinosaur National Monument.

29. Vending machine for outdoor necessities.

30. Wild Horses of Sand Wash Basin Exhibit. A. B. Interactive Dig-
ital Signage Wayfinder for campsites, hunting, fishing, hiking,
mountain biking, ATV/OHV, snowmobiling, etc.

17



Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Potential Economic Impact

According to the projections, it is anticipated to take 5 years to
build to capacity and reach the point where the Center is stabi-
lized. The following anticipated economic impacts are based on
the year 5 projections.

Potential Economic Impact

According to the 2017 Economic Contributions of Outdoor Recre-
ation in Colorado, the “popularity of outdoor recreation by both
Colorado residents and nonresidents leads to significant con-
sumer spending in the Colorado economy.”

JoB CREATION & PAYROLL
“Over the past several years, industry and government re- At stabilization, the Center will create 186 direct jobs, and gener-

ports have estimated that the outdoor recreation economy ate $6,963,840 in payroll.
is growing faster than the national economy; the Bureau of
Economic Analysis estimated that the outdoor recreation YVAC 501c3 Total
sector grew 3.9% in 2017, compared to 2.4% growth for Total Jobs 163 23 186
the overall economy. Also during 2017, outdoor recreation- Payroll ($18/hour) | $6,102,720 | $861,120 | $6,963,840
ists in Colorado spent over $36.8 billion on trips and equip-
ment (direct expenditures). When combined, hunting, fish- The 2017 Economic Contributions of Outdoor Recreation in Colo-
ing, and wildlife watching produce over $5 billion of eco- rado states that for each outdoor recreation job, 0.6 jobs are added
nomic activity in the state, while state park visitation con- to the local economy. Therefore, the Center will also create 111
tributes $1.2 billion.49 These results highlight the signifi- induced jobs, for a total job creation impact of 274.
cant role that outdoor recreation plays in the lives of Col-
oradans.” Anticipated jobs include:

2019 Colorado SCORP Yampa Valley Adventure Center Total 7

1. Maintenance and Landscaping 3
2. Accounting 1
3. Leasing, Sal d Marketi 2
The Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado Great Outdoors 4 Me:r?;nir ales and Markelng 1
Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame are dedicated to the creation ' &
of jobs anfi l_)usmesses in the recre.atlon 1ndu§tr1es. The reglongl Businesses Total 144
economy is impacted by closures in the coal industries, and this 1. Sports Warehouse 15
project will help Northwest Colorado build on opportunities pro- 2' Climbing Center 4
vided by the region’s phenomenal outdoor recreation assets. 3. Banquets and Meetings 12
4. Timbers S ill Grill and Axe Throwing Bar 12
The Center will house and support 23 businesses in the outdoor [DETS SAWMLA WriF an ¢ throwing Bar
. . ; . . 5. Black Rock Steak House 12
and indoor recreation industries. (This includes all leasable units 6. Tac Arena 6
as existing leases expire.) The Center will also facilitate business 7' Tofpg) Golf, Mini Bowling, Curling Pool, and Games 5

for many local artists and outfitters.

18



Yampa Valley Adventure Center Concept | Potential Economic Impact

8. Basecamp Canteen 5 8. Tour Guides and outfitters for the scholarship program for
9. Plush Animal and Gift Store 5 inner city youth to experience the Great Outdoors of Colo-
10. Art Gallery and Studio 3 rado on overnight camping trips.
11. Locals Retail 3
12. Adventure Power Sports and RV 10 REGIONAL SPENDING
13. Wilderness Spo_rts . 9 , The anticipated revenue generated by the Retail and Ticket Sales
14. Tour Center with Compliance and Government Affairs, .
Guides. Outfitt d Conci 15 atYVACis $12,000,000, and at the Colorado Great Outdoors Expe-
uides, DULILIErs, and Lonclerges rience/Museum & Hall of Fame 501c3 is $4,320,000, for a total of
15. Gun Range 10 $16.320.000
16. Arcade and Simulators 5 S
17. Log Cabin Express Double Drive-thru Coffee 5 There is an ancillary effect of $0.60 added for each dollar spent
18. 4-D Theater 4 . . . )
directly on outdoor recreation, so the $16.32 million topline rev-
19. Escape Rooms 4 e e o .
N . enue at YVAC at year 5 means $9.8 million indirect or induced rev-
20. Additional business spaces 12

enues in the area.

Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/ Museum & Hall of Additionally, the visitors to the Center will generate approxi-

Fame . Total 23 mately 100,000 hotel night stays by visitors to the Center, so with
1. Director/General Manager 1 . : ;
o an average daily rate of $100, the Center will contribute to
2. Janitorial 3 .
. $10,000,000 in hotel revenue.
3. Accounting 2
45L E;Crlfse;rszlg(sm Carousel g The total potential annual economic impact after stabilization, es-
) V u timated at year 5, is $43,075,840. (Or $36.4 million if payroll is
6. Fundraisers 5 excluded.)
7. Sales and Marketing 2 '

19



Market Analysis | US Outdoor Recreation Market

MARKET ANALYSIS

To estimate a reasonable participation rate for the Yampa Valley
Adventure Center & Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Mu-
seum & Hall of Fame, it is necessary to understand the existing de-
mand drivers for outdoor recreation in the U.S. and Colorado. Itis
also important to determine how many visitors participate in out-
door activities in Northwest Colorado. This analysis will aid in de-
termining the feasibility of the Center and what markets should
be targeted to reach the greatest amount of participation.

US Outdoor Recreation Market

According to the Outdoor Foundation, in 2018, nearly half of the
U.S. population participated in outdoor recreation at least once.
Unfortunately, this also meant that a little less than half of the U.S.
population did not participate in outdoor recreation at all, and
very few got outdoors often enough to enjoy the full benefits of
health and well-being outdoor activities can provide.

Although a slowly increasing number of Americans participate in
outdoor recreation, Americans went on one billion fewer outdoor
outings in 2018 than they did just ten years earlier. Two-thirds
report they recreate within 10 miles of their home. Only 18 per-
cent of the total population recreated outside at least once a week.

The frequency of outdoor activity among youth was equally wor-
risome. Kids went on 15 percent fewer annual outings in 2018
than in 2012. The decline in youth activity was particularly con-
cerning as youth participation is a strong indicator of future activ-

ity.

The Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
was designed to address this untapped market to get the youth
and kids motivated, engaged, educated, and our exploring the
great outdoors for the physical and mental health benefits.

SOURCE: 2019 Outdoor Participation Report, Outdoor Foundation, pg 5

Athough the participation in traditional outdoor activities has not
been growing, participation in activities such as jogging, bicycling,
and hiking, have steadily increased over the past 10 years.

Traditional outdoor activities such as hunting and fishing con-
tinue to be popular while other activities such as jogging, hiking,
and riding bikes are growing as reasons people have for visiting
the country’s national parks and other public lands.

20



Market Analysis | US Outdoor Recreation Market

SOURCE: 2019 Outdoor Participation Report, Outdoor Foundation, pgs 27-28
According to the 2016 National Survey of Fishing, Hunting, and
Wildlife-Associated Recreation, over 90 million U.S. residents 16
years of age and older participated in wildlife-related recreation.
During that year, 12 million hunted, 32 million participated in tar-
get shooting, 37 million people fished, and 86 million participated

in at least one type of wildlife-watching activity including observ-
ing, feeding, or photographing wildlife in the United States.

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank.

SOURCE: USFS National Visitor Use Monitoring Survey 2014-2018, p.19

21



Market Analysis | US Outdoor Recreation Market

Source: 2016 Natl. survey, fishing, hunting, wildlife watching p.6

The five-year comparison of estimates from 2011 to 2016 shows
a 16 percent increase in the total number of people, sixteen years
of age and older, participating in wildlife recreation activities in

SOURCE: Public Lands Statistics 2019 (BLM), p.174 the United States. The increase was primarily among those who
wildlife-watched, which grew by 20 percent. The number of an-

glers increased by eight percent, while the number of hunters de-
clined by 16 percent.

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank.

SOURCE: Public Lands Statistics 2019 (BLM), p.174

22



Market Analysis | US Outdoor Recreation Market

HUNTING, FISHING & WILDLIFE WATCHING IN US
Freshwater Anglers

e Made 11 trips per year

e Fished 13 days per year

e Spent $36 per day

e 21 percent fished out-of-state

SOURCE: 2016 Natl. survey of fishing, hunting, wildlife watching p.35

Hunters Wildlife Watchers
e Made 12 trips per year e Made 11 trips per year away from home
e Hunted 16 days per year e Each trip averaged 1.5 days
e Spent $142 per day e Spent $1,118 each on equipment and other items
e 16 percent hunted in another state (1.8M) . _ _ . .
e 90 percent were male 24 million Americans took trips away from their homes to enjoy

watching, feeding, and photographing wildlife.

23



Market Analysis | Colorado Outdoor Recreation Market

WILDLIFE-RELATED EXPENDITURES IN US

Total spending on these activities in 2016 was $157 billion. Over-
all spending was flat from 2011-2016. However, wildlife-watch-
ing expenditures rose considerably, by 30 percent. Spending on
fishing increased by 3 percent, while hunting spending dropped
by 27 percent.

Source: 2016 Natl. Survey, Fishing, hunting, wildlife watching p.7

Colorado Outdoor Recreation Market

The State of Colorado is divided into sixty-four counties and en-
compasses most of the Southern Rocky Mountains as well as the
northeastern portion of the Colorado Plateau and the western
edge of the Great Plains. Colorado is the 21st most populous State
with a population estimate of 5,758,736 in 2019.

Sixty percent of the State’s residents reside in the Denver Metro-
politan Statistical Area (MSA). Colorado's primary mode of trans-
portation (in terms of passengers) is its highway system. Inter-
state 25 (I-25) is the primary north-south highway in the state,
connecting Pueblo, Colorado Springs, Denver, and Fort Collins. I-
25 extends north to Wyoming and south to New Mexico. 1-70 is

the primary east-west corridor that connects Grand Junction and
the mountain communities along the Western Slope with Denver.

Private lands comprise fifty-five percent of Colorado’s nearly six-
ty-seven million acres, the largest portion of any land ownership
type. Federal agencies own thirty-seven percent of all lands, state
agencies own five percent, and local governments, land trusts, and
nonprofit organizations combined have possession of slightly less
than one percent of Colorado’s total land base. The abundance of
public lands in Colorado has a tremendous impact on outdoor rec-
reation activity by providing easy access for outdoor enthusiasts.

The 2019 Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
(SCORP) provides data from public surveys and economic impact
research that showcase how large the Colorado outdoor recrea-
tion market is.

OUTDOOR RECREATION PARTICIPATION & ECONOMIC TRENDS
According to the 2019 SCORP, Coloradans spend a lot of time rec-
reating outdoors. Approximately 92 percent of Coloradans recre-
ate at least every few weeks to four (or more) times per week.

The number of Coloradans who participated in each activity and
the average number of days spent enjoying various activities var-
ied by region. The top three activities statewide are:

1. Walking

2. Hiking/backpacking

3. Tent camping

The outdoor recreation sector is rapidly growing in Colorado. Be-
tween 2014 and 2019, the total economic output and tax revenue
from outdoor recreation in Colorado nearly doubled and jobs in-
creased by almost 200,000. This is interesting since participation
rates remained about the same during this time, however, some
recreation activities showed strong increases. The number of days

24



Market Analysis | Colorado Outdoor Recreation Market

Coloradans recreate on a trail grew 44 percent between 2012 and
2017. In addition, spending profiles increased across most activ-
ities with trail sports, snow sports, RV camping and running con-
tributing the largest increases.

According to the Outdoor Industry Association, national con-
sumer spending on outdoor recreation increased by 37 percent
between 2011 and 2016. Comparing this to Colorado’s outdoor
spending growth (see table) reveals a remarkable interest and
support for Colorado’ outdoors that is potentially outpacing na-
tional trends.

2014 0
SCORP 2019 SCORP )% Growth
Economic $.34.L.5 $.6?.5 81%
Output billion billion
511,000 (19% of .
Jobs 313,000 CO labor force) 63%
Local, state, & $4.9 $9.4 929
federal taxes billion billion 0
Salaries & $.12.4 $.2?.4 739
wages billion billion
Direct
consumer $21 $.36.'8 75%
R billion billion
expenditures

Source: 2019 SCORP

TOURISM IN COLORADO

Tourism is the second largest industry in Colorado, and a consid-
erable portion of Colorado’s tourism economy relies on outdoor
recreation resources and public lands. According to Colorado
Travel Impacts, in 2019 the statewide tourism industry generated
$1.5 billion in local and state tax revenues, total direct travel
spending was over $24.2 billion, and direct travel spending

directly supported over 181,200 jobs and earnings of over $7.4
billion.

Outdoor trips, touring trips, and skiing trips accounted for about
7.3 million overnight visitors in 2011, representing approxi-
mately twenty-five percent of all overnight visitors and fifty-one
percent of key marketable overnight trips. Total visitor spending
from touring trips, outdoor trips and ski trips contributed approx-
imately $3.3 billion to Colorado’s economy in 2011 (about thirty-
five percent of all visitor spending). Camping, hiking, and guided
hunting trips are included in the “outdoor trips” while the site see-
ing, park tours, extended hiking tours and wildlife watching trips
are included in the “touring trips.” There are twice as many tour-
ing trips as there are skiing trips each year in the State. This is
good news for YVAC since it is not ski-related but offers a variety
of other outdoor recreation services and products.

Countryesortl

Casino, trips,B%
8%

Cityrips,
10%

—— Touringlrips,&

22%

Outdoorfrips,]

Combinedn
business-
pleasure,10%

Speciallikvent
trips,A5%

T skiffrips,®%

Source: Colorado Parks & Wildlife, Overnight Travel Segments by Trip Type, 2011

25



Market Analysis | Colorado Outdoor Recreation Market

HUNTING, FISHING & WILDLIFE WATCHING IN COLORADO

The 2016 Fifty-State Survey of Fishing, Hunting, and Wildlife-Re-
lated Recreation report provides data for the hunting, angling and
wildlife watching industries on a state level. The report defines
“sportspersons” as individuals who fished, hunted, or participated
in both activities during the year. The report was used to compare
the popularity of wildlife-associated recreation in Colorado to the
rest of the region.

The following table highlights the number of resident-participants
(defined as individuals living within each respective state) sixteen
years of age and older that participate in wildlife related activities
for Colorado and several neighboring states.

Source: 2016 Fifty-State Survey of Fishing, Hunting, & Wildlife-Related Recreation

In total, there were 2.8 million resident wildlife participants in
Colorado in the 2016 Fifty-State Survey of Fishing, Hunting, and
Wildlife-Related Recreation report. It is important to note that
there are significantly more wildlife watchers than there are
sportspersons, suggesting that it will be very important for the
Center to provide activities and resources that are appealing to
wildlife watchers as well as sportspersons.

Colorado is home to the world's largest elk population at nearly a
quarter of a million elk. It also supports the largest migrating
mule deer herd, bighorn sheep, sage grouse, and hundreds of
other native species. The beautiful landscapes, large herd sizes
and availability of “huntable” land are a few of the reasons why
Colorado is one of the most popular hunting destinations.

With more than two dozen gold medal trout fisheries, Colorado is
renowned for its fishing. There are more than 6,000 miles of
streams and 2,000 lakes and reservoirs to choose from, providing
ample opportunity to catch over 80 species of both cold and
warm-water fish. A Colorado fishing license is significantly less
expensive than a hunting license, which likely has a positive im-
pact on fishing participation rates.

Since wildlife watching can simply be defined as watching wild an-
imals in their natural habitat, this type of outdoor recreation may
occur throughout the entire State. However, some species such as
most big game animals (bears, elk, deer, pronghorn, moose) may
only be seen in the mountainous regions of the State. Many of
those living within the Denver MSA, who make up sixty percent of
the State’s population, have shown that they are willing to travel
to the outer regions of the State to see the wildlife.

Wildlife watching is the simplest and least expensive form of out-
door recreation and this may be why there is such a high rate of
participation. However, while it may be relatively “cheap” to be a
wildlife watcher, there are many who enjoy this form of recreation
enough to travel throughout the State to see different species, var-
ious habitats, and to simply enjoy being in the outdoors. The pop-
ularity regarding wildlife watching cannot be overlooked when
creating an outdoor destination in Colorado. Therefore, it will be
important for the YVAC to develop offerings that appeal to wildlife
watchers such as education on tracking, safety, conservation, and
best practices.

26



Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

WILDLIFE-RELATED EXPENDITURES IN COLORADO
Many studies have been undertaken to estimate the economic im-
pacts of fishing, hunting, and wildlife watching in Colorado. Dif-
ferent studies incorporate different data sources to characterize
participation and spending habits of outdoor recreationists, the
resulting expenditure estimates vary as a result.

According to these studies, fishing and hunting contribute to 52 to
62 percent of expenditures, and wildlife watching contributes to
38 to 48 percent of expenditures.

mountains, Gondola, zip lines, mountain toboggan, maze, mini
golf, snowmobiling, off roading, and hot springs. The region is a
world-famous resort area.

Outdoor recreationists in Colorado spent over $36.8 billion dol-
lars on trips and equipment in 2017. The Northwest region had
the largest amount of outdoor recreation spending at $10.3 bil-
lion, followed by the North Central region at $9.6 billion.

Spending in the Northwest Region is primarily on trip related ex-
enses. Total spending in the region was $10,312.

Data Source Fishing & Hunting | Wildlife Watching
Expenditures Expenditures

CPW (2004) $845,300,000 $526,000,000

CPW (2008) $1,017,800,000 $703,200,000

USFWS (2011) $1,551,577,000 $1,432,579,000

CPW (2013) $1,604,218,256 $1,322,968,136

SCORP (2019) $1,875,008,881 $1,495,180,053

Type of Total Spending Percent
Spending (Millions) Spending
Trip-related $9,659 93.7%
Equipment $653 6.3%
Total $10,312 100.0%

These wildlife-related expenditures include trip-related and
equipment expenditures associated with fishing, hunting, and
wildlife-watching within the State. One of the goals of the YVAC is
to position Craig and the County to capture a greater portion of
the hunting and fishing spending that is occurring within the
State.

Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

Colorado’s SCORP divides the state into seven regions. Moffat,
Routt, & Rio Blanco Counties are in the far Northwest Region of
Colorado. The region has a variety of complementary activities or
venues, including Steamboat Springs, Treads of Pioneers Museum,
Steamboat Art Museum, Routt National Forest, White River Na-
tional Forest, Dinosaur National Monument, and a variety of mu-
seums, lakes, streams, rivers, monuments, wildlife refuges,
campgrounds, outdoor and indoor tourist activities, Ski & Bike

Outdoor recreation in Northwest Colorado provides the following
economic contributions. (Dollar values are in millions.)

Direct Indirect/Induced | Total
Output $10,312 $5,567 | $14,879
Salaries & Wages $3,288 $1,800 | $5,088
GDP Contribution $5,206 $3,070 | $8,276
State/Local Taxes $902 $329 | $1,231
Federal Taxes $773 $422 | $1,195
Jobs 92,805 40,853 | 133,658

An estimated 313,000 jobs in Colorado are supported by outdoor
recreation expenditures (including clothing, equipment, travel
and lodging expenditures related to outdoor recreation activities),
which account for 13.2 percent of all jobs in Colorado. In the
Northwest region alone, nearly 134 thousand jobs are supported

27



Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

by outdoor recreation, representing approximately one-third of
the entire adult population in that region.

The 2014 SCORP provided a breakdown of outdoor recreation
travel patterns by region. (This was not included in the 2019
SCORP, likely due to the similarity in participation between the
two.) On this state map, the larger the arrow, the greater the num-
ber of residents traveling to or from that region. The percentage
of total statewide activity days that occur in each region is the blue
number in the top of the square. The green number in the bottom
of the square is the percentage of total regional activity days that
occurs in that same region; the lower the percentage, the more
residents that are traveling outside of their home region to partic-
ipate in outdoor recreation. The formula is:

%DfTotalBtatewidectivity@ays

%BfAActivityaysBpent@n@wniRegion

Source: Colorado Parks & Wildlife

The North Central region is by far the most popular region for out-
door recreation with almost 140 million days of activity. This re-
gion is home to popular attractions like Rocky Mountain National
Park, as well as abundant outdoor opportunities in Boulder and
Larimer Counties. The Northwest and Metro regions are also pop-
ular destinations. Not surprisingly, skiing/snowboarding at re-
sorts was the most popular behind walking and hiking in the
Northwest region.

Considering value added by outdoor recreation activities in Colo-
rado compared to the U.S., snow activities have a much higher
share of value added. Nevertheless, outdoor recreation is im-
portant to both the national as well as the State’s economy.

Source: BEA, 2020 Outdoor Recreation Satellite Account, 2019, pg 4

While much of the Northwest region’s spending occurs at ski re-
sorts, it demonstrates that individuals from all over the State
travel to the region in great numbers to participate in activities
they cannot find at home. The YVAC should strive to appeal to
these visitors by also offering a desirable amenity that is not avail-
able in other regions of the State.

28


https://www.bea.gov/news/2020/outdoor-recreation-satellite-account-us-and-states-2019

Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

Park, Moffat County Fairgrounds, New Visitor Center, Walmart Su-
per Center, and Yampa Valley Golf Course.

The nationwide map shows home locations of devices whose
home locations are at least 50 miles outside of Craig, who visited
the City of Craig at some point between 2018-2020. The county
map shows visitation from the surrounding area. The table counts
visitors to Craig during the period.

Source: BEA, Outdoor Recreation Satellite Account, 2019, table 2

MOFFAT COUNTY GIS VISITATION ANALYSIS

Better City utilized mobile geolocation data from See Source, LLC
to identify points of origin and visitation patterns for key locations
withing Moffat County from January 2018 through December
2020. See Source geo-location data is obtained from cell phone
GPS by users who grant permission through apps for their loca-
tion to be tracked and shared to third parties. See Source has data
for over 200 million cell phones in the US and this data is anony-
mized to protect individual privacy and comply with all appurte-
nant laws and regulations. Using situs and geo-location data See
Source can derive the number of permanent residents and visitors
in the region.

Destination points used for this analysis include Hotels in Craig
(Best Western, Candlewood Suites, Craig Hotel, Super 8, Quality
Inn and Suites, Travelers Inn and Suites, Valley Vista Inn, and Trav
O Tel), the City of Craig, Downtown Craig, the Town of Dinosaur,
and other areas of with high visitation—including Hart Mountain
Antelope Refuge, Loudy Simpson Park, MC Visitor Center/City

29




The percentage of visitation from
each state to Craig, Colorado during
the period is shown in the map to
the right.

Visitation of the top 20 states by
point of interest are shown in the
table below.

This data shows that while Craig
has visitors from across the United
States, the visitation from within
Colorado—and from nearby Coun-
ties in Utah and Wyoming, are the
primary source of visitors.

Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

30



Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

Weekly # of Unique Visitors from Out-of-State

The year-over-year comparison of vis-
itors shows that visitation to Craig in-

creased by 167 percent from 2018 to Year

2019.  While visitation in 2020 W 2018
dropped in the spring, in the fall the M 2019
overall high for one week reached a 2020

record high of 8,464 visitors from in
Colorado, and
11,564  visi-
tors from out
of state. Total
visitation for
2020 was an
increase of 8
percent from
the prior year.

The COVID-19 pandemic heavily im-

pacted recreation and retail centers
across the US‘ yet tourist dependent Weekly # of Unique Visitors from In-State

areas with a larger proportion of out- Year

door recreation fared relatively well. B 2018
Many outdoor recreation locations B 2015
across the nation ended up pulling in a 2020

larger number of regional visitors in
2020 than they generally do in other
years. Over the near term, the pan-
demic may impact nationwide draw
until transportation becomes safer.
Nevertheless, the YVAC’s role as a facil-
itator of outdoor rection may attract
people away from crowded cities.

31



Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

YAMPA VALLEY REGIONAL AIRPORT USAGE ANALYSIS

The Yampa Valley Regional Airport has similar counts for en-
planements and deplanements each year. (Enplanement means
boarding of an aircraft by a revenue passenger, including an orig-
inal, stopover, or transfer boarding of the aircraft; deplanement
means disembarking from an airplane.)

The annual counts of enplanements and deplanements has gener-
ally increased over time, with a dip in 2017 and 2020.

From 2013 to 2020 there were consistently significantly higher
counts of enplanements and deplanements January through
March, these generally ranged from 20,000 to 24,000. December
counts generally ranged 10,000 to 12,000, while April through No-
vember generally ranged 1,000 to 4,000.

MOFFAT COUNTY SPENDING ANALYSIS
Credit card spending data shows that purchases made within the
zip codes 81610, 81625, and 81640 from 2018 through 2020 are
primarily from customers who live in Colorado, with the next
highest share of customers from Utah.

The map below shows spending origin, with purchasers from Col-
orado removed to increase granularity.

Average Spending

0.00% T 7.0

32



Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

CityName st ~V8 Highest Spending  Avg # of ROUTE NATIONAL FOREST VISITATION
Spend  per Visitor Visitors The USDA’s National Visitor Use Monitoring program surveys
Craig CO  58.22% 1,536.00 11,566 over 100,000 visitors to National Forest System lands every five
Vernal uT 17.02% 44,443.90 117 years, with 20 percent of the sample of national forests conducting
Dinosaur co 9.46% 17,846.70 162 surveys each year. Visitors to Routt National Forest were
Meeker co 4.74% 12,329.50 117 surveyed in 2017. With the Yampa River Valley being adjacent to
Maybell co 4.52% 17.152.30 30 Routt, it wpuld seem that this survey might be a reasonable proxy
Rangely 0 3.99% 18 800.40 65 for potential custo.mer segments of the .Yan}p.a Valley Outdoor
’ Adventure Center, indicating who potential visitors are and why
Steamboat | . 3.78% 4,205.30 274 they come to the region. (The following information and charts
Springs are from this survey, unless otherwise noted).
Hayden co 3.21% 2,703.70 363
Englewood Cco 3.06% 487,201.10 2
Roosevelt uT 2.63% 46,493.90 17
Rifle co 1.91% 20,878.60 28
Denver Cco 1.80% 178,923.40 3
GrandJunc- oo g 409 8,921.90 49
tion
Durango co 1.31% 74,364.50 5
Baggs WY 1.13% 7,082.90 49
Rock Springs WY 1.02% 12,129.70 26
GrandJunc- 5 gg3% 13,218.40 21
tion
Fruita co 0.68% 3,821.20 54
g;an"d e o 0.es% 3,164.70 63
Hamilton co 0.55% 6,483.80 26 With Steamboat Springs being nearby, it is not surprising that
Routt County provides nearly a third of visitors. Another third
The twenty places listed in the table above have the highest cor- come from other parts of Colorado. Half of visitor participation is
relation between spending and visitation. for downhill skiing and that is their only reason for visiting. How-

ever, other visitors come for multiple activities, whether it be for
sightseeing, hiking, relaxing, viewing wildlife, or driving for pleas-
ure.

33


https://apps.fs.usda.gov/nvum/results/A02011.aspx/FY2017

Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

A third of visitors come from within 25 miles of the national park.
A quarter come from 100-200 miles away and another quarter
travelled more than 500 miles.

More than half of visitors come to Routt between one and five
times each year. A few come more often than once a week.

More than half of visitors rented private homes through Airbnb
and others. A quarter stayed at homes of friends or family. 10
percent were at their own home and 10 percent camped.

34



Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

If Routt were not available, a third would come back another day; WHITE RIVER NATIONAL FOREST VISITATION

55 percent would go elsewhere. 15 percent would stay home. The White River National Forest is a world-renowned recreation

destination approximately a two-hour drive from Craig. With
more than 10 million visitors per year, the White River is the
most-visited recreation forest in the country. The White River Na-
tional Forest jumped from the fifth-busiest forest in the country in
1995 to the most heavily visited in 2002, making it busier than any
other forest and even national treasures like the Grand Canyon
and Yellowstone. A survey conducted by the Forest Service be-
tween October 2001 and September 2002 estimated there were
9.67 million visits.

A third of visitors would travel more than 100 miles, indicating
good potential for many of the region’s visitors considering going
to the Adventure Centers.

How far would you travel to a
alternative for Routt NP?

34%
While many forests receive most of their recreation visits from the
local area, some forests receive most of their visits from much far-
15% ther away, drawing from more regional or national markets. A
U.S. Forest Service study from 2015 predicts that NFS lands would
- receive more than 12 million new visits by local residents each
0-25 26-50 50-100 101-300 300+ year, from about 83 million in 2010 to 95 million in 2020. In this
Miles study, White River National Forest (based on population growth

35



Market Analysis | Northwest Region Outdoor Recreation Market

within 50 miles) was expected to have more than 530,000 new
local visits annually by 2020. Dinosaur National Monument Visitors

350,000

300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
0

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

DINOSAUR NATIONAL MONUMENT VISITATION

Dinosaur National Monument is located less than an hour drive
from Craig. Recreational visits for 2020 at Dinosaur National
Monument tallied a total of 264,266, an 11.3 percent decrease
over the 2019 annual visitation. However, December visitation
numbers showed a 27.7 percent increase for the month over 2019
statistics, a trend that had started in the middle of the year and
picked up steam by year’s end.

While the COVID-19 pandemic impacted visitation in 2020, once
mitigation measures for employee and visitor safety were in place,
and facilities reopened, overall recreational visitation at the mon-
ument rebounded. The last four months of 2020 saw significant
increases over 2019 numbers.

36



Market Analysis | Economic & Demographic Factors

Economic & Demographic Factors

Median household income (MHI) for the US is around $68 thou-
sand. According to the Routt National Park Visitation study, two
thirds of visitors to Routt National Park earned more than that,
which is favorable to the Centers’ prospects.

To further evaluate the likelihood of residents from the local and
proximate markets to visit the centers, the demographic and eco-
nomic conditions of Craig and the three-county region will be con-
sidered relative to the rest of Colorado and to the nation at large.

INCOME & EcONOMY

Among reasons for locating the Center in Craig is to help build
Moffat County’s economic conditions. Median household income
in the county is 10-25 percent lower compared to the other two
counties, Colorado, and the nation at large.

SOURCE: Census.gov Quickfacts

The relatively low level of building permits in Moffat County
indicates a significant need to energize the local economy.

SOURCE: Census.gov Quickfacts

Home values are also a signal of an economy’s vibrancy. Moffat
County would clearly benefit from the infusion of new business.

SOURCE: Census.gov Quickfacts

37



Market Analysis | Economic & Demographic Factors

POPULATION

Moffat and Rio Blanco counties have roughly the same population
as 30 years ago, indicating room for growth.

SOURCE: Census.gov Quickfacts, Better City analysis

Colorado’s disposable income is about 25 percent higher than the
national average, which allows more to be spent on recreating.

SOURCE: Census.gov Quickfacts

. S . :DOLA
Retail sales per capita in both Moffat and Routt Counties are 15 SOURCE: DO

percent stronger than the rest of Colorado and the U.S.

38


https://demography.dola.colorado.gov/population/data/county-data-lookup/

Market Analysis | Catchment Area Benchmarks

Catchment Area Benchmarks

Although local visitation to YVAC will be important, it will not be
sufficient, especially when compared to the population density re-
quired by other organizations. YVAC will need to draw from
statewide as well as national populations interested in outdoor
recreation.

Large retail organizations of various types sometimes publish
their requirement for the minimum population within a particular
radius necessary for them to locate a new site.

Great Wolf Resorts are regional recreation attraction indoor wa-
terparks with restaurants, arcades, and more. They prefer sites
with minimum of 5 million target customers within a convenient
driving distance.

# visitors to # people within
Great Wolf Resorts | the near area* 180 miles (mil-
(million) lion)

Wisconsin Dells, WI 3 16
Sandusky, OH 10 23
Traverse City, MI 2 7
Kansas City, KS 8 7
Williamsburg, VA 4 17
Poconos, PA 6 45
Niagara Falls, ON 12 18
Mason, OH 5 17
Grapevine, TX 8 11
Grand Mound, WA 8
Concord, NC 3 15

*Source: 2011-2012 Travel & Tourism Market Research Handbook (510 pgs)

Six Flags requires between 1.6 million and 24.5 million persons
living within a 50-mile radius of their theme parks.

Minimum Population to Locate a New Site

Minimum Population within radius

(=]

Whole Foods - 3 miles

Costco - 5miles

PetSmart - 5 miles

Old Spaghetti Factory - 5 miles
Consolidated Theaters- 5 miles
Edwards Theaters - 5 miles
Regal Cinemas - 5 miles

UA Theaters- 5 miles

CeFiore Italian Yogurt - 3miles
Fish City Grill - 3-5 miles

Home Depot - 10 miles
Wendy's - 3 miles

50,000 100,000 150,000 200,000 250,000

Source: ChainLinks National Retailer Expansion Guide 2015
Source: Wonder

SOURCE: Six Flags 10-K 2019

39



https://www.rkma.com/Mercyhurst/2012a/
http://www.midamericagrp.com/docs/default-source/market-reports/chainlinks_expansionguide_spring2014.pdf?sfvrsn=8
https://askwonder.com/research/minimum-neighborhood-population-demographic-statistics-income-level-age-a3hckycig
https://otp.tools.investis.com/clients/us/sixflags1/SEC/sec-show.aspx?Type=html&FilingId=13938752&CIK=0000701374&Index=10000

Market Analysis | Visitation Requirements for YVAC

Visitation Requirements for YVAC The analysis shows that if 15 percent of the travelers who visit
Although local visitation to YVAC will be important, it will not be Moffat County from within and outside of Colorado visit the Cen-

sufficient, especially when compared to the population density ter, the net operating income (NOI) from the Yampa Valley Adven-

. . ture Center is likely to be positive within four to five years. Once
benchmarks. YVAC will need to draw from statewide as well as . - y P . . « y. ) ”
. . . . . the NOI is positive, the Center will be considered “stabilized.
national populations interested in outdoor recreation.

Need approximately
15 percent of travel-
ers through Moffat
County from Colorado
to support top-line
revenues

V

1

Need approximately 15 percent
of travelers through Moffat
County from outside Colorado to
support top-line revenues.

40



Market Analysis | Total Addressable Market
Total Addressable Market

The addressable markets for the YVCA can be viewed as:

A. Primary Market
a. Craig
b. The remainder of Moffat County
c. Baggs and Dixon, WY
B. Secondary Market
a. Steamboat Springs
b. The remainder of Routt County
c. Rio Blanco County
C. Tertiary Market
a. The remainder of Colorado
D. Quaternary Market
a. Visitors from the United States outside
Colorado

The calculation for the Center’s Total Addressable Market (TAM)
uses the following variables supplied by the U.S. Census Bureau
QuickFacts, June 2020, the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics Con-
sumer Expenditure Survey, September 2020, for each of the mar-
kets noted above, and the 2016 National Survey of Fishing, Hunt-
ing, and Wildlife-Associated Recreation.

1. Number of households in each market.

2. Median household income in each market.

3. Disposable income per household (MHI less spending on
housing and necessities), which varies by region.

Purchasing Power=1x2x 3

41



Market Analysis | Total Addressable Market

@ 2 it T €
Aleohol
away from | Disposable | Outdoor Recreation
# of households MHI Housing Necessities home Income Purchasing Power
Place (1 Jul 2019) (2020 $) (2020 $) (2020 $) (20208) (2020 $) (2020%)
Primary Market
Craig 3,682 550,455 $6,284 $29,678 $2,682 $14,493 $53,362,882
Moffat (5,210 households less Craig) 1,528 $52,807 $6,577 531,062 52,807 $15,169 $23,177,475
Baggs, WY 190 541,932 $5,223 $24,665 $2,229 $12,045 $2,294,244
Dixon, WY 42 533,545 54,178 $19,732 51,783 59,636 5404,614
Secondary Market (tri-county area excluding the towns above)
Steamboat 4,815 571,476 $22,355 $35,002 54,408 $14,119 567,983,589
Routt (9,552 hshld less Steamboat) 4,737 574,273 $9,250 543,688 $3,048 $21,334 $101,061,475
Rio Blanco 2,403 $55,543 $6,943 $32,671 $2,952 $15,929 $38,277,975
Tertiary Market (rest of CO) 2,096,222 568,811 $19,454 $32,239 $3,411 $17,118 $35,882,165,119
Visitors (outside of Colorado) 117,616,741 $60,293 $17,441 $30,006 $3,462 $12,846 $1,510,905,775,327
Total $1,547,074,502,702
Z Pt Z L
Percent# of Income / / The total purchasing power for
Primary Market Basis Hou;ing Necessities Food Away | Disposable the US is compared to total
Craig US Rural 12.5% 58.8% 5.3% 23.4% annual spending for outdoor
Moffat (13,283 less Craig) US Rural 12.5% 58.8% 5.3% 23.4% recreation and Family
Baggs, WY US Rural 12.5% 58.8% 5.3% 23.4% Entertainment Centers to
Dixon, WY US Rural 12.5% 58.8% 5.3% 23.4% =l el
Secondary Market (tri-county x-above) propensity-
Steamboat West 31.3% 49.0% 6.2% 13.6%
Routt (excl Steamboat) US Rural 12.5% 58.8% 5.3% 23.4% \--J These percentages for housing,
Rio Blanco US Rural 12.5% 58.8% 5.3% 23.4% |\ necessities, and disposable
Total secondary market income are from a separate tab
Tertiary Market (rest of CO) Denver 28.3% 46.9% 5.0% 19.9% titled "Consumer Spending”
Visitors (outside of Colorado) USA \ 28.9% 49.8% 5.7% 15.6%

Note: percentages based on Consumer Expenditure Survey, ureau of Labor Statistics, September, 2020
Assumptions

According to this analysis, the Outdoor Recreation Purchasing
Power of the Primary Market is $79,239,216. The Secondary Mar-
ket is $207,323,039, and the Tertiary Market is
$1,546,787,940,447.

To determine how much of this market for total Outdoor Recrea-
tion Purchasing YVAC could access (the TAM) the percentage of
Outdoor Spending Propensity, is factored in to determine the as-
sumed amount that would be spend in the region, and the esti-
mated share that YVAC would have of that spending.

42



Market Analysis | Total Addressable Market

4. Spending Propensity for gear, accessories, and vehicles by Total Addressable Market = Purchasing powerx4x5x 6
American households on each type of outdoor recreation ac-
tivity which adds up to around 18 percent of disposable in- The Total Addressable Market for the Yampa Valley Adventure
come across the U.S. Center is estimated at $9.4 million.

5. The likelihood (percentage) of households in each market
spending their disposable income for outdoor recreation in
the Yampa Valley three-county area.

6. YVAC's own potential share of that spending in Yampa Valley.

Compared to visitation according to GIS County visitation data, given the assumptions above, including food and beverage, in order to
achieve top-line revenue for lessees of YVAC requires that:

e 15 percent of Colorado and U.S. travelers visit YVAC.

e 10 percent of Colorado and U.S. travelers stop at YVAC to eat or drink.

$2.4 million in food and beverage sales implies:
e 9,629 square feet of restaurant space at $250/SF sales (average restaurants)
e 6,878 square feet of restaurant space at $350/SF sales (above-average restaurants)

43



Financial Analysis | Revenue Projections

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

To evaluate the financial viability of the Center, the top-down To-
tal Area Market estimate of $9.4 million revenue was compared to
a bottom-up estimate from revenues from the revenue sources.

The Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflator is estimated with a 2 per-
cent annual inflation.

Revenue Projections

The Center’s revenue sources would include:
1. Large Outdoor Retailers
a. These are large units that will be leased to anchor-
ing outdoor recreation retailers in the Center.
2. Ongoing Lessees
a. There are businesses currently located in the
building who have existing leases and wish to re-
main in the space. These include:
i. Dollar Tree
ii. Fastenal
iii. Domino's
iv. Kidz Dentist
v. Veterans Telehealth
3. Other Lessees
a. These are the open units that will be leased to
complementary businesses.
4. Related Parties
a. These are businesses that may be owned by Mr.
and Mrs. Moe and will be in the Center, including
Restaurant rents.
5. Ancillary Items

a. This revenue would be from sources other than
rents, including food and beverage, events, train-
ing, guide booking fees, ATV sales and rentals, etc.
The Center is intended as the “Outdoor Adventure
Expedia of Northwest Colorado” and so will pro-
vide a variety of services that facilitate adventures.

Square footage in the analysis is calculated as follows:
e Total square footage: 150,014
e Useable square footage: 123,903
e Large Outdoor Retailers
0 0ld Safeway square footage: 35,670, of which
0 Big-0 keeps 18,534 square feet.
0 Total Large Outdoor Retailer 17,136 square feet.
¢ Ongoing Lessees
o Dollar Tree 8,458
Fastenal 2,283
Domino's 750
Kidz Dentist 2,060
Veterans 1,874
0 Total Ongoing Lessees 15,425 square feet
e Other Lessees
0 40 percent of the remaining space
0 Total External Lessees 29,123 square feet
e Related Parties
0 60 percent of the remaining space
0 Total Related Parties 43,685 square feet

©00O0Oo

The Common Area Maintenance Charge (CAM) = total CAM ex-
penses/square feet * square feet per lessee.

44



Financial Analysis | Revenue Projections

REVENUE FROM LARGE OUTDOOR RETAILER

Sportsman's Warehouse data was used as a proxy for a Large Out-
door Retailer. As stated in their 2020 10-K, page 10: "Our new
stores typically reach a mature sales growth rate within three to
four years after opening, with net sales increasing approximately
25 percentin the aggregate during this time period." This analysis
assumes 4 years to maturity with 25 percent growth in first four
years.

According to Sportsman's Warehouse 2020 10-K, in 2019 they
had 103 stores with average square footage of 40,000, for a total
of 4,120,000 square feet, Net sales are reported as $886,401,000.
So average sales/square feet = $215.

According to the 2020 10-K, Sportsman's Warehouse leases 4.1
million square feet. Operating cash flow from operating leases
was $49.7 million—or an average of about $12/square foot.

"All of our leases provide for additional payments associated with
common area maintenance, real estate, taxes and insurance. In
addition, many of our lease agreements have defined escalating
rent provisions over the initial term and extensions. Certain
leases have scheduled rent increases, and certain leases include
an initial period of free or reduced rent as an inducement to enter
into the lease agreement." This analysis assumes a conservative
$6/square foot in Craig’s market, or half of Sportsman’s Ware-
house average.

The financial projections show that anticipated revenues from
Large Outdoor Retailers would grow from $192,342 in year one to
$232,230 in year five. The year one revenues from Large Outdoor
Retailers are 7 percent of the revenue for that year.

% of % of % of % of % of
Projections $ Yri Total Yr2 Total Yr3 Total Yra Total Yrs Total
CPl inflator (est) 2.0% | 1.000 | 1.020 1.040 1.061 1.082
Total "Chargeable" square footage 49,900 60,821 71,742 82,663 82,663
Common Area Mntc Charge/sqft 58.66 $8.32 $8.12 $8.01 $8.14
Large Outdoor Retailer Sales $/ft” 150
Large Outdoor Retailer Topline Store Revenue | $2,570,400 $2,570,400 $2,570,400 $2,570,400 $2,570,400
Base rent from Large Outdoor Retailer
Large Outdoor Retailer square footage 17,136 17,136 17,136 17,136 17,136 17,136
Large Outdoor Retailer Base rent 5/ ft? $2.56 $3.20 $4.08 $5.31 $5.41
Base Rent $ - Large Outdoor Retailer 543,868 2% §54,835 2% $69,915 2% 590,924 2% $92,743 2%
Common Area Mntc Charge S $148,474 5% $142,583 5% $139,160 4% $137,245 4% $139,487 3%
Total Revenue from Large Outdoor Retailer $192,342 7% $197,418 7% $209,075 6% $228,169 6% $232,230 6%

45



ONGOING LESSEES

Financial Analysis | Revenue Projections

This analysis used the lease agreement terms for 2022-2025 and
2026-2031 for Dollar Tree, Fastenal, and Veterans Telehealth.
Since no lease information was received regarding Domino’s, this
analysis assumes $9.65/square feet, $7,238/year, assuming 750
square feet, increasing with inflation. For Kidz Dentist there is
$11,544 /year growing with inflation. This analysis also assumes

the same increment for 2032-2036.

Note that Ongoing Lessees have no CAM charges, in accordance
with their existing lease terms. (Only Kidz Dentist has a charge for
CAM in their lease.)

The financial projections show that anticipated revenues from On-
going Lessees would grow from $159,921 in year one to $170,536
in year five. The year one revenues from Ongoing Lessees are 6
percent of the revenue for that year.

% of % of % of % of % of
Projections $ Yri Total Yr2 Total Yr3 Total Yra Total Yrs Total
CPl inflator (est) 2.0% I 1.000 1.020 1.040 1.061 1.082
Total "Chargeable" square footage 49,900 60,821 71,742 82,663 82,663
Common Area Mntc Charge/sqft $8.66 $8.32 $8.12 $8.01 $8.14
Ongoing Lessees Rent/year (no CAM charges)
Dollar Tree 581,620 $81,620 581,620 $81,620 586,695
Fastenal 522,032 $22,032 $22,032 $22,032 $22,032
Domino's $7,238 $7,382 57,530 57,680 57,834
Kidz Dentist 511,544 $11,775 $12,010 $12,251 $12,496
Veterans Telehealth $37,488 $38,462 $39,452 $40,458 $41,479
Total rent from Ongoing Lessees $159,921 $161,271 $162,644 $164,041 $170,536

46




OTHER LESSEES

Financial Analysis | Revenue Projections

To keep the calculations straightforward, this analysis assumes a
triple-net lease structure for Other Lessees:

1. Charge $12 per square foot base rent.

a. See Benchmarks for Operating Expenses section of

this report.

2. Charge the variable rate of 7 percent of the lessees' sales

exceeding the breakpoint.

a. 7 percentage rent is reported to be the industry

standard for shopping centers and strip malls.

b. The natural breakpointis the point where the base
rent equals the percentage rent. To calculate it, we
divided the base rent by the percentage.

c. Percentage rent is equal to standard 7 percent of
sales above the breakpoint, which is assumed to

be $4/square foot.

3. Charge for Common Area Maintenance expenses to each
lessee based on the CAM $/square feet.

Mall occupancy percentage was used as a proxy for ramping up
revenues and expenses for Other Lessees. We used a conservative
estimate of $75 for Related Parties sales $/square foot. (As points
of comparison, average sales per square foot for these example
stores are as follows: Urban outfitters = $294, Big 5 sporting goods
=$212, and Dollar General = $184.)

The financial projections show that anticipated revenues from
Other Lessees would grow from $244,604 in year one to $497,068
in year five. The year one revenues from Other Lessees are 9 per-
cent of the revenue for that year.

% of % of % of % of %% of |
Projectio ns $ Yri Total Yr2 Total Yr3 Total Yra Total Yr5 Total
CPI inflator (est) 2.0% 1.000 1.020 1.040 | 1.061 | 1.082 |
Total "Chargeable" square footage 49,900 60,821 71,742 82,663 82,663
Common Area Mntc Charge/sqft S8.66 $8.32 $8.12 S8.01 $8.14
JRents from other lessees
Other Lessees square footage 29,123
Occupancy rate - Other Lessees 45% 60% 75% 90% 90%
"Chargeable" square footage - other lessees | 13,105 17,474 21,842 26,211 26,211
Base Rent $/ft” - other lessees $10.00 $10.00 $10.20 $10.40 $10.61 $10.82
Base Rent 5 - Other lessees l $131,054 5% $178,233 6% $227,247 7% $278,150 7% $283,713 7%
% of sales charged to lessees 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7%
Breakpoint lessees' sales § 51,872,193 $2,546,182 53,246,382 $3,973,572 54,053,044
Other Lessee store sales $/ft° s75 $75 S77 78 S80 $81
Other Lessee Topline Store Revenue $982,901 $1,336,746 $1,704,351 $2,086,125 $2,127,848
Percentage Rent $000 - Other lessees S0 0% S0 0% S0 0% S0 0% S0 0%
Common Area Mntc Charge $ $113,550 4% $145,394 5% $177,379 5% $209,925 6% $213,355 5%
Total Revenue from other lessees $244,604 9% $323,626 11% $404,626 12% $488,075 13% $497,068 12%

47




Financial Analysis | Revenue Projections

This analysis assumes salaries and wages are spent for related-
party stores and for ancillary income-generating operations. It
also assumes increasing productivity after startup.

RENTS FROM RELATED PARTIES

To keep the calculations straightforward, this analysis assumes a
triple-net lease structure for Related Parties (the same structure
as is listed above under Other Lessees).

The financial projections show that anticipated revenues from
Rents from Related Parties would grow from $406,227 in year one
to $830,725 in year five. The year one revenues from Rents from

Mall occupancy percentage was used as a proxy for ramping up
revenues and expenses for Related Parties. We used a conserva-
tive estimate of $100 for Related Parties sales $/square foot. (As

points of comparison, average sales per square foot for these ex-
ample stores are as follows: Urban outfitters = $294, Big 5 sport-
ing goods = $212, and Dollar General = $184.)

Related Parties are 15 percent of the revenue for that year.

% of % of % of % of % of
Projections $ Yro Yri Total Yr2 Total Yr3 Total Yra Total Yrs Total
CPI inflator (est) 2.0% 1.000 1.020 | 1.040 | 1.061 | 1082 |
Total "Chargeable" square footage 49,900 60,821 71,742 82,663 82,663
Common Area Mntc Charge/sqft $8.22 57.96 57.81 $7.74 57.87
Rents from Related Parties (Frank's own)
Related Parties square footage 43,685
Occupancy Rate - Related Parties 45% 60% 75% 90% a0%
"Chargeable" square footage - Related Parties 19,658 26,211 32,764 39,317 39,317
Base Rent S[ﬁi2 - Related Parties $12.00 $12.00 512.24 $12.48 $12.73 $12.99
Base Rent $ - Related Parties $235,899 9% $320,823 11% $409,049 12% $500,676 13% $510,689 13%
% of sales charged to lessees 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7%
Breakpoint Related Parties' sales $ $3,369,986 54,583,181 $5,843,555 §7,152,512 $7,295,562
Related Parties $/ft" $100 $100 $102 $104 $106 $108
Total Related Parties' Topline Store Revenue 51,965,825 52,673,522 53,408,741 54,172,298 $4,255,744
Percentage Rent $000 - Related Parties S0 0% S0 0% S0 0% S0 0% S0 0%
Common Area Mntc Charge $ $161,645 6% $208,595 7% $256,006 8% $304,408 8% $309,553 8%
Total Revenue from Related Parties $397,544 15% $529,417 18% $665,055 20% $805,084 21% $820,243 20%

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank.

48




Financial Analysis | Revenue Projections

The financial projections show that anticipated revenues from
Rents from Restaurants would grow from $159,710 in year one to

RENTS FROM RESTAURANTS
To keep the calculations straightforward, this analysis assumes a
triple-net lease structure for Related Parties (the same structure

as is listed above under Other Lessees). $172,875 in year five.

% of % of % of % of % of
Projections $ Yro yri Total Yr2 Total Yr3 Total Yra Total Yrs Total
CPl inflator (est) 2.0% 1.000 1.020 | 1.040 | 1.061 | 1082 |
Total "Chargeable" square footage 49,900 60,821 71,742 82,663 82,663
Common Area Mntc Charge/sqft $8.22 57.96 57.81 §7.74 57.87
Restaurant Revenues $2,281,566 $2,281,566 $2,327,198 $2,373,741 $2,421,216 $2,469,641

Rent Revenue to YVAC from Res §159,710 $159,710 $162,904 $166,162 $169,485 $172,875

YVAC would offer services to facilitate outdoor adventure in the
region—these offerings would increase profitability and the over-
all market participation associated with the Center. While these
additional services will increase total expenses for equipment,
maintenance, and operations, adding these additional services
will have a significant positive impact in establishing the Center
as an outdoor adventure destination.

POTENTIAL INCENTIVES FOR LESSEES

As an incentive to recruit potential outdoor recreation businesses
to lease space in the Center, the Moe’s will consider offering up to
1 year of lease abatement. Rather than adjusting the entire finan-
cial model to show this possibility, we are noting here that this
incentive would reduce Net Cash Flow before taxes by up to:
$190,247 for a large outdoor retailer

$243,001 for other lessees

$159,710 for restaurants

$592,958 in total

ANCILLARY REVENUES

The base data for each category of Ancillary Revenues is from a
study conducted in 2016 for a conceptualized Meeker Adventure
Center. (In addition to the categories below, the Meeker study had
ancillary revenue for memberships, admissions, and weapon rent-
als. These are excluded from this study, as YVAC’s business model
does not require memberships or admissions charges, and
weapon rentals will be provided by retailers and not by the Cen-
ter.) Annual growth rates for each category were also taken from
the Meeker study.

49



Financial Analysis | Revenue Projections

Despite the isolated position of Craig from nearby micro and ma-
jor metro areas, a wide market scope would be able to attract
enough tourists to make the Center profitable. An example of this
level of visitation to a rural community is the Elk Country Visitor
Center in Benezette, Pennsylvania. They cater exclusively to the
Elk Tourism outdoor niche, they showcase taxidermized elk, ant-
lers, a 4D theater, event space, restaurant, and nearby elk safari—
and their visitation in 2019 was 520,000. Even in 2020, despite
the pandemic and a two-month closure, they had 518,000 visitors.

The following table displays the proposed additional services and
associated prices to be offered by the Center. These prices are
conservatively structured at or below the average prices of similar
services offered by touring/rental companies in both Utah and
Colorado.

Proposed Additional Services & Pricing

Service Quantity price

ATV tour/rental 5 ATVs $170/machine/day
Razor tour/rental 5 Razors $300/machine/day
Snowmobile tour/rental $250/machine/day
Sigh-seeing/Wildlife Tours |1 Van (14 passengers) |$75/person/day
Horseback Riding 5 Horses $150/person/day

3 People/trip/day $200/person/day
$1,000/person/week

5 Snowmobiles

Fly Fishing Trips

Bakcpacking Trips 5 People/trip/day

Itis assumed that all the outdoor activities are offered daily, seven
days a week. For purposes of defining the revenue model, it is as-
sumed that each month contains 30 days which would mean the
Center is open 360 days of the year. To estimate the utilization for
each of the additional services, they were grouped into “warm”
and “cold” month activities. All additional services except for
snowmobile rentals/tours and cross-country skiing are consid-
ered warm-month activities.

The following model was used to estimate utilization rates and is
based on conversations with owners of regional power sport
rental businesses and represents the percentage of usage for each
machine/activity during a particular month. For example, during
the peak warm season, a utilization rate of 75 percent would indi-
cate that 75 percent of the available ATVs would be utilized on a
given day. Anticipated utilization rates are in the following table.

Months Warm-Month Activities | Cold-Month Activities
January - March 0 percent 75 percent
April 25 percent 50 percent
May 50 percent 0 percent
June - August 75 percent 0 percent
September 70 percent 0 percent
October 60 percent 0 percent
November 0 percent 0 percent
December 0 percent 60 percent

These warm and cold month utilization rates are the goal or target
rates that will be attained when the Center has successfully mar-
keted its services to the public and has achieved stabilized visita-
tion (the point at which the net operating income is positive). Itis
assumed that these participation rates would not be attained until
year 5. Actual utilization rates, as a percentage of the total target
rate for years 1-5 is detailed below:

Year 1 (50 percent of target rates)

Year 2 (60 percent of target rates)

Year 3 (70 percent of target rates)

Year 4 (85 percent of target rates)

Year 5 (100 percent of target rates)

The Center’s total ancillary revenue includes revenue from food
and beverage from vending machines, indoor activities (pro shop,
events, training, booking fees, ATV sales and service) and outdoor
activities (ATV/Razor rentals, snowmobile rentals, wildlife-

50



watching/sight-seeing tours, fly-fishing trips, backpacking trips).
The total projected revenue for all services offered by the Center

Financial Analysis | Revenue Projections

below. These Ancillary Revenues comprise 57 percent of the Cen-
ter’s total revenue in the first year of operation.

during the initial five years of operation is displayed in the table

Ancillary Revenues $ Base Yri | yr2 | vr3 | yra | yrs |
Food & Beverage 555,784 $55,784 2.1% $69,730 2.3% $85,071 2.5% $100,383 2.6% $131,502 3.3%
Pro Shop 5640,000 $640,000 23.7% $652,800 21.7% $665,856 19.7% $679,173 17.9% $692,757 17.1%
Events 536,000 $36,000 1.3% $36,720 1.2% $37,454 1.1% 438,203 1.0% $38,968 1.0%
Training $35,000 $35,000 1.3% $35,700 1.2% $36,414 1.1% $37,142 1.0% $37,885 0.9%
Hunting, guide booking fees 525,000 $25,000 0.9% $25,500 0.8% $26,010 0.8% $26,530 0.7% $27,061 0.7%
ATV sales, service $216,000 $216,000 8.0% $220,320 7.3% $224,726 6.7% §229,221 6.0% $233,805 5.8%
ATV rentals, tours $166,733 $166,733 6.2% $183,406 6.1% $214,585 6.4% $259,648 6.8% $306,385 7.6%
Fishing trips - booking fees $106,425 $106,425 3.9% $117,068 3.9% $136,969 4.1% $165,732 4.4% $195,564 4.8%
Backpacking trips - booking fees 538,431 $38,431 1.4% $42,274 1.4% $49,461 1.5% $59,847 1.6% $70,620 1.7%
Snowmobile rentals 569,094 $69,094 2.6% $76,003 2.5% $88,924 2.6% $107,598 2.8% $126,966 3.1%
Snowmobile sales, service S0 S0 0.0% S0 0.0% S0 0.0% S0 0.0% S0 0.0%
Sightseeing tours - booking fees 574,498 $74,498 2.8% $81,948 2.7% $95,879 2.8% $116,014 3.1% $136,896 3.4%
Horseback - booking fees 55,321 $5,321 0.2% $5,853 0.2% $6,848 0.2% $8,286 0.2% $9,778 0.2%
Fishing lessons - booking fees 570,950 $70,950 2.6% $78,045 2.6% $91,313 2.7% $110,488 2.9% $130,376 3.2%
Total Ancillary Revenues $1,539,236 $1,539,236 57% 51,625,367 54% 61,759,510 52% $1,938,268 51% $2,138,562 53%
REVENUE FINDINGS .
Based on assumptions in the current Projections $ L0 i e LiiE. R
proforma model, the bottom—up estimate [CP! inflator (est) | 1.000 1.020 1.040 1.061 1.082
of Total Revenues for the first year, $2.7 Total "Chargeable" square footage 49,900 60,821 71,742 82,663 82,663
million, from Large Outdoor Retailer, On- Common Area Mntc Charge/sqft $8.22 $7.96 $7.81 $7.74 $7.87
Total revenues to YVAC $2,679,999 $2,987,462 53,355,098 $3,781,564 $4,019,956

going Lessees, Other Lessees, Related Par-
ties, and Ancillary products is below the

estimate of the Total Addressable Market (TAM), $12.1 million.
Based on the GIS Visitation Analysis of the visitors to Moffat
County, 15 percent of travelers from inside Colorado and 15 per-
cent of U.S. travelers from outside Colorado need to visit YVAC to

support projected top-line revenues.

501c¢3 REVENUE

Please note, the revenue from ticket sales for the RFID displays is
not factored into the revenue projections, as they will go to the
Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame.
With a well-defined and funded sales & marketing plan and after

stabilization (estimated at year 5) visitation to the Center could
reach 360,000 annual visitors. The RFID wristbands that activate

51




Financial Analysis | Expense Projections

the exhibits would sell at $15.00 for Adult’s, and $7.00 for chil-
dren. Projections for sales of the RFID displays, at an average
$12.00 ticket price would equate to $4,320,000 in annual sales at
project stabilization.

Expense Projections

To evaluate the financial viability of the Center, the expenses were
evaluated by benchmarking the operating expenses of malls to en-
sure estimates were conservative. The expense projections in-
clude operating expenses, and facility costs.

BENCHMARKS FOR OPERATING EXPENSES

In order to determine industry appropriate expectations for the
Center, the data from the 10-K forms from twelve publicly traded
Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) that focus on malls were
compared. There is some variation in how these REITs report in-
come and expenses. Expenses charged to lessees for common
area maintenance (CAM) are rarely broken out. Some REITs

report CAM within the fixed category of revenues from lessees;
others report CAM within variable rents. Simon, the largest REIT,
lists some CAM in each category. Nevertheless, reasonable com-
parisons can be extracted from some REITs for most categories of
expenses.

The following table was used to compare assumptions for YVAC
against these benchmark malls, particularly to ensure the analysis
is appropriately conservative for a small market. In all cases the
assumptions for YVAC were more conservative than the bench-
marks. The table is useful for comparing YVAC's projections
against available industry benchmarks. Some key findings are
that:
e Baserentcharged to lessees ranges from $11.43 to $54.59,
with an average base rent charge of $25.
e Property operating expenses per square foot ranges from
$1.26 to $3.23, with an average of $2.35.
e General and Administrative costs per square foot ranges
from $0.19 to $1.51, with an average of $1.11.

52



Financial Analysis | Expense Projections

OPERATING EXPENSE PROJECTIONS e Van Replacement $2,177, $0.032/SF
The operating expense projections include supplies upkeep costs e Administrative & Miscellaneous $51,416, $0.760/SF
(cost of goods sold, maintenance, and replacement) as well as gen- e Capital Expenditures $10,283, $0.152/SF

eral operational costs (salaries and wages, marketing, and com-
mon area maintenance). Expenses per square foot are based on
the Meeker study for each category, as follows:

The Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
will be responsible for the interior maintenance of all the public
space, including janitorial.

e Insurance $68,554, $1.013/SF

e Utilities $205,662, $3.039/SF

e Maintenance & Repairs $68,554, $1.013/SF
e Trash $5,531, $0.082/SF

e Van Maintenance $1,735, $0.026/SF

The Gross Profit was determined by subtracting the Cost of Goods
Sold (COGS) from net revenues. Then Gross Profit was divided by
Net Revenues the find the percentage of Gross Profit.

Operating Expenses % of: Optg Exp % Yrl I Yr2 | Yr3 | Yrd | Yr5 |
Food & Beverage COGS % Food & Bev sales 60% 533,470 1% 541,838 1% $51,042 2% $60,230 2% 578,901 2%
Pro Shop % Pro shop sales 70% $448,000 17% 5$456,960 15% $466,099 14% $475,421 12% 5$484,930 12%
ATV COGS % ATV sales, Svc 70% $151,200 6% 5$154,224 5% $157,308 5% $160,455 4% $163,664 4%
ATV Mntc % ATF rentals 15% $25,010 1% $27,511 1% $32,188 1% $38,047 1% $45958 1%
ATV Replacement % ATF rentals 23% $24,478 1% $26,926 1% $31,503 1% $38,118 1% 544,980 1%
Snowmohile COGS % snowm. Sales 70% S0 0% S0 0% S0 0% S0 0% S0 0%
Snowmobile Mntc % snowm. Rentals 7% $4,837 0% $5,320 0% $6,225 0% $§7,532 0% $8,888 0%
Snowmobile Replacement % snowm. Rentals 23% $15,892 1% $17,481 1% 520,453 1% $24,748 1% §29,202 1%
Related Party Lease Payments from above S406,227 15% $538,916 18% $675,121 20% $815,567 21% $830,725 21%
Salaries and Wages % of non-CAM revenues |% own rev, x-CAM 35% 35% 30% 25% 22%
Salaries & Wages $621,297 23% $681,166 23% $650,568 19% $609,736 16% §582,835 14%
Marketing % of non-CAM revenues % revenues x-CAM 30% 25% 25% 20% 15%
Marketing $ $680,906 25% $625,858 21% $698,632 21% $628,309 17% $505,368 13%
Common Area MaintenanceX
Real estate tax % of assessed value 8% $121,220 4% $121,220 4% $121,220 4% $121,220 3% $121,220 3%
Insurance S/sqft $1.013 $50,548 2% $62,844 2% $75,611 2% $88,863 2% $90,641 2%
Utilities S/sqft $3.039 $151,645 6% 5188,531 6% $226,832 7% $266,590 7% $271,922 7%
Mntc & Repairs S/sqft $1.013 550,548 2% $62,844 2% $75,611 2% $88,863 2% 590,641 2%
Trash S/sqft $0.082 $4,092 0% $5,087 0% $6,121 0% $7,193 0% $7,337 0%
Admin & Misc S/sqft $0.760 $37,924 1% $47,148 2% S$56,727 2% $66,669 2% $68,003 2%
Cap Ex S/sqft $0.152 $7,585 0% $9,430 0% 511,345 0% $13,334 0% 513,601 0%
Van Mntc Annual estimate $1,830 $1,830 0% $1,867 0% 51,904 0% $1,942 0% 51,981 0%
Van Replacement Depreciation $6,960 $6,960 0% $7,099 0% $7,241 0% $7,386 0% $7,534 0%
Total Common Area Maintenance $432,352 16% $506,069 17% $582,611 17% $662,061 17% $672,878 17%
Total Expenses $2,843,669 105% | $3,082,270 102%| $3,371,750 100% | 93,521,124 93% | 3,348,328 85%

53



Financial Analysis | Expense Projections

CosTs FOR SERVICES OFFERED BY THE CENTER

In order for the Center to provide outdoor adventure related ser-
vices, a significant amount of equipment will be needed. Services
may be subcontracted from the Center to existing outfitters or
other businesses. Subcontracting these services to existing busi-
nesses that are already experienced in offering these types of ser-
vices will allow the Center to offer a sophisticated and exceptional
customer experience, while still providing support to local and re-
gional existing businesses. It is recommended that the section of
the operator(s) that will perform these services take place
through the offering of a Request for Proposals (RFP), made avail-
able to all interested parties.

Multiple assumptions were made to forecast the revenue and ex-
penses for these services, and quantity of vehicles demanded at
the Center. These assumptions were made based on conversa-
tions with local experts and business owners operating in the re-
gion. The sales prices for the equipment are based upon current
average prices in the marketplace. The table below lists the type
of equipment/vehicles that will be included initially with the Cen-
ter, and the initial capital investment required.

Initial Cost of Equipment

Type of Market | # of Riders | Price Per| Total

Vehicle Demand | (w/driver) | Vehicle Cost
ATV 5 1 58,000 S40,000
Razor S 1000 EPS 1 2| $18,000| $36,000
Razor 900 1 2| $12,800| $25,600
Razor XP 4 1000 EPS 3 4| $22,300| 5267,600
Snowmobhile 5|1to2 $11,429| $57,145
Chevrolet Express Van 1 15| $32,990| 5494,850
Total Price of Vehicles $921,195

Conversations with local power sport dealers revealed that the
useful life of ATVs, Razors and Snowmobiles is approximately 3
years, assuming that the machines receive proper maintenance
and are used on a daily basis.

Many power sports dealers replace their entire inventory on a 3-
year basis, taking advantage of the total depreciable value of the
vehicle (initial price less salvage value) equally (straight-line de-
preciation) over those 3 years. The dealers then sell the inventory
to existing clientele or to individuals in the area at the end of the
third year. Replacement costs are also annualized by means of
paying into a replacement account so that the necessary balance
is available at the time of replacement.

The Express Van would be used primarily to operate the wildlife
watching and sight-seeing tours. The van may also be used to
transport customers to other destinations in the area. The first 10
years of the depreciable value of the van are depreciated equally.

There are various costs associated with maintenance and regis-
tration of these vehicles. The average costs for maintaining and
registering all vehicles associated with the Center were based
upon conversations with local experts and owners of existing
power sports stores. Some of these maintenance costs such as
full-service tune-ups, replacing air filters and changing the oil, etc.
occur multiple times throughout the year, while other types of
maintenance only occur once every year or even less frequently.
Any repairs or replacement costs associated with poor rider han-
dling will be paid by the customer renting the machine. It is the
standard structure used by most ATV, OHV and Snowmobile
rental agencies that the customer assumes the insurance deducti-
ble for these “avoidable” expenses. The various expenses associ-
ated with maintaining these vehicles/machines are displayed in
the following table.

54



Financial Analysis | Expense Projections

Sources Cost

Maintenance Expenses . apw
Type of Price | Quanitity | Number Total AchISItllo.n Cost o
NP Type of Expenditure Per |Purchased |  of P Mall Building Acquisition 2,500,000
Vehicle| Annually | Machines . .
Full Service (fluids, plugs, oil) $350 2 10 $7,000 Safewa\l" Bu"dlng ’a‘chISItlon B
Oil Change. 5200 5 10 |$10,000 Total Acquisition Cost 2,500,000
Replace Drive Belt $200 2 10 54,000
ATVs & Razors |New Tires $500 1 10 $5,000 Hard Costs
New Air Filter $100 3 10 53,000
State Registration 525 1 10 5250 New Roof Mall 400’000
Total Annual Cost $29,250 New Roof Safeway -
e oo e ecerio Faace os0 00
Snowmaobiles [Replace Track (every 2 years) $400 0.5 5 51,000 Interior De Sign 100,000
Registration $30 1 5 $150 . .
Total Annual Cost $5,650 |_|g ht | ng 100, 000
FL.J" Service (ﬂuids,-plugs, oil) $450 1 1 $450 Common Area Amentities 50"000
0il (every 3,000 miles) $100 3 1 $300
Express Van Tires (every 35,000 miles/3.5 years) $1,000 0.285 1 $285 Signage 150’000
Brake Pads & Spark Plugs $1,000 0.5 1 $500
Registration 5200 1 1 5200 HVAC* 150’000
Total Annua-l Cost : $1,735 Electrical * 150’000
Total Combined Annual Maintenance Cost $36,635 P| umbing* 150,000
Drywall 150,000
Asphalt Repair 287,000
FACILITY CoSTs Lar?d Sca i:: 125,000
The location for the Yampa Valley Adventure Center is the Centen- I pd g -
nial Mall building in Craig. This building will be purchased for $2.5 Total Hard Costs 2,462,000
million, and with the soft costs of $662 thousand and hard costs Soft Costs
for needed renovations of $1.7 million, the total project is antici- Architectural & Engineering 53,250
pated to require an initial investment of $4.9 million. Development Fee 71,000
Pre-opening Marketing 250,000
Operating reserve 250,000
Financing Costs 87,985
Total Soft Costs 712,235
Total Uses 5,674,235

55



Financial Analysis | Capital Stack

ExHIBIT COSTS

The Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
will own the experiential exhibits located in the Center’s common
areas. The quoted budget for the exhibits design, build, and instal-
lation is $4.5 million.

These funds will be raised by targeting individuals, local, regional,
state, national, and international environmental groups plus the
State of Colorado and Federal Governments who are responsible
and accountable for the closing the region’s coal fired power
plants and coal mines. The state and federal governments have
promised we will have a “just transition” into the new energy
economy and the Moe’s will be partnering with them to ensure
this project comes to fruition.

Capital Stack

The facility’s capital stack structure includes multiple sources of
capital, including owner equity, debt, grant(s), and Tax Increment
Financing (TIF).

1 https://www.craigdailypress.com/news/councilors-adopt-ur-
ban-renewal-authority-resolution-pushing-project-forward/

The capital stack is well balanced, with just under 20 percent of
project funding from equity, 63 percent from debt, and just under
20 percent from grants.

EQuiTy & DEBT

Mr. and Mrs. Moe and investors will bring $1.1 million in equity
to the project. The anticipated $3.5 million gap will be filled by
debt financing.

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

State law in Colorado authorizes urban renewal authorities
(URAs) and downtown development authorities (DDAs) to use
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) for projects that improve blighted
areas. TIF allows an authority to issue and repay redevelopment
bonds by using the "increment” of increased taxes collected
within the TIF district after improvements are made. Tax incre-
ment revenue may be generated from property or sales taxes.

The location for the Center is in a URA district created by the City
of Craig by resolution in January of 2021. The estimated TIF
amount was left off the capital stack due to conservative evalua-
tions of the project, however the inclusion of TIF in the actual pro-
ject will make the Center much more stable.! Ideally, the TIF will
be frontloaded by a bond, and thereby lower the capital require-
ments and debt service.

Prior to adopting the resolution, the city of Craig had to complete
a conditions survey, determining if blight exists with the city. Ac-
cording to White’s presentation, the city completed that survey on
Oct. 15, 2020 and determined that blight did exist.

56


https://www.craigdailypress.com/news/councilors-adopt-urban-renewal-authority-resolution-pushing-project-forward/
https://www.craigdailypress.com/news/councilors-adopt-urban-renewal-authority-resolution-pushing-project-forward/

Financial Analysis | Capital Stack

TIF negotiation with the other taxing bodies (such as the County
and the School District) are currently underway.

The proposed Center will utilize public participation through TIF
as well as coordinating and facilitating grant applications, and the
funding gap that would be closed by utilizing available tools to
create a project that will be attractive to the private sector. The
public sector has the opportunity to strategically invest to create
an asset that can be leveraged to stabilize seasonal tourism, create
aregional draw, and ultimately help in the City’s and County’s pro-
cess of diversifying its economy. The facility will play a critical
role in setting a new vision for the community and providing a vis-
ual anchor that will help to develop and expand the outdoor rec-
reation industry in the City.

Tax Increment Financing is a win-win approach to community de-
velopment since it benefits both the developer and the taxing en-
tities. The taxing entities still receive the same level of property
tax that they did before the investments, enabling the additional

value added by development to help support the development and
assist the project in reaching stabilization sooner. Additionally,
the taxing entities benefit from the incremental sales taxes cre-
ated by the project.

Given the projected revenues for direct and indirect sales, sales
taxes would contribute $1 million to Craig, $0.5 million to Moffat
County, and $0.8 million to the State of Colorado, a total of $2.3
million. Given the projected additional hotel business, lodging
taxes would contribute $225 thousand to Craig, $200 thousand to
Moffat County, and $250 thousand to the State of Colorado, a total
of $675 thousand. This means that $3 million per year in total tax
revenues will be added by YVAC for Craig, Moffat County, and Col-
orado.

Yampa Valley Activities Center  Tax Topline
Sales Tax & Lodging Tax Rates salesyear5
Retail & Ticket Sales 16,320,000
Indirect (60%) 9,300,000
Hotel 10,000,000
Total 36,120,000
Sales tax to Craig 4% $1,052,800
Sales tax to Moffat County 2% $526,400
Sales tax to Colorado 2.90% $763,280
Total Sales Tax 8.90% $2,342,480
Lodging tax to Craig 2.25% $225,000
Lodging tax to Moffat County 2% $200,000
Lodging tax to Colorado 2.50% $250,000
Total Lodging Tax 6.75% $675,000
Total Taxes $3,017,480

57



Financial Analysis | Capital Stack

GRANTS & TAX CREDITS

Frank and Kerry Moe have applied for a grant from the Colorado
Office of Economic Development and International Trade Oppor-
tunity Zone Technical Assistance to study and plan out the poten-
tial use of geothermal, solar, and wind energy to make the mall
energy independent.

There are many opportunities to obtain grant funding and tax
credits to support the development of the Yampa Valley Adven-
ture Center. It would be worthwhile for the Center to investigate
the option to apply for the following grants. We also recommend
contacting representatives of key organizations to discuss the
project and see if they have any additional recommendations for
funding opportunities. These organizations include: The Colorado
Office of Economic Development and International Trade, Colo-
rado Department of Local Affairs, and the USDA.

CRAIG BUSINESS GRANT

The City of Craig Business Grant Program for 2021 is a two-track
program that provides grants to businesses via a competitive ap-
plication review process.

e TRACK 1: The City will consider providing Site Enhance-
ment Grants to businesses that wish to install traditional
site improvements such as facade improvements, land-
scaping, and other architectural upgrades.

e TRACK 2: The City will consider Economic Development
Grants to businesses that undertake capital investments
(excluding working capital) that bring one or more of the
following to Craig:

0 Addition of jobs to the local economy

O A unique amenity

0 Aregion of draw to the City Core or other commer-
cial district

0 Diversification to the City’s economic base (See
page four for details)

Grants will be awarded in any amount up to $25,000. Grant re-
quests are required to include matching funds from the business
in the amount of 50% of the total project cost. Funding requests
in excess of $10,000 will be considered for projects that provide
exceptional benefit and may be subject to additional applicant cri-
terium.

Smaller projects are also eligible as there is no minimum. Craig
City Council has allocated $85,000 to fund the Craig Business
Grant Program for 2021. All submitted grant proposals must
clearly articulate how each project effectively enhances the City of
Craig.

USDA RURAL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

This program is designed to provide technical assistance and
training for small rural businesses. This program includes enter-
prise grants (technical assistance, renovation of buildings, etc.)
and opportunity grants (leadership training, long-term strategic
planning, etc.). The City of Craig would need to apply on behalf of
the Center.

DOLA RURAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE

The Rural Economic Development Initiative (REDI) program is
designed to help rural communities comprehensively diversify
their local economy and create a more resilient Colorado.

Projects that will be funded include plans, construction, programs,
and capacity building. All applications must create and retain jobs,
either direct or indirect. Projects should fall into one or more of
the following categories:

e Job creation and retention - Both through direct and indi-
rect means.

e (apacity building - Under special circumstances DOLA
will consider funding local economic development

58



Financial Analysis | Capital Stack

capacity. Staff must be tied to a specific outcome, project,
and timeline, which contributes to goals of job creation,
business attraction/retention, and economic resilience.

e Economic resilience - Economic resilience is the ability of
a community’s economy and systems that support the
economy to withstand disruption and thrive in the face of
change.

e Supports entrepreneurial ecosystems - Entrepreneurial
ecosystems provide trainings, networking opportunities,
and infrastructure to support local entrepreneurs.

DOLA ENERGY/MINERAL IMPACT ASSISTANCE FUND GRANT

The purpose of the EIAF Program is to assist political subdivisions
that are socially and/or economically impacted by the develop-
ment, processing, or energy conversion of minerals and mineral
fuels.

DOLA’s intent in administering this grant program is to do as out-
lined in statute and promote sustainable community develop-
ment, increase livability and resilience of communities through
strategic investments in asset-building activities. The most suc-
cessful applications into this program are those that demonstrate
urgency and local commitment to get the project done, show a
high priority for the proposed application, are prepared to start
work, and can demonstrate a relationship to energy and mineral
impact in rural Colorado.

JoHN G. DUNCAN CHARITABLE TRUST

The John G. Duncan Charitable Trust provides $20,000 grants to
support a variety of charitable causes within Colorado. Program
areas of interest include Education, Environment, Animals,
Health, and Public/society benefit.

USDA RURAL ENERGY FOR AMERICA PROGRAM ENERGY AUDIT &

RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE GRANTS

This program assists rural small businesses and agricultural pro-
ducers by conducting and promoting energy audits and providing
Renewable Energy Development Assistance (REDA). Energy au-
dits, renewable energy technical assistance, and renewable en-
ergy site assessments. The City of Craig would need to apply on
behalf of the Center.

RURAL ENERGY FOR AMERICA PROGRAM RENEWABLE ENERGY SYS-

TEMS & ENERGY EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENT LOANS & GRANTS
The program provides guaranteed loan financing and grant fund-
ing to agricultural producers and rural small businesses for re-
newable energy systems or to make energy efficiency improve-
ments. Agricultural producers may also apply for new energy effi-
cient equipment and new system loans for agricultural production
and processing.

C-PACE

Commercial Property Assessed
Clean Energy (C-PACE) is a state-
sponsored financing program de-
signed to give property owners
greater access to financing for re-
newable energy and energy effi-
ciency improvements for building
retrofits or new development pro-
jects.

C-PACE allows for private financ-  SOURCE: Fort Collins DDA

ing payments through a county

special purpose assessment. The C-PACE assessment obligation is
attached to the property so payments can transfer to future own-
ers/tenants if the property is sold. This unique structure provides

59


https://www.wellsfargo.com/private-foundations/duncan-charitable-trust

Financial Analysis | Capital Stack

the potential for building owners to modernize building systems
and increase property value with no upfront cost, competitive fi-
nancing rates, positive cash flow, and repayment terms of up to 25
years.

The goal of C-PACE financing is to facilitate the adoption of clean
energy practices in commercial buildings. As such, it can be used
for any improvements that will save money on utility bills. C-
PACE financed projects typically range between $50,000 to
$3,000,000, but can be higher.

C-PACE funds can also be used for ancillary project costs associ-
ated with any of these improvements. This could include ex-
penses for energy audits, electrical upgrades, or asbestos abate-
ment. The structure of the C-PACE program allows it to offer some
unique financing benefits over more traditional financing options.
1. Building owners might have zero upfront costs since C-
PACE supports financing for up to 100% of all energy effi-
ciency or renewable energy
improvements and related
costs, with competitive rates
and repayment terms of up
to 25 years.
2. For many C-PACE projects,
cost savings realized from
utility bills are greater than
the financing repayments re-
sulting in immediate positive
cash flow.

SOURCE: Fort Collins DDA

The truly unique benefit of C-PACE financing over other funding
avenues is the structure of the repayments. Since C-PACE financ-
ing is repaid through a special purpose assessment on the prop-
erty, the repayments are transferable to a new owner if the build-
ing is sold before the end of the finance term. C-PACE loans are
also typically based on the financial health of the building, not the
financial state of the owner—so building owners don’t assume the
risk associated with a personal guarantee of borrowed funds.

The C-PACE process is intended to progress in parallel with the
typical construction or planning process, as shown in the diagram
below. As soon as the project is identified or in early schematic
design phase, the building owner or project manager should reach
out to the C-PACE office to determine the project’s eligibility. The
C-PACE director will help the project team work through the steps
of securing financing.

60



Financial Analysis | Capital Stack

NEw MARKET TAX CREDITS

The City can facilitate the use of New Market Tax Credits (NMTC),
a program administered through the U.S. Department of the
Treasury Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFI)
Fund. This provides federal tax credits to businesses which locate
in targeted areas.

Through the New Market Tax Credit Program, the CDFI Fund allo-
cates tax credit authority to Community Development Entities
(CDEs) through a competitive application process. CDEs are fi-
nancial intermediaries through which private capital flows from
an investor to a qualified business located in a low-income com-
munity. CDEs use their authority to offer tax credits to investors
in exchange for equity in the CDE. Using the capital from these
equity investments, CDEs can make loans and investments to
businesses operating in low-income communities on better rates
and terms and more flexible features than the market.

The NMTC Program helps businesses with access to financing that
is flexible and affordable. Investment decisions are made at the
community level, and typically 94 to 96 percent of NMTC invest-
ments into businesses involve more favorable terms and condi-
tions than the market typically offers. Terms can include lower
interest rates, flexible provisions such as subordinated debt,
lower origination fees, higher loan-to-values, lower debt coverage
ratios and longer maturities.

While the CDFI Fund does not directly finance specific projects—
the CDFI Fund does provide financing to CDFIs located throughout
the U.S. that, in turn, provide financing to local businesses. See
Appendix D for a list of CDFIs in Colorado.

2https://www.ci.craig.co.us/residents/craig oppor-
tunity zone.php

OPPORTUNITY ZONE

The Center is within the Craig Opportunity Zone2. The Oppor-
tunity Zone program offers a temporary deferral, reduction and
potential elimination of certain federal capital gains when they
are invested into long-term investments within the Opportunity
Zone areas through an Opportunity Fund.

Opportunity Zones offer investors the following incentives for
putting their capital to work in low-income communities:

1. Atemporary tax deferral for capital gains reinvested in an
Opportunity Fund. The deferred gain must be recognized
on the earlier of the date on which the opportunity zone
investment is sold or December 31, 2026.

2. Astep-up in basis for capital gains reinvested in an Oppor-
tunity Fund. The basis of the original investment is in-
creased by 10 percent if the investment in the qualified
opportunity zone fund is held by the taxpayer for at least
5 years, and by an additional 5 percent if held for at least
7 years, excluding up to 15 percent of the original gain
from taxation.

61


https://www.ci.craig.co.us/residents/craig_opportunity_zone.php
https://www.ci.craig.co.us/residents/craig_opportunity_zone.php

Financial Analysis | Capital Stack

3. A permanent exclusion from taxable income of capital
gains from the sale or exchange of an investment in a qual-
ified opportunity zone fund, if the investment is held for at
least 10 years. (Note: this exclusion applies to the gains
accrued from an investment in an Opportunity Fund, not
the original gains).

YVAC meets the program’s following qualifications for businesses:
e 70 percent of the business’ tangible property needs to be:
0 Acquired after 2017 from an unrelated party.
0 Used in any opportunity zone 70 percent or more
of the time.
0 Original use property or be substantially im-
proved.
e Abusiness needs to:
0 Get 50 percent of its revenue from active conduct
in any opportunity zone.
0 Use 40 percent or more of its intangible property
in any opportunity zone.
0 Not hold non-qualified financial property
0 Not operate a sin business.

RURAL JUMP-START PROGRAM
Moffat County is eligible to participate in the Rural Jump-Start
Zone program. This is a tax relief program for new businesses and
new hires who locate into Jump-Start zones. The program offers
the following benefits:

e Relief from state income taxes for the new business

o Relief from the state sales & use tax for the new business

o Relief from county and municipal business personal prop-

erty tax for the new business
o Relief from state income taxes for the employee

This program is jointly administered by the Colorado Office of
Economic Development and International Trade, the Colorado

Economic Development Commission, and the Colorado Depart-
ment of Revenue. The following entities all play a role in the use
of the Rural Jumpstart Program:

e Institutes of Higher Education. The institutes of higher
education (IHE's) are the two- and four-year public col-
leges in Colorado, as well as certain specialty schools. The
[HE's play a key role in this program, as every business
that applies to the program must apply through an IHE
and be endorsed by that IHE. The IHE's have are associ-
ated with specific counties, so not every IHE can work in
every zone.

e Counties. Moffat County is designated distressed by the
EDC, so it is up to the county must pass a resolution to of-
fer tax relief.

e Municipalities. The City of Craig has already passed a
resolution to participate.

e Businesses. A business that wishes to participate in this
program must be a new business that is locating into the
Jump-Start zone. Furthermore, the business mustapply to
the [HE and be endorsed by the IHE.

e Employees

0 Employees who wish to participate in the program
must be working for a business that has been ap-
proved by the EDC. Employees must be making at
least the county median wage, and must work for
the new business for six months to receive bene-
fits.

COLORADO ENHANCED RURAL ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM

The Colorado Enterprise Zone (EZ) Program was created by the
Colorado Legislature to promote a business friendly environment
in economically distressed areas by offering state income tax
credits that incentivize businesses to locate and develop and non-
profit organizations to assist with the needs of these communities.

62



Financial Analysis | Capital Stack

The Enhanced Rural Enterprise Zone (EREZ) program provides
greater financial incentives to businesses to promote and encour-
age new job creation in designated economically lagging rural En-
terprise Zone counties. Moffat County is designated an Enhanced
Rural Enterprise Zone.

Taxpayers investing in Enterprise Zones can earn a credit on their
Colorado income tax by planning and executing specific economic
development activities. The following incentives can be earned by
businesses located in Enterprise Zones.

SOURCE: https://www.ci.craig.co.us/residents/incentives.php

Businesses located in an EREZ may qualify for an additional credit
when hiring net new employees; the EREZ New Employee Credit
is in addition to the other New Employee tax credits available to
businesses operating in a standard Enterprise Zone.

Each income tax year, a business located in an EZ must complete
a pre-certification application prior to engaging in an activity eli-
gible to earn any of the business tax credits listed. At the end of
the income tax year, a business must certify that the activities
were performed.

SOURCE: https://www.ci.craig.co.us/residents/incentives.php

63


https://www.ci.craig.co.us/residents/incentives.php
https://www.ci.craig.co.us/residents/incentives.php

Financial Analysis | Net Operating Income & Cash Flow Projections

Net Operating Income & Cash Flow Projections

To arrive at Net Cash Flow before consideration of taxes, revenues
from Tax Increment Financing is added. Interest on the debt taken
to fund construction of YVAC debt (debt service) is subtracted, as-
sumed to be 5.5 percent of roughly $2.5 million. As noted above,
Net Cash Flow before taxes becomes positive around year 4.

Net Operating Income YrO Yrl Yr 2 Yr3 Yr4 Yr5
Net Operating Income ($132,947)  ($63,269)  $15,454  $292,963  $604,150
Cash Flow Yr0 Yrl Yr2 Yr3 Yr 4 Yr5
Net Operating Income ($132,947)  ($63,269) $15,454  $292,963  $604,150
Expense Ratio -5% -2% 0% 8% 15%
TIF to Project (from the TIF tab) $21,300 $21,300 $21,300 $21,300 $21,300
TIF % 100% 90% 90% 90% 75%
TIF to Owner $21,300 $19,170 $19,170 $19,170 $15,975
Debt Service ($184,034) ($184,034) ($184,034) ($184,034) ($184,034)
Initial Equity Investment (from the S&U tab) (51,468,618)
Net Cash Flow before taxes ($1,468,618) ($295,681) ($228,133) ($149,410) $128,099  $436,091

Cumulative cash flow

($1,468,618) ($1,764,298) ($1,992,431) (52,141,842) ($2,013,742) ($1,577,651)

64




Project Plan |

PROJECT PLAN

Business Model

CREDO, VISION, AND MISSION STATEMENT
Environmentally Conscious Tourism & Recreation at Its Finest.

Be the Premier Base Camp for a Northwest Colorado Adventure.

To Develop, Promote, Protect, and Preserve Northwest Colorado’s
Great Outdoors for the enjoyment of an active outdoor lifestyle for
the residents and visitors of Northwest Colorado.

ROLE OF THE CENTER

The Yampa Valley Adventure Center is a regionally based organi-
zation dedicated to economic development of Northwest Colo-
rado through the creation of jobs and business startups in the out-
door and indoor recreation industries for locals who are being
negatively affected from the closure of local coal mines and coal
fired power plants and other fossil fuel contractions.

YVAC is intended to make a positive difference in the region’s local
economies by being creative, determined and focused on the fu-
ture and its opportunities to diversify the economy while mining
the new outdoor business opportunities afforded the region by
the natural beauty and awe inspiring 3.5 million acres of recrea-
tional land in Moffat, Routt, and Rio Blanco Counties.

The goal is that the Center will “Be the Spark that Ignited the Re-
birth and Reinvention of a Resilient and Growing Diversified Craig
& Moffat County Economy.”

Our Pledge: To buy local and build local if the local construction
and material bids and costs are within 6 percent of the lowest and
best bid. Where there are existing local businesses that are com-
patible and consistent with the Business Standards, Business Plan,
and Overall Concept and Goals of the Yampa Valley Adventure
Center, we will negotiate to co-locate them in the facility.

Ways to support the project:
e First, an excellent opportunity to save money is to become
a member of the Yampa Valley Adventure Center.
e Second, you as an individual, group, organization, or com-
pany can sponsor of one of the exhibits in the Colorado
Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame. Ex-
hibit sponsors have naming rights for the exhibit.

YVAC would serve as the base camp for exploration and enjoy-
ment of the great outdoors as “Northwest Colorado’s Premier Out-
fitter”.

Customers will come to YVAC because YVAC will be a unique and
diverse all-in-one-center and Base Camp for the exploration and
enjoyment of the Great Outdoors. Considering the evolution of the
“Mall” this concept is on the cutting edge of how to redevelop and
make relevant and profitable a retail center. Malls across the
country are moving more into entertainment.

Complementary venues strategically collocated in the Colorado
Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame is an out-
standing example of a venue likely to draw visitors. The Experi-
ence being integrated among the other amenities will draw

65



Project Plan | Business Model

visitors through YVAC. Rentals such as a hostel, food and bever-
age, and guides will make YVAC a true Base Camp.

Customers for recreation could choose YVAC and the Colorado
Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame instead of the
others because of the completeness and uniqueness of the com-
plex. They may also choose YVAC partially because of the mys-
tique of Colorado, including the largest Elk Herds in North Amer-
ica, abundant deer, and antelope, and the myriad and diverse out-
door recreation possibilities in exploring the three contiguous
counties. The YVAC provides a total immersion into nature and a
base camp to explore and experience all that is offered from the
vast natural expanse of three Northwest Colorado counties in-
cluding nature & outdoor education, history, recreation, health
and fitness, dining, and shopping.

KEY PARTNERS

Key partners include City of Craig, Moffat County, Craig Urban
Renewal Authority, Moffat County Local Marketing District,
Moffat County Tourism Association, Colorado Just Transition
Team for Coal Reliant Communities, Colorado Department of Lo-
cal Affairs, Colorado Office of Economic Development and Inter-
national Trade/ Outdoor Recreation, Colorado Parks and Wildlife,
Bureau of Land Management, National Park Service, National and
State Forest Service, U.S. Fish and Game, and Federal Wildlife Re-
serves. Dimensional Innovations will design the facility.

To complete the leadership team, needed are:

e Lead person in outdoor sporting goods retail.

e Lead person with outdoor experience (specifically in
Northwest Colorado), with heavy management experi-
ence.

e Lead sales and marketing person or firm with specific out-
door experience and deep knowledge of digital market-
ing.

e Bookkeeping/Accountant, preferably with experience in
outdoor recreation.

There are many associations whose missions and members align
with the Center. It would be worth exploring which of the follow-
ing associations the Center could benefit from joining.

e Qutdoor Industry Association

e Outdoor Recreation Roundtable

e America Outdoors

e American Mountain Guides Association

e American Sportfishing Association

e American Trails

e Archery Trade Association

e Association of Qutdoor Recreation and Education

e The Corps Network

e International Snowmobile Manufacturers Association

e National Forest Recreation Association

e National Association of RV Parks and Campgrounds
e Park Partners

e The Firearm Industry Trade Association

e Qutdoor Writers Association of America

e People for Bikes

e Professional Trail Builders Association

e Recreational Off-Highway Vehicle Association
e Snowsports Industries America

e Society of Qutdoor Recreation Professionals

e Specialty Vehicle Institute of America

e Sports and Fitness Industry Association

e Grassroots Qutdoor Alliance

66


https://outdoorindustry.org/
https://recreationroundtable.org/about-us/
https://www.americaoutdoors.org/
https://amga.com/
https://asafishing.org/
https://www.americantrails.org/
https://archerytrade.org/
https://www.aore.org/
https://corpsnetwork.org/
https://www.snowmobile.org/
http://nfra.org/
https://www.arvc.org/
http://www.parkpartners.org/
https://www.nssf.org/
https://owaa.org/
https://www.peopleforbikes.org/
https://www.trailbuilders.org/
https://rohva.org/
https://snowsports.org/
https://www.recpro.org/
https://svia.org/
https://www.sfia.org/
https://www.grassrootsoutdoors.com/

Project Plan | Volunteers

e National Council of Attractions and Experiences Tenants & Retailers
e U.S. Travel Association

The YVAC is looking for tenants whose businesses or services are

¢ Colorado Hotel and Lodging Association “Outdoor & Indoor” recreationally oriented. The project is specif-
e Colorado Restaurant Association ically designed to create a strong Yampa Valley brand—so the
e Commercial Real Estate Development Association businesses that locate in the Center need to fit into the adventure
e Colorado Outfitters Association and active lifestyle niche.
Volunteers INCENTIVES
The Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado Great Outdoors There are incentives available to businesses that locate in the
Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame is a community-based project Yampa Valley Adventure Center.
designed to help diversify the local economy, create jobs, create e The YVAC is in an Opportunity Zone which offers:
business opportunities, and draw tourism. There are numerous 0 Temporary deferral of taxes on previously earned
volunteer positions available that can enable you to invest your capital gains.
time in the community to help attract new residents to replace 0 Basis step-up of previously earned capital gains
those being displaced as the fossil fuel workers move out of the invested.
area, retain our youth through amenities that are attractive to 0 Permanent exclusion of taxable income on new
their recreational desires, and offer amenities that will help create gains.
a strong local economy that appreciates its seniors. e As an incentive to recruit potential outdoor recreation
businesses to lease space in the Center, the Moe’s will con-
Volunteer positions include: sider offering up to 1 year of lease abatement.
e Board Members
e Ambassadors
» Fund Raisers The Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colo-
e Office and Clerical

rado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum &
Hall of Fame is located within an Opportunity
Zone and within the Craig Urban Renewal Au-
thority.

67


https://www.ustravel.org/programs/national-council-attractions-experiences-ncae
https://www.ustravel.org/programs/national-council-attractions-experiences-ncae
https://chla.com/
https://corestaurant.org/
https://www.naiop.org/
http://www.coloradooutfitters.org/

Project Plan | Tenants & Retailers

CONFERENCES

Hunting events and expos represent an excellent opportunity to
meet potential partners and tenants for the Center, as well as to
advertise and secure interest in the facility. It will be important to
attend these events both during the planning stages, as well as af-
ter the facility is operational. The goal should be to make connec-
tions and explore opportunities to host additional events and con-
ferences in Town. Several major events are described below.

Western Hunting & Conservation Expo

The hunting industry offers an extensive

line of products and services including

outfitting / guiding services, equipment,

ammo, clothing, hunting data/statistics, taxidermy services, tro-
phy hunts, and more. Professionals in the business and hunters
alike come together at events such as the Western Hunting & Con-
servation Expo (“WHCE”) each year to market their products and
services. This is also where the world-record scoring deer and elk
mounts are on display. The WHCE is open to the public and has
seen increased attendance during the past decade.

In February 2020, the Western Hunting & Conservation Expo was
held in Salt Lake City, UT3 and raised more than $8.7 million for
wildlife conservation through auctions and tag drawings.
Throughout the weekend over 60,000 people walked the 600
thousand square feet of exhibit space to support more than 500
vendors and exhibitors, many of which have already committed to
return to exhibit at the 2021 Expo. For many outfitters, the West-
ern Expo provides the biggest opportunity of the year to meet new
clients and fill their schedules for the year. The Expo focused its
proceeds on conservation efforts to preserve and maintain the an-
imal populations within the State of Utah.

3 Sportsmen for Fish & Wildlife

The Shot Show

Aside from the WHCE, the next largest hunt-

ing event show in the U.S. is the Shot Show

held in Las Vegas, NV. The Shot Show is an

exposition of combined firearms, ammuni-

tion, law enforcement, hunting knifes, outdoor apparel, optics,
and related products and services. The Shot Show attracts buyers
from all fifty states and more than 100 countries. It is owned by
the National Shooting Sports Foundation (NSSF). While the WHCE
is geared specifically towards hunters and hunting outfitters, the
Shot Show is a “trade only” show and attendance is restricted to
the shooting, hunting and outdoor trade and commercial buyers
and sellers of military, law enforcement and tactical products, and
services only. For these reasons, the WHCE has become the
world’s largest, most popular convention for big game hunters.

The International Sportsmen’s Expo

The International Sportsmen’s Expo

(ISE) consistently attracts over 100,000

attendees and nearly 1,500 exhibiting

companies. The ISE is open to all individ-

uals and businesses associated with the outdoor recreation indus-
try. This industry includes adventure-travel, hunting, fishing,
shooting-sports, boating and camping products and services.

These shows are held during the first quarter throughout the larg-
est western United States markets including Sacramento, Denver,
Scottsdale, and Salt Lake City. Each of the four ISE shows display
from 300 to over 600 leading resorts and lodges, outdoor-product
manufacturers, boat dealers, regional and specialty retailers,
hunting and fishing guides and outfitters, national and local con-
servation organizations, state and federal government agencies,
and non-profit groups.

68


https://sfw.net/2020/02/25/2020-western-hunting-conservation-expo-raises-8-7-million-for-conservation/#:~:text=Conservation-,2020%20Western%20Hunting%20%26%20Conservation%20Expo%20Raises%20%248.7%20Million%20for%20Conservation,Center%20to%20enjoy%20the%20show.

Project Plan | Stewardship Matrix

The Deer & Turkey Expo

The Deer & Turkey Expos (DTE) are held annu-
ally in 6 states located in the central United
States including Kentucky, Michigan, Ohio, Wis-
consin, Florida, and Illinois. Approximately 80
thousand attendees attend these expos each
year. Of these attendees, 97 percent hunt white-
tail deer and 8 out of every 10 attendees are bow

Stewardship Matrix

hunters. While the WHCE attracts both rifle and bow hunters, the
DTE is primarily an expo for bow hunters. The WHCE held in Utah
is mostly geared towards hunters who prefer mule deer and elk,
but the DTE attracts those hunters interested in hunting whitetail
deer due to the higher population of whitetail in the central and

eastern States.

This Matrix provides a sequence of the next steps for high-level tasks that need to be completed, as well as the stewardship roles connected
with oversight of each task. The timeline is by season to provide flexibility, while still maintaining an ideal flow for project implementation.

|

Identify Key Partners. Mr. & Mrs. Moe Spring 2021
Finalize TIF Approval City of Craig, Moffat County, School District | Summer 2021
Update Firm Construction Costs. Dimensional Innovations Summer 2021
Finalize Capital Stack & Funding Plan. Mr. & Mrs. Moe & Better City Summer 2021
Apply for Grants. Mr. & Mrs. Moe & City of Craig Summer 2021
Create Phase 1 Marketing Collateral Marketing Firm Summer 2021
Obtain Financing. Mr. & Mrs. Moe Summer/Fall 2021
Marketing Plan to Recruit Retailers, Participants, & Partners. Summer /Fall 2021
Apply for Tax Credit Programs. Mr. & Mrs. Moe & City of Craig Summer/Fall 2021
Fundraising Plan for the Colorado Great Outdoors Experi-

ence/Museim & Hall of Fame Exhibits. P Summer/Fall 2021
Recruit Retailers, Participants, & Partners. Mr. & Mrs. Moe Summer 2021
Redevelop Building. Dimensional Innovations Fall 2022

Hire YVAC Employees. Mr. & Mrs. Moe, Retailers, & Other Lessees Fall 2022

Execute Phase 1 Marketing Plan. Marketing Firm Summer 2022
YVAC Grand Opening. Mr. & Mrs. Moe & Other Stakeholders 2022

Launch Phase 2 Marketing Plan Marketing Firm 2022

69



MARKETING PLAN

To accomplish the goals of the Yampa Valley Adventure Center such as websites, blogs, Facebook pages, apps, etc.
and Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of 3. Earned media—word-of-mouth promotion such as Face-
Fame, a robust sales and marketing plan is critical. book likes/comments, twitter posts or mentions, review-

ers, and enthusiasts.
The target customers that YVAC will need to attract include:

1. Tourists, Travelers, and businesspeople already in Steam- The Center could hire a marketing manager or marketing firm to
boat Springs in Routt County, Meeker in Rio Blanco create the advertisements and conduct ad placement services.
County, Craig in Moffat County, and Baggs and Little Snake The marketing strategy is divided into four phases.

in Carbon County.

a. The Center should strive to at-
tract those going to Steamboat
Springs or other destinations to
make a day or two of their va-
cation time spent at YVAC.

2. Residents of the four counties.

3. Potential visitors who have an interest
in exploring and enjoying the great out-
doors and our western/pioneer history
and heritage.

Marketing Strategy

There are several ways of promoting a product,
service, or offering. Three common ones are
listed below:

1. Paid Media—This is traditional adver-
tising, such as print, television, radio,
or billboard ads.

2. Owned Media—Functional-use media
with some crossover into promotion,

70



Marketing Plan | Phase 1: Branding, PR, & Paid Media

The primary goal of the proposed marketing methods is to spread
awareness of the proposed Center. Early exposure of the Center
will decrease the time spent during the “start-up” phase associ-
ated with the Center, as an increase in visitation would impact sta-
bility and profitability. These marketing methods will build antic-
ipation for the proposed Center and maintain momentum needed
to attract the types of sponsors and operators that will help make
the project successful.

Phase 1: Branding, PR, & Paid Media

Phase 1 Marketing should begin two to three months prior to the
Center’s Grand Opening. The goal of this stage of marketing is to
increase awareness of the YVAC and get people interested in vis-
iting—especially those who are already familiar with the area and
participate in outdoor recreation.

The marketing strategy for this phase includes developing a brand
identity and utilizing public relations and paid media.

BRANDING

Branding is a powerful tool in marketing, and something for the
Center to develop early on. Branding creates a cohesive look—
with consistent use of messaging and visuals, which includes col-
ors, fonts, and types of images.

MascorTs

The YVAC is planned as a family friendly venue, with activities and
appeal for all ages and ability levels. As part of the appeal for chil-
dren, the YVAC will have mascots: Lois and Clark, the Adventure
Kids. The following image is an initial concept for what these
characters will look like. However, this image is available for pur-
chase via depositphotos or ShutterStock, and while it may be used
for the Center if the license is purchased, it would not be for the
exclusive use of the Center.

YVAC mascots: Lois & Clark The Adventure Kids

We recommend that the Center hire a character design artist to
create the official Lois and Clark Adventure Kids specifically for
the Center. The benefits to having characters designed for the
Center include:

¢ Exclusive use of the characters means that the only place
that you can find these characters is in advertising for the
Center.

e Variety of uses available through contracting an artist to
create the visuals, because visuals with the same charac-
ters can be made showcasing them doing a variety of ac-
tivities. The Adventure Kids could be rock climbing, bird
watching, fishing, hiking, or any number of other activities.

e Merchandising opportunities since the characters are
the property of the Center, they can be put on merchan-
dise that is exclusively available for purchase at the Cen-
ter, creating souvenir options for visitors.

71



Marketing Plan | Phase 1: Branding, PR, & Paid Media

Once an artist or firm has been hired, they can be used to create
Examples of other entities that have branded specific characters future versions of the same characters to meet future branding
for their business include Sea World’s “Shamu,” Chuck E. Cheeses’ and advertising needs.
“Chuck,” and Olive Garden’s “Ollie the Olive.”

PUBLIC RELATIONS

The use of Public Relations is a strategy that can inform a wide
audience about the Center without the expenses of advertising. As
a major regional initiative to support economic development, and
as a new hub for recreation and a variety of amenities, there is a
lot that needs to be reported about Yampa Valley Adventure Cen-
ter.

] ] Public Relations involves building long term relationships that
Source: vintagelpscollector.com ~ Source: Business Insider will be used over the years. In the short term, the Center can focus
on keeping the media informed about the development and

launch of the Center.

Tasks to develop Public Relations include identifying news outlets
who would have interest in reporting on the Center. These could
include:

e Local or regional newspapers and news stations who want
to tell the community about new developments.

e Industry specific groups and magazines who would be in-
terested in reporting on the services and offerings pro-
vided by the Center.

e Supportive entities who are invested in sharing news re-
garding economic development wins in the region. These
may cover topics such as the businesses locating in the
Center, or about the development and progress of the Cen-
ter itself. Some of these might share news via their social
media pages or websites.

Source: Olive Garden

Character design artists can be found on freelance networks such
as UpWork, Fiverr, Freelance.com, or 99Designs. There are also
numerous studios whose field of activity is focused exactly on
character design, such as FastCharacters, SOSFactory, ML]Jarmin,
and GraphicMama. Outreach to artists in Colorado may also be a

good approach for creating branded mascots [t is important to provide updates on the topics of interest to each

of these groups at appropriate times. Consider them stakeholders

72



Marketing Plan | Phase 2: Targeted Marketing & Influencers

in the process, and provide press releases and information that
they can pass on to their networks.

PAID MEDIA

Paid Media is a broad category that includes a wide variety of tra-
ditional advertising methods. The best way to utilize many of
these approaches with new technology however is via Targeted
Marketing (this includes advertisements in print, television
streaming services, or online). These would best be utilized after
the Center’s Grand Opening.

Billboards, however, are one type of paid media that may be useful
before the opening, because it can help provide a general aware-
ness to those in the region and provide directions to those travel-
ing on how to stop by and visit YVAC.

Phase 2: Targeted Marketing & Influencers

Phase 2 Marketing should begin just prior to the Center’s Grand
Opening and continue through the first year of operation, with lots
of advertising activities in the first three months of opening. The
goal of this stage of marketing is to increase awareness of the
YVAC and get people interested in visiting—especially those who
are already familiar with the area and participate in outdoor rec-
reation.

TARGETED MARKETING

Targeted Marketing uses a variety of methods to find the ideal
“target” to whom advertisements can be presented in any medium
(picture, copy, audio, video) and in any venue (social media, apps,
websites, streaming TV, magazines, etc.). Methods to identify the
target audience include:

Geographics

e Geo-fence to send real time ads to visitors (anyone within
a specified area in a specified time frame).

e Geo-frame prior visitors (anyone who has been in a speci-
fied area in a specified time frame).

Demographics
e Select the target gender, age, education, income, etc. and
direct advertisements to people who fall within the speci-
fied categories.

Psychographics
e Selectvalues, attitudes, interests, opinions, and lifestyle of
clientele, and market to those groups.

Technology has made marketing to these target types simple, as
people grant permissions to apps that allow the data to be anony-
mized, yet still provide the geographic (based on GPS, positioning)
demographic (tied to zip code of origin for the device), and psy-
chographic information—tied back to devices so that advertise-
ments can be directed to these target groups.

We recommend that the Center work with a marketing firm that
provides targeted marketing ad placement services to create the
profile for customers to target and specify the ad placement ac-
cording to this profile. The advertising firm will then be able to
effectively place advertisements to these potential visitors di-
rectly. We recommend using online advertisements that show up
on the user’s device, because then the YVAC is only paying for ads
that are viewed (print advertisements you pay for all ads placed,
and you are unable to track views).

After an ad has run for a few days the marketing firm would be
able to run an optimization based on the successful ads already
placed. This optimization process refines the targeting further to
maximize the overall campaign success rate. The Center will want

73



Marketing Plan | Phase 3: User Generated Content Marketing

to work with the advertising firm to ensure that this optimization
takes place.

INFLUENCERS

Influencers are people who have large followings on social media
sites. When these individuals share information, there are many
people who take notice. This can be a powerful resource for the
Center, as having influencers as brand advocates can drive visita-
tion to the Center.

The process to utilize influencers for marketing includes:

1. Identify influencers who would be interested in the Center
and able to reach a wide audience. These could be individ-
uals in the region, well known athletes or sportspersons,
industry leaders, and advocacy groups.

2. Conduct outreach to these influencers to inform them
about the Center and invite them to the Grand Opening (or
to visit shortly thereafter) so they can see for themselves
what YVAC has to offer.

3. Keep in touch with these influencers, follow their sites for
reviews, and express thanks when they give a shoutout or
review about the Center to their following.

The Center should also consult with the marketing firm as to their
recommendations on best practices for conducting outreach to,
and building relationships with, influencers.

Phase 3: User Generated Content Marketing
While paid media, owned media, and earned media are valuable
in terms of driving behavior, earned media comes at no cost to the
provider or owner of the offering and is often much more effective
than paid or earned media. Phase 3 is that the Center strategically
positions itself to take advantage of a variation of earned media
known as user-generated content.

Phase 3 would begin after the Center is open, potentially after the
first three to six months of operation. While still using targeted
marketing and influencers, there should be a concerted shift to in-
crease the prevalence of User Generated Content as a key compo-
nent of the marketing efforts, as this is a highly compelling form
of marketing and likely to reach a broad audience in a way likely
to catch the interest of a broader population.

User-generated content (UGC) is unpaid advertising that is cre-
ated and distributed by fans of a product or brand. It can include
just about anything: testimonials, tweets, blog posts, videos, pic-
tures, snaps, and more.

UGC includes any pictures, videos, text, or audio that is recorded
and posted by users online to social media platforms or wikis.

Key Findings:

e Two-thirds of consumers actively seek online reviews be-
fore making purchases.

e 88 percent of consumers trust online reviews as much as
they trust the people they know.

e Three out of every four consumers rely on social media
content to influence their purchasing decisions.

e 74 percent of millennial travelers say user-generated con-
tent has a greater impact on them than professional pho-
tos.

e Video is the preferred visual content option for users. The
average engagement rate for Facebook video posts is
twice that of non-video posts. Moreover, Facebook videos
are shared 89 times more than other content.

e Snapchat now reaches more aged 13-34 in the US than Fa-
cebook or Instagram.

e Inaddition to YouTube, Pinterest, Instagram, and Twitter,
other UGC powerhouses include TikTok, Devianart, Flickr,

74



Marketing Plan | Phase 3: User Generated Content Marketing

and Reddit. Many people scan the reviews on Amazon, With an effective UGC, Adventure Centers or Park can become
Yelp, and Google. well-known and popular brands. UGC can be cost-effective in
helping the Center understand the experiences of content creators

A survey of User-Generated Content* showed a preference for and leverage their input to create earned marketing.

sharing posts about visiting destinations and restaurants, and that
UGC had a high impact on purchasing decisions.

Implications - Market with User-Generated Content

User-generated content increasingly influences people’s decision-
making about products and services, particularly selection of des-
tinations. Therefore, it is increasingly important to discover, cu-
rate, and display content created by people who love the brand.

42019 survey, US, UK, Australia by Stackla - link
75


https://stackla.com/resources/reports/bridging-the-gap-consumer-marketing-perspectives-on-content-in-the-digital-age/

Marketing Plan | Phase 3: User Generated Content Marketing

EXAMPLES OF USER-GENERATED CONTENT are chosen and featured in the Friday fan photo album, which re-
ceives thousands of likes, shares and comments.”
TOURISM AUSTRALIA

Tourism Australia's Social Media Program focuses on stimulating

conversations about Australia through key platforms including GOPRO _ ]
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and Pinterests. GoPro has delegated the power of marketing to its customers and

constantly creates campaigns, contests, and challenges to encour-
age its users to create valuable and influential content for their
campaigns.

“Our Facebook page has a high level of engagement and concen-
trates on showcasing beautiful and unique images from all over ANTELOPE ISLAND STATE PARK
Australia. We mainly post user-generated content, which encour-
ages fans to continue sharing their own stories and experiences
on an ongoing basis. Every Friday the best images from the week

Antelope Island is a State Park in Utah. There are a variety of vid-
eos shared on YouTube that were created by visitors to the park.
The most-viewed videos fit into three categories:

5 Tourism Australia - link

76


https://www.tourism.australia.com/en/events-and-tools/industry-resources/building-your-tourism-business/using-social-media.html

Marketing Plan | Phase 3: User Generated Content Marketing

1) Nature watching—The most-viewed video in the category
(with more than 800,000 views) shows coyotes attacking These types of videos drive interest in the Stake Park while giving
a mule deer. Other nature videos show the annual bison viewers an authentic opinion of the park.
round up, as well as panoramic or cinematic shots.
2) Camping/Hunting—The second most-viewed video (with
752,000 views) comes from travel blogger Alyssa Ramos,
who camped on a nearby island she travelled to by pad-
dleboard. Other top videos show a hunter who won mule
deer tags.
3) Daytrips and Tourism—Daytrips and tourism videos rep-
resent the remainder of the top videos. This category in-
cludes family vloggers, as well as professionally produced
tourism videos from Utah State Parks and Recreation
(34,000 views and the Davis Area CVB (20,000 views).

One of the best examples of positive UGC for the island comes from
local vlogger LoganDBeck, who shares his videos in both English
and Taiwanese. His video has more than 67,000 views, a majority
of whom are from outside the United States.

SOURCE: Youtube.com

GARDNER VILLAGE

Gardner Village, a unique retail center with old-timey charm, at-
tracts vloggers with large view counts which show off the best of
the attraction’s offerings. The Village provides a range of activities
and events which are enjoyable for the vloggers and engaging for
audiences.

Top videos include the Village’s dungeon escape room, which has
more than 1.1 million views.

77


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCXpbSh6g1ZWHxk-UQv86VzA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ITGF3nR5OB8

Marketing Plan | Phase 4: Refine Marketing Approach

USER-GENERATED CONTENT STRATEGY

Businesses that encourage and facilitate User Generated Content
increase their likelihood of being discovered by new clientele—
with the bonus of an unpaid referral. YVAC should identify activ-
ities, events, visitation packages, etc. that will drive visitation and
encourage user generated content. Possibilities include creating
and publishing a #hashtag for the Center, holding photography
contests or ensuring photo opportunities are readily available in
the form of backdrops that people can stand in front of to take a
picture, inviting people to leave reviews on Google, Yelp, and other
platforms, etc.

Because children are strong influences on family decisions about
recreation, the Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado
Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame aim to

become the cool place for kids. User Generated Content strategies
should be especially designed to allow kids the chance to shine
and for families to share their YVAC experiences with their net-
works.

The Center can use comments on videos and photos to gauge the
level of interest in YVAC and how it is received from people who
view the UGC.

Phase 4: Refine Marketing Approach

Information should guide decision-making, so it is important for
YVAC to identify the conversion rate to learn how successful each
marketing campaign is at bringing in new clientele. Having a
strategy to get this feedback will help the Center be effective in
ongoing marketing efforts.

Additionally, Phase 4 involves expanding the Center’s position as
basecamp for adventure in the region by increasing the Center’s
involvement in outdoor activities. YVAC should work with key
stakeholders in the community to encourage additional events or
competitions that can be held in the region, promoting the Center
as a driving force behind these events and utilizing space at the
Center as a meeting point (for awards ceremonies, speeches, or
other related content). These events and competitions will in-
crease visitation in and around the region and will aid in spread-
ing the awareness of the Center.

REFINE APPROACH

Once the Center has collected data on marketing conversion rate
over time and via a variety of marketing techniques, the market-
ing plan should be further refined. Marketing needs may shift and
change over time, so YVAC should have a regular schedule for re-
defining the marketing plan, on either an annual or biannual basis.

Some ideas for collecting feedback include:

78



Marketing Plan | Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation

e Visitors could be invited to take a short and simple survey
about their experience and how they heard about the Cen-
ter.

o (lick-rates and conversions via targeted marketing can be
analyzed to see which ads had the best response rate.

e Visitation patterns can be analyzed to see how seasonality,
news articles, and other factors may have impacted visit-
ation.

EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

Activities and events could be either hosted by the Center or in
nearby areas to connect the Center to other events. These should
be developed to draw people to the community for experiences.
Ideally any events planned will be repeatable—often when people
enjoy an event one year, they will return the following year, bring-
ing friends along. This way events build a following of individuals
and groups who make it a tradition to visit for the annual event.
Many tourist communities thrive on event based tourism, and the
power of repeated events should be taken into consideration.

Black Island Farms is a 50-year business that hosts an annual
corn maze, cow train, straw pyramid, giant slide, chute slide, corn
box, corn snake, pig races, and concessions.

A PumpKkin Chunkin’ is an annual contest in which several teams
compete to hurl a pumpkin solely by mechanical means for dis-
tance. The event in Delaware was popularized by coverage of the
event on the Science Channel with a peak of more than 30,000
spectators attending the event. Copy-cat versions of the event
have been held across the country and are very popular.

Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation

Center is at a marketing advantage because there is a specific
niche that is the focus of the entire center—namely outdoor rec-
reation. Within that niche there are many sub-categories. Effec-
tive marketing will require that consideration be given to the va-
riety of users so messaging and advertising can be directed to each
facet of the entire market in a manner that is attractive to all po-
tential visitors.

OUTDOOR FITNESS TRAINING

The sport of hunting has changed dramatically during the past
decade. While hunters at one time may have hunted primarily to
obtain meat, many today also participate in hunting for fitness and
leisure purposes. Some individuals view hunting as an oppor-
tunity to “test” their physical ability to track, find, and harvest an
animal. Many of the major brands surrounding the hunting indus-
try appeal to men and women who are looking to become trained
and well-fit for the outdoor experience.

79



Marketing Plan | Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation

One example of this outdoor fitness movement is Train to Hunt
(“TTH”), a company based in Washington that hosts competitions
across the nation that test physical strength and endurance. TTH
offers online fitness programs, outdoor challenge events, and ad-
vice on proper nutrition, equipment and shooting techniques.
While the online fitness programs may seem like other standard
fitness videos or classes offered at the local gym, TTH builds upon
these standard workout programs by adding outdoor-related
challenges to test one’s strength in the natural environment.

The TTH Challenge combines the thrill of adventure racing with
the exciting skills of bow hunting in a 2-day physical challenge. In
2014, the first televised “TTH National Championship” was aired
on the Sportsman Channel. In the event, men and women make

their way through an outdoor obstacle course while holding their
bows. These participants lift sandbags, pass through tight spaces,
stop to shoot at targets and perform workout sets including push-

SOURCE: National Shooting Sports Foundation

ups, sit-ups, squats etc. in the shortest amount of time. The TTH
Challenges are strategically timed in the off season to help hunters
prepare for the rigors of the upcoming Fall and Winter hunting
seasons.

SOURCE: Train to Hunt

80


https://www.southwickassociates.com/wp-content/uploads/downloads/2018/01/NSSF-and-SA_Path-to-Participation-Report.pdf

Marketing Plan | Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation

Due to the highly competitive nature and difficulty associated
with TTH events, the TTH has captured the more athletic and com-
petitive outdoor athletes in the market, there is no existing event
of this type that appeals to the more “moderate” hunter. However,
the hunting-related workout and fitness programs provided by
TTH and others have successfully appealed to the bow hunting
market as a whole.

The TTH competition circuit isn’t the only type of outdoor fitness
training made available to hunters. Multiple other online stores
and physical gym locations have created tailored workout pro-
grams for the hunting community. The majority of these pro-
grams are aimed specifically toward bow hunters due to the in-
creased difficulty of hunting an animal with a bow, as opposed to
a long-range rifle.

Bow hunting requires added strength, strategy, and precision.
Bow hunters must quietly stalk an animal in order to get within
close shooting distance, therefore most bow hunters share the
common goal of increasing their physical strength, endurance and
shooting accuracy. The athletic and fitness side of hunting could
be incorporated into the training offerings at the Center to appeal
to a growing sector within the hunting and outdoor industry.

TARGET SHOOTING AND ARCHERY PARTICIPATION

In 2016, retail sales of target firearm shooting equipment were
nearly $17 billion across the U.S. According to NSSF, more people
participate in target shooting than play tennis, soccer, or baseball.
The sport is growing 3 percent annually. Female participation is
driving much of this change.” While the total number of target
shooters grew by over 28 percent between 2001 and 2016, male
participation was up by just over 14 percent compared to female
participation, which grew by a whopping 81 percent.” Firearm
target shooters spend an average of 20 days per year shooting,
which indicates a significant potential market for YVAC.

SOURCE: National Shooting Sports Foundation

ARCHERY TARGET SHOOTING

The archery equipment market has been growing around 8 per-
cent per year, according to Technavio, and is expected to continue
growing at that rate. Advancing product technologies and in-
creasing numbers of archery participants are helping sustain mar-
ket growth. North America is the most profitable archery equip-
ment market, representing more than 38 percent of global market
share.

According to the Archery Trade Association (ATA) 2016 report,
there were 23.8 million, or 10 percent of the U.S. population 18
and older, who participated in archery and/or bowhunting during
2015. Of these 23.8 million archers, 15.5 million participated in
target archery only, 2.9 million in bowhunting only, and 5.5million
participated in both.

81


https://www.nssf.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Target-Shooting-in-America-Economic-Impact-19.pdf
https://www.businesswire.com/news/home/20200602005692/en/Archery-Equipment-Market-in-US-2020-2024-Support-from-Institutional-Bodies-to-Boost-Growth-Technavio
https://archerytrade.org/survey-says-23-8-million-americans-enjoyed-archery-in-2015/
https://www.southwickassociates.com/wp-content/uploads/downloads/2018/01/NSSF-and-SA_Path-to-Participation-Report.pdf

Marketing Plan | Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation

types of bows (longbow, barebow, recurve and compound) can be
used. Archery competitions may be held indoors or outdoors.

Due to this growth in the sport of target archery, it is strongly rec-
ommended that the proposed Center feature a competitive ar-
chery range. Indoor rounds are normally shot at one distance,
whereas outdoor competitions normally consist of several dis-
tances. The most common indoor shooting distance is 20 yards
maximum, which encompasses the 18 meters used at the World
Archery Festival, as well as at most FITA and JOAD indoor tourna-
ments. The maximum distance recognized for indoor shooting is
32 yards. Total depth of an indoor range is the maximum shooting
distance, plus the clearance distances, so the minimum total
length required for an indoor range is about 30 yards.

SOURCE: Statistica

The use of various videos and images in a virtual archery range,
alongside 3D targets, allow for both the experienced bow hunter
and the competitive archer to practice in the same arena.

COLORADO TARGET SHOOTERS

According to the 2019 report, Target Shooting in America by the
National Shooting Sports Foundation (NSSF), in 2016 Retail sales
from all target shooting activities in Colorado were $35.2 million.

Many Colorado shooters prefer to use multiple types of firearms.
These target shooters are not necessarily all hunters, and target
shooting comes in many forms. Participants may shoot for com-
petition, hone their defensive abilities, test their marksmanship or
they may target shoot to prepare to hunt. Although more target
shooters use rifles, handgun users typically spend more days
shooting, in part due to greater availability of indoor ranges in ur-
ban areas. Ensuring that target shooters may practice and com-
Target archery, in which members shoot at stationary circular tar- pete at the Center will aid in attracting the entire target-shooting
gets at varying distances, is the most popular form of archery. All market.

SOURCE: Detroit Free Press

82


https://www.nssf.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Target-Shooting-in-America-Economic-Impact-19.pdf
https://www.statista.com/statistics/191962/participants-in-target-shooting-in-the-us-since-2006/
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gannett-cdn.com%2F-mm-%2Fbb0ffe54ffc1ae8abaa745ec4975bc3985d704fc%2Fc%3D0-240-2592-1704%2Flocal%2F-%2Fmedia%2F2016%2F08%2F16%2FDetroitFreePress%2FDetroitFreePress%2F636069573917086680-DET---farmington-archers.jpg&imgrefurl=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.freep.com%2Fstory%2Fsponsor-story%2Fmichigan-wildlife-council%2F2016%2F08%2F24%2Fquiver-archery-equipment-archery-games%2F88838612%2F&tbnid=7eBEyasqcU5yTM&vet=10CDAQMyh7ahcKEwjYt4fluaPtAhUAAAAAHQAAAAAQAg..i&docid=VZg4NIE1Vr27JM&w=2592&h=1464&q=%22archery%20trade%20association%22&ved=0CDAQMyh7ahcKEwjYt4fluaPtAhUAAAAAHQAAAAAQAg

Marketing Plan | Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation

SOURCE: Target Shooting in America (NSSF)

OUTFITTING

According to the Colorado Office of Outfitters Registration, an
“outfitter” is defined as a person providing or soliciting to provide,
for compensation, outfitting services for the purpose of hunting or
fishing on land that the person does not own.” An outfitting ser-
vice is defined as “providing transportation of individuals, equip-
ment, supplies, or wildlife by means of vehicle, vessel, or pack an-
imal, facilities including but not limited to tents, cabins, camp gear,
food, or similar supplies, equipment, or accommodations, and
guiding, leading, packing, protecting, supervising, instructing, or
training persons or groups of persons in the take or attempted
take of wildlife.”

In most states, the process of becoming an outfitter only requires
the obtaining of a registration from the proper State division. In

Colorado, the registration qualifications include:

e Beatleast 18 years old.

e Hold a valid first aid card or first aid instructor’s card is-
sued by the American Red Cross or evidence of equivalent
training.

e Possess a minimum liability insurance coverage in the
amount of $50,000 for bodily injury to one individual in a
single accident and $100,000 for bodily injury to all indi-
viduals in a single accident and submit it to the director a
surety bond in the minimum sum of $10,000.

Within the outfitting service, a guide (or multiple guides) must ob-
tain a Guide License that authorizes the guide to “accept compen-
sation in any form commensurate with the market value in this
state for guiding services in exchange for aiding, assisting, direct-
ing, leading, or instructing a person in the field to locate and take
wildlife.” In order to become a guide in most states, the applicant
must obtain a guide license by scoring at least 80 percent on the
guide license examination. This examination tests the applicant’s
knowledge of Federal and State hunting regulations, hunter safety
rules, property/land rights and conservation.

The U.S. outfitter industry has seen significant growth and atten-
tion as the hunting and fishing industry continues to grow in
terms of both participation and expenditures. As a result, the de-
mand for well-educated outfitters and guides has increased.

According to the National Survey performed by the U.S. Fish &
Wildlife Service in 2016, 11.5 million hunters sixteen years of age
and older hunted on public land, private land, or both in 2016. Of
this number, 3.9 million or 34 percent hunted on publicly owned
lands compared to 9.7 million or 85 percent who hunted on pri-
vately owned land. Most hunters, ranging from beginners to ex-
perts, understand the challenge of hunting on public land.

83



Marketing Plan | Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation

SOURCE: Colorado Vacation Directory

During the hunting season, the relatively smaller portion of “hunt-
able” public land becomes densely populated with general season
hunters. This reduces the opportunity to harvest an animal, and
thus significantly reduces the possibility of harvesting a trophy
animal. Thus, if outfitters want to offer a high probability of har-
vesting the animal of choice, the quality and quantity of the private
land upon which an outfitter may hunt with their clients becomes
invaluable to the success of their business.

Some hunters will approach landowners and personally seek to
obtain permission to hunt on private land. These landowner rela-
tionships become very valuable and, as a consequence, landown-
ers may charge a general hunting fee or implement land leasing
rates in order to profit from the opportunity. Successful outfitters
remove the hassle for hunters seeking to obtain permission from
the landowners by establishing the relationship themselves by

contracting with the landowners, who lease the hunting rights to
the outfitter.

The outfitter then offers its services to hunters who wish to hunt
on private land. This creates a barrier-of-entry for those new out-
fitters who don’t possess such hunting rights. The best outfitters
in the U.S. possess the hunting rights for thousands of private land
acres. Itis the quantity and quality of these private land acres for
which the outfitter has hunting rights that determine, to a large
extent, the success of the outfitter.

SOURCE: Colorado Outfitters

The amount and quality of the private land leasing rights that out-
fitters obtain isn’t the only factor that an outfitter may use to dif-
ferentiate themselves. There are many outfitters who take their
clients hunting on public land, but do so in a unique or worthwhile
manner. These outfitters who specialize in hunting public land
may offer special services such as horseback riding/packing,
unique knowledge, and lodging in or near the hunting unit, etc.

Although the total number of hunters has been declining, 8 per-
cent from 2006 through 2016, factors that have added to the

84


https://www.coloradodirectory.com/sablemountain/
http://www.co-outfitters.com/

Marketing Plan | Micro-Markets in Outdoor Recreation

growth of the outfitter industry include the growth in hunting
trip-related expenditures and in non-resident hunting participa-
tion. The trip-related portion of total hunting expenditures in-
creased by 15 percent between 2006 and 2016 from $8.0 billion
to $9.2 billion in 2016 dollars. The increase in trip related ex-
penses indicates that hunters might be more willing to travel and
invest in a quality hunting experience.

RECREATIONAL GOODS RENTAL
The recreational goods rental industry in the U.S. has averaged 8
percent growth annually to $2.0 billion in revenue.

The industry includes 2,310 companies, about half of which are
profitable, according PeekPro, due to ever-increasing competition
as existing firms expand and new ones enter the market.

SOURCE: https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/REVEF532292TAXABL

According to Industrius CFO, the Recreational Goods Rental in-
dustry was in the bottom 10 percent of U.S. industries in ROI and
experienced a loan failure rate of 11 percent.

BOOKING SERVICES

Online booking, which is growing at 10 percent per year, is a ma-
jor service for the Center to provide. Mobile bookings are increas-
ing faster and account for 11 percent of all U.S. online travel book-
ings. This trend is likely to increase as Millennials are almost
twice as likely to travel for a hobby than are their parents, accord-
ing to the Boston Consulting Group:

“There’s a shift in how Americans are spending their
money. Mostly spurred by the proliferation of the Millen-
nial generation, they’re now prioritizing experiences ra-
ther than material items — saving up their money to go
new places and take part in new activities. A large benefi-
ciary of this changing mindset: the recreational rentals in-
dustry, whose growth is currently outpacing the average
annual growth of other retail and service industries.”

SOURCE: Altitude Outdoor Adventures

All these outdoor activities will be available through YVAC, the
“Expedia® of Northwest Colorado,” where visitors will be able to
book as many activities as they desire, with YVAC earning a fee for
each booking.

85


https://www.peek.com/pro/rentals/activity-rentals-statistics
https://secure.industriuscfo.com/industry-metrics/naics/532292-recreational-goods-rental
https://image-src.bcg.com/Images/BCG%20Traveling%20with%20Millennials%20Mar%202013_tcm9-96752.pdf
https://fred.stlouisfed.org/series/REVEF532292TAXABL
https://altitudeoutdooradventures.com/grand-mesa-rentals/atv-utv-rentals/

Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Indoor Adventures

APPENDIX A — DESCRIPTION OF OFFERINGS

Visit the Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado Great Out-
doors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame and discover all there
is to explore in the spectacular outdoors, parks, public lands, and
waters that are yours to enjoy.

The Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado Great Outdoors
Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame is a must see and do experi-
ence, that celebrates the Great Outdoors of Colorado and the
Northwest Colorado Counties of Moffat, Routt, and Rio Blanco.
Bringing the “Great Outdoors Indoors “is in Craig, Moffat County,
Colorado in the 125,000+ square foot Yampa Valley Adventure
Center.

The 125,000+ square foot Yampa Valley Adventure Center brings
the "Great Outdoors Indoors," located in Craig, Moffat County, Col-
orado. The entire Yampa Valley Adventure Center concept was
conceived to support and advance the enjoyment of and to cele-
brate the Great Outdoors.

The entire Yampa Valley Adventure Center concept was conceived
to support and advance the enjoyment and to celebrate the Great
Outdoors. Forinformation on the Yampa Valley Adventure Center
visit the website www.yvac.biz.

Indoor Adventures

4-D THEATER

You can take a “Birds Eye View” specifically a Bald Eagle’s View of
over 3.5 million acres of Moffat, Routt, and Rio Blanco Counties by
experiencing our 4-D Adventure Theater. The immersive 4-D Ad-
venture Theater features an exciting and informative educational

presentation unlike any other—it utilizes four of your senses
(sight, smell, touch, and sound)! This 22-minute show features
multimedia sights and sounds, plus a new level of sensory experi-
ences - all to showcase and experience the scenic natural beauty
and wildlife of Northwest Colorado.

INDOOR GUN AND ARCHERY RANGE

The Yampa Valley Shooters Guild is Northwest Colorado’s largest,
most advanced public indoor shooting facility, with over 7,000
square feet of range and retail offerings, including a gun smith and
bowyer. There is a 10 Lane Gun Range,10 Lane Archery Range,
Retail space for Firearms, Archery, Gear, and Accessories. There
are also Virtual Reality Courses & Private parties available.

86


http://www.yvac.biz/

EscAPE RooMs

You can experience western themed Escape Rooms—a real-life
adventure game where you and your team will assemble in a
themed room and will have one hour to complete your mission
and “escape” the room. A
successful escape will re-
quire you to find hidden
clues and solve challeng-
ing puzzles throughout the
room.

Room themes include:

e Escape Room #1
Escape from the
Dinosaur’s

e Escape Room #2
Escape from Butch
Cassidy’s Bank
Robbery

e Escape Room #3
Escape from the
Wilderness

INDOOR ADVENTURE PARK

In the Tag Interactive Arena, Interactive Trampolines & SKY
ROPES/SKY KIDS TAG Activities promote fitness, fun, and compe-
tition. TAG is a new concept in social active leisure through the
technological gamification of physical events. A creative blend of
physical obstacles and challenging events with immersive activi-
ties that make up the multilevel, multi-zoned TAG Arenas. Player
worn electronic bands provide gamification and competitive met-
rics.

Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Indoor Adventures

Tag arena games are designed to test strategy, speed, agility,
awareness, bravery, as well as fitness, fun and competition. The
arena itself contains a complex structure of interconnected activ-
ity areas. Each challenge requires a mixture of physical and men-
tal agility. The arena is split into separated zones, permitting en-
hanced player distribution and capacity management.

Hidden throughout the arena activities are a large number of illu-
minated TAG’s. The TAG's are controlled via a central computer
and glow in different colors corresponding to a pre-determined
points system. Points are collected by players using a sensor worn
as a wristband. When a wristband is located onto a TAG’s light
source, a point’s value is allocated to the specific player’s wrist-
band. As the player identifies and reaches more TAG’s the players
score escalates.

87



Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Indoor Adventures
INDOOR CLIMBING CENTER

The Yampa Valley Climbing Center is Northwest Colorado’s most
unique indoor climbing facility. We offer climbing, training, yoga,
and kids programing. Our professionally operated facility fea-
tures a 40’ climbing mountain and interactive climbing experi-
ences from ValoClimb—an award-winning fully automatic digital
attraction designed to enhance repeatability and to have signifi-
cant play-value for high quality and exciting games.

INDOOR SPORTS & ACTIVITIES

We offer Mini Bowling, Top Golf Swing Suites, Interactive Curling,
Axe Throwing, Billiards, Foss Ball, Air Hockey, Giant Jenga, and
Chess and Checkers in a family friendly setting.

88



Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Adventure Supplies

EVENT CENTER

The Yampa Valley Adventure Center could offer a multitude of
spaces for any type of event: Corporate, Banquet, Birthday, Anni-
versary, Wedding, Training, Conference, or Exhibition. With the
unique building design and layout, space could be designated for
hosting gatherings of 10 to 1,000 attendees. The event space
within the same facility as food, beverage, and entertaining activ-
ities is an extra selling point. The Center would need profession-
ally trained staff who have the connections, contacts, and experi-
ence in place to assist guests with any need on every level from
live entertainment, floral arrangements center pieces, special dec-
orations, and audio visual.

SHOOT THE GUNS THAT WON THE WEST
The thrill of a lifetime for any “Wild West” enthusiast is shooting
our entire collection of reproduction “Guns That Won the West.”

Adventure Supplies

SPORTS WAREHOUSE

The Sports Warehouse is an Outdoor Sportsman’s or Woman’s
Paradise. We specialize in Hunting, Shooting, Camping, Boating,
Outdoor Cooking, Clothing and Footwear.

89



WILDERNESS SPORTS

No matter your outdoor experience level we are your basecamp
supplier for sales, service, or rentals, for Camping and Hiking,
Climbing, Cycling, Paddling, Running, Fitness, Snow, and Travel
Accessories and Clothes for Men, Women and Children.

ADVENTURE POWER SPORTS & RV

We are your Northwest Colorado Power Sports provider for Sales,
Service and Rentals for the enjoyment and exploration of over 3.5
million acres of surrounding scenery and spectacular outdoor ad-
venture. Our inventory includes 4-wheelers, ATV’s, OTV’s, Motor-
cycles, personal Watercraft, Boats, Motor Homes, RV’s, and spec-
tacularly furnished Sprinter 4-Wheel Drive Adventure Camper
Vans.

Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Retail Adventures

Retail Adventures

PLUSH WILDLIFE REFUGE STORE

Our Plush North American Animals come in all shapes, breeds, and
sizes and represent the wonderful animals that occupy the forests
and woodlands of North America. We have plush foxes, beavers,
raccoons, bears, wolves, and many more stuffed animals. These
Stuffed North American Animals range from the wild creatures
that roam the North American forests to the cute and cuddly, but
still wild, animals that can be found in a local park or even a North
American backyard.

Some of our Stuffed North American Animals can be found in the
mountains and some can be found on the Great Plains. North
America is full of wondrous natural habitats and those habitats
are full of wonderful animals. Our shelves are full of those won-
derful Stuffed North American Animals too and we would love to
share them with you. 10 percent of our sales are donated to our
Northwest Colorado Conservation Partners.

90



Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Retail Adventures

LOCAL ARTISAN STORE YAMPA VALLEY ART GALLERY & STUDIO

The Local Artisan Store holds 100 percent Northwest Colorado Stop in at the actual studio for locally acclaimed and nationally
made products including Arts, Crafts, Gifts, Food, and Beverages. recognized Photographers, Painters, Carvers, and Sculptors.
You will find some of the most unique and beautifully hand- Watch great art being created right before your eyes. Watch na-

crafted treasurers produced by Coloradoan artisans. tures beautify being captured on canvas and other mediums.

91



Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Food & Beverage Adventures

Food & Beverage Adventures

BLACK ROCK STEAKHOUSE & GRILL

At the Black Rock Steakhouse & Grill you cook your own entrée on
a high temperature volcanic rock which has been heated to 700
degrees. Your steak is delivered to the table within minutes of or-
dering and the food stays hot throughout the meal and it is cooked
exactly how you like it, because the customer is the cook.

BASECAMP CANTEEN, DOMINOS & VILLAGE INN
While you are enjoying your time at the Yampa Valley Adventure
Center and Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall
of Fame enjoy your favorite camping foods served from an actual
camper converted into a food truck experience.

TIMERS SAWMILL GRILL & AXE THROWING BAR

Casually served and presented Pizza, Burgers, Hot Dogs and Sau-
sages, Sandwiches, Soups, and Salads in a log cabin sawmill
themed atmosphere. Enjoy your favorite beverages while throw-
ing axes professionally overseen by our axeperts.

92



Lo CABIN EXPRESS COFFEE, BEVERAGES & BAKERY
Log Cabin Express is Craig, Colorado’s premier drive thru coffee,
beverage, and bakery shop.

We Proudly Brew Caribou Coffee in a Northwoods feel cabin.

Outdoor Adventures

BACKPACKING TOUR

Enjoy Colorado guided backpacking and multi-day hiking trips at
their best! Whether this is your first guided backpacking tour, or
you have done many trips around the world, our Rocky Mountain
National Park backpacking trips are truly unique!

Our trips were specifically chosen and designed from our in-depth
local knowledge of hiking trails and our experience from 20+
years of guiding backpacking trips on seven continents. No one
else knows Rocky Mountain National Park (RMNP) better than we
do. Why go with non-locals, non-originals, or large travel agents,
when you can go with the best (most personable, professional, and
knowledgeable) local guides and guide service around?

Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Outdoor Adventures

HIKING & PEAK ASCENTS TRIPS

Longing to truly experience the Yampa Valley and Northwest Col-
orado? Our guided hiking and peak ascents will provide you with
an unforgettable getaway and stunning views. Whether you have
two hours or one week, we have amazing, guided hiking trips to
expose you and your group to the unique ‘hidden gems’ in North-
west Colorado. Come get an experience and education thatis truly
one of a kind!

GUIDED MOUNTAIN BIKING TOURS

Northwest Colorado and the Yampa Valley offers amazing and di-
verse mountain biking terrain. To maximize the rider experience,
we guide many different mountain biking trails and areas to give
the beginner to expert rider a unique and special experience. Our
Guided mountain biking and bike tours give you the option of rid-
ing beneath large sandstone mesas, through evergreen pines, over
pristine single track, or to the heights of Mount Werner. Whatever
your desire, we will craft an amazing Colorado mountain biking
trip for you and your group. One of our most popular trips is the
multi-day excursion of Dinosaur National Monument. Many peo-
ple also like the convenience of the 1/2 day mountain bike.

FLY FISHING AND FLOAT TRIPS

Fly fishing in Colorado’s wilderness is an experience like none
other; it will provide memories that you will talk about for the rest
of your life. If you are looking for world-class guided fly fishing
and float trips, or just to be exposed to an art form that you have
only seen in the movies, we have the trip for you. Colorado is a
destination for many anglers, and, at Yampa Valley Adventure
Tours, we offer a custom guided fly fishing trip to match your in-
terest and experience level.

93



SIGHTSEEING AND PHOTOGRAPHIC TOURS

Yampa Valley Adventure Tours offers Sightseeing Tours that pro-
vide educational, informative, engaging, and unique sightseeing
experiences. Our tour guides delve into the cultural, and natural
history of the state and share amazing stories of Colorado’s past
and present. The tours take place in Northwest Colorado with a
choice of Moffat, Routt, or Rio Blanco Counties, and around Boul-
der, Denver, Estes Park, and Rocky Mountain National Park. Come
with us to gain great insight into the wonders of Colorado.

CROSS COUNTRY SKIING & SNOWSHOE TOURS

Colorado is known as a winter vacation hub and a skiers’ paradise.
While the ski areas in the state provide great amenities and access
to terrific inbound terrain, much of the best terrain lies outside
the boundaries of the ski areas. In addition to stellar backcountry
skiing terrain, the backcountry experience provides few crowds
and access to un-skied virgin slopes. Come join us to see this un-
crowded side of Colorado snow sports with a guided backcountry
skiing or snowshoeing tour.

YAMPA, GREEN AND LITTLE SNAKE RIVER RAFTING TOURS

Our whitewater rafting trips range from beginner trips suitable
for families to wild white-water thrills for the experienced adven-
turer.

SNOWMOBILE, JEEP AND OHV TOURS

Our experienced and personable tour guides will help ensure you
have a memorable tour of the majestic sites of the Yampa Valley
and the 3.5 million acres of public lands that you can access on
motorized vehicles such as snowmobiles, jeeps, and OHVs.

Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Outdoor Adventures

GUIDED HUNTS FOR DEER, ELK, ANTELOPE & BEAR

The Center is a basecamp from which people can setup and depart
on guided hunts for deer, elk, antelope, and bear. These guided
hunts will be led by state certified outfitters.

WILD HORSES OF SAND WASH BASIN TOURS

The Sand Wash Basin is located northwest of Maybell, CO. The
Basin is a large, scenic expanse of high desert country that is a des-
tination for OHV enthusiasts. The area is also home to the world-
renowned wild horse herd that can be viewed throughout most of
the year.

SOURCE: Colorado Outfitters

94


http://www.co-outfitters.com/

A - Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Mu-

seum & Hall of Fame

The Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
isa 501c3 Non-Profit (pending IRS approval). The Colorado Great
Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame is a must see and
do experience, that celebrates the Great Outdoors of Northwest
Colorado. Its purpose is to recognize and show appreciation to
those individuals, organizations & companies who have advanced
the recreational enjoyment and preservation of our Great Out-
doors through outdoor interaction and participation, dedication,
competition, innovation, product development, policy, and
preservation.

Experience exciting outdoor adventures with hands-on activities,
exhibits and simulators -- walk behind and touch a waterfall, step
into a fishing boat and reel in a big fish, hit the trail on a mountain
bike or snowmobile, and much more. At the YVAC and the Colo-
rado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame, you can
learn about how the US and State parks, monuments, lakes,

streams, reservoirs, forests, wildlife and fish are protected and
managed.

The Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
purpose is to recognize and show appreciation to those individu-
als, organizations, and companies who have advanced the recrea-
tional enjoyment and preservation of our great outdoors through
outdoor enjoyment and participation, dedication, competition, in-
novation, product development, policy, and preservation.

Visit the Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Colorado Great Out-
doors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame and discover all there
is to explore in the spectacular outdoors, parks, public lands, and
waters that are yours to enjoy. There will be 40+ interactive ex-
hibits. The following sections provide a list of planned exhibits
and offerings provided by the 501c3.

95



INNER CITY SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM

We offer Family/Friends Scholarships where the family/friends
receives transportation, lodging, food, beverage and entertain-
ment while we first educate them about the Great Outdoors in the
Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame and
then our guides and outfitters take them on a camping trip.

We help family/friends experience the mental and physical health
benefits of an active outdoor lifestyle and encourage them to be
lifelong great outdoors enthusiasts.

GIVING VENDING MACHINE FOR OUTDOOR DONATIONS

If you find yourself at the Yampa Valley Adventure Center and Col-
orado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame, you
will find a vending machine that is more than what it seems: in-
stead of vending snacks, soda, or headphones, this “Giving Ma-
chine” invites passersby to make charitable donations that will
have tangible results.

lix A — Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

Items in the vending machine run between $5 and $500. The ma-
chine dispenses postcards depicting the outdoor projects in
Northwest Colorado and the rest of the state to remind supporters
of the real impact their donation will have on the Great Outdoors.
To bring these machines into reality, the Colorado Great Outdoors
Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame has partnered with local, re-
gional, and national outdoor focused, manufacturers, retailers and
environmental groups.

OUTDOOR ESSENTIALS VENDING
Vending machines that supply essentials, such as first aide Kits,
that can be used when on adventuring trips.

CREDO, VISION, & MISSION STATEMENT DONOR & SPONSOR
WALL

Our Credo: Environmentally Conscious Tourism & Recreation At
It’s Finest.

96




Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

Our Vision Statement: Be The Premier Base Camp for a Northwest
Colorado Adventure.

Our Mission Statement: To Develop, Promote, Protect and Pre-
serve Northwest Colorado's Great Outdoors for the enjoyment of
an active outdoor lifestyle for the residents and visitors of North
West Colorado.

Our Pledge: Educate the public about the "Great Outdoors" of Col-
orado Scholarship Program for inner city youth to travel to Craig
and learn from the Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum
& Hall of Fame about the wilderness and get them to become out-
door enthusiasts.

TRAILHEAD KiosK

“Trailhead” kiosks featuring all of your favorite outdoor activities.
The Trailheads feature shared content, including an interactive
map with local hunting/fishing/hiking/camping locations and a
“Brag Board” showcasing local social media posts. Along with
these shared items, each Trailhead also has content unique to each
natural attraction in Northwest Colorado. All content can be
viewed either on the 75-inch touch screen kiosk or through the
virtual reality headset.

When using the camping Trailhead, visitors can view available
camp sites and make reservations, and even view photos that of-
fer a 360-degree view of the area.

The hunting, fishing, snowmobiling, cross country skiing etc.
Trailheads contain similar interactive features.

You can print maps and brochures of all of the natural features of
Northwest Colorado.

BIRDS OF COLORADO

In Colorado 511 species of birds have been documented as of July
2020 according to the Colorado Bird Records Committee (CBRC)
of Colorado Field Ornithologists. One additional species has been
added from as a result of the 2020 taxonomic revisions to the
Checklist of North and Middle American Birds. This list is pre-
sented in the taxonomic sequence of the Check-list of North and
Middle American Birds, 7th edition through the 61st Supplement,
published by the American Ornithological Society (AOS). Com-
mon and scientific names are also those of the Checklist, except
that the common names of families are from the Clements taxon-
omy because the AOS list does not include them. Six of the docu-
mented birds are introduced species that are not native to North
America, but were brought to this continent by humans.

97



Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

FORESTS OF COLORADO

Colorado’s vast national forests are probably its biggest asset.
They preserve, protect and promote the responsible use of mil-
lions of acres of public land in this state only.

Eleven national forests cover millions of acres throughout the
Rocky Mountains. They are spread across the state, west of the
plains. Year round outdoor recreation can be found in these free,
federal lands, from fishing and camping, to snowmobiling and
Nordic skiing.

Forests and woodlands cover approximately 24 million acres in
Colorado. Within these forested landscapes are several different
tree species, the majority of which are coniferous or cone-bearing
trees rather than deciduous trees that seasonally shed their
leaves. Colorado’s primary forest species have been grouped into
10 forest types based on the dominant overstory vegetation
(Helms 1998)4: conifer, conifer-hardwood, hardwood (primarily
aspen), lodgepole pine, mixed conifer, oak shrublands, pifion-ju-
niper, ponderosa pine, riparian and spruce-fir.

PLANTS AND FLOWERS OF COLORADO

Summer is finally here, and that means Colorado is exploding into
color. Trees and lawns are green, vegetable and flower gardens
are blooming with life, and all around the state, wildflowers are
beginning to peek their heads up from the ground. Itis a transfor-
mation that takes place at different times of the summer depend-
ing on factors like elevation and location, but if gorgeous blooms
are what you are looking for.

Bobies oF WATER OF COLORADO

Colorado boasts some pretty big lakes and reservoirs within its
state lines. From the eastern plains to the western slope, you can
fish, boat, or just admire these massive bodies of water.

Imagine renting a cool boat with a motor and some fishing gear,
along with your favorite companions for a day at the lake. Maybe
you’ll catch a trophy trout or big catfish on the line. Maybe cool off
in the water yourself. Or perhaps you’d prefer a day at the beach
in landlocked Colorado. There are lakes and reservoirs with great
beaches too. At the following largest lakes in Colorado, you'll be
able to do a little bit of everything.

YAMPA, LITTLE SNAKE, AND GREEN RIVERS

Yampa River State Park, located in the beautiful Yampa valley
west of Steamboat Springs, is actually three “parks” in one. The
headquarters on the Yampa River near Hayden, Colorado, pro-
vides excellent camping, a Visitor Center and nature trail. The
headquarters has 50 camp sites; 35 are RV electric sites, 10 tent
sites and five sites for group camping. The proximity to Hwy 40
makes the headquarters the base camp for many outdoor activi-
ties in the Steamboat area: hunting, fishing, and OHV riding.

A 134 mile stretch of the Yampa River is the heart of Yampa River
State Park. It has 13 access points stretching from Hayden to the
Dinosaur National Monument near the Utah border. The river ac-
cess sites offer recreationists six camping areas, excellent fishing
on miles of flat-water and Class I-V river boating.

98



- Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

The Elkhead Reservoir is the third major component of the Yampa
River State Park system. Visitors can enjoy swimming, boating,
fishing, camping, and picnicking at the lake. There are also many
opportunities to view wildlife and a hiking trail that will appeal to
hikers, mountain bikers and horseback rider.

CoLORADO PARKS & WILDLIFE-COLORADO STATE FOREST SERVICE
Colorado Parks and Wildlife manages 42 state parks, all of Colora-
do's wildlife, more than 300 state wildlife areas and a host of rec-
reational programs.

Established in 1955, the Colorado State Forest Service (CSFS) is a
service and outreach agency of the Warner College of Natural Re-
sources at Colorado State University. Headquartered in Fort Col-
lins, the agency provides staffing for the Division of Forestry
within the Colorado Department of Natural Resources. The CSFS
is committed to providing timely, relevant forestry information
and education to the citizens of Colorado to achieve resilient for-
ests and communities. Using applied science, we have adapted our
focus and approach throughout the decades in response to emerg-
ing forestry issues.

BLM, US FOREST SERVICE, AND US FiSH & WILDLIFE

The Little Snake Field Office administers 1.3 million acres of pub-
lic and 1.1 million acres of subsurface minerals in Moffat, Routt,
and Rio Blanco counties.

The Sand Wash Basin is located northwest of Maybell, CO. The
Basin is a large, scenic expanse of high desert country that is a des-
tination for OHV enthusiasts. The area is also home to the world-
renowned wild horse herd that can be viewed throughout most of
the year.

Emerald Mountain is a day-use only recreation area located near
Steamboat Springs provides opportunities for hiking, horseback

riding and mountain biking in the summer as well as moderately
challenging Nordic and back-country skiing in the winter. The
trails within Emerald Mountain provide views of Mt. Werner,
Sleeping Giant Mountain and other scenic icons of the Yampa Val-
ley. A seasonal closure is in effect December 1 - June 30 to protect
wintering and calving elk within the area south of Ridge Trail.

U.S5. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT

S
TMENT OF AGRICU

WALL OF FAME

The Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame
will feature a variety of “walls of fame.” These include:
e Hunting, Shooting, Fishing, Climbing, Cycling, & Paddling
e Hiking, ATV, Snowmobiling, Snowshoeing, & Cross Country
Skiing
Wildlife, Nature Photography, & Videography
e Shooting

EAGLE “BIRDS EYE VIEW”

Stand in a full-size eagle's nest and spread your arms in simulated
eagle's wings! Discover over 3.5 million acres of Northwest Colo-
rado from a Eagle "Birds Eye View" flight and learn more about
bald eagles and how they were saved from extinction

99



Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

SNOWMOBILING EXHIBIT

Each winter, Colorado’s high country opens up once again to
snowmobilers buzzing across trails and fields of powder in the
crisp, dry, winter air. Everything from family-friendly jaunts to
high-speed adventures are available in Colorado’s snowy spots,
where going "sledding"” makes a great day off the ski slopes or an
excursion all its own.

OHV-ING EXHIBIT

Colorado’s Off-highway Vehicle Program CPW’s OHV Program is
statutorily created in sections 33-14.5-101 through 33-14.5-113,
Colorado Revised Statutes. The program is funded through the
sale of OHV registrations and use permits. It is estimated that
more than 170,000 OHVs were registered or permitted for use in
Colorado during the 2014-2015 season. The price of either an an-
nual OHV registration or a use-permit is $25.25. Funds are used
to support the statewide OHV Program, the OHV Registration Pro-
gram and OHV Trail Grant Program, including OHV law enforce-
ment.

The OHV Program provides registration and use permit services
for all Colorado and out of state residents who wish to access des-
ignated OHV trails on Colorado's public lands. Per state statute,
all OHV registration and use permit receipts are devoted to the
promotion and support of OHV recreation in Colorado. The OHV
Program site provides law and regulation information, links to or-
ganizations and clubs, and safety information. Check out the
"Where to Ride" page for links to OHV trails across Colorado.

The Colorado OHV Registration Program user fees fund trail
maintenance, construction, trailheads, parking areas, support fa-
cilities, trail signs, maps, and education. It enables law enforce-
ment personnel to identify and return stolen vehicles, encourages
safe and responsible OHV use, and promotes respect for public
lands.

CANOE, KAYAK, BOAT, & PERSONAL WATERCRAFT EXHIBIT
Personal watercraft (PWC) have become a popular form of recre-
ation on Colorado waters. PWC regulations have been established
to keep our waterways safe and enjoyable.

BEAVER DAM EXHIBIT

Step inside a beaver lodge and across lily pads as you learn how a
wetland works. Meet nature’s wetland engineer, beavers, who
build dams and create wetlands. Walk through a marsh and find
out how wetlands improve water quality by naturally filtering out
pollution, help prevent flooding, and provide important fish and
wildlife habitat.

MAJESTIC ELK EXHIBIT

As you enter the Colorado Great Outdoors Experience exhibit ar-
eas, meet Colorado's majestic elk, a conservation success story.
Learn about where elk live, what they eat, how you can view them

100



- Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

in the wild, and how the Colorado Parks and Wildlife manages this
species.

In the early 1900s, only 40,000 elk remained in all of North Amer-
ica. The elk's dramatic demise was attributed to unregulated mar-
ket hunting. The dedication of CPW staff and our conservation
partners have brought this incredible species back through rigor-
ous studies and relocation efforts and have managed to grow elk
populations back to the thriving numbers Colorado enjoys today.
Rocky Mountain elk are now one of the greatest conservation suc-
cess stories in Colorado.

At over 280,000 animals, Colorado’s elk population is the largest
in the world. Through hunting and wildlife viewing elk bring vis-
itors from all over the world. In the fall people come from every
corner to see these magnificent animals and to hear their distinc-
tive bugle. They also lure hunters deep into the woods in a time
honored tradition and critical management tool. Hunting is the
most effective method to provide for herd health and critical fund-
ing to support conservation and research that benefits all of Colo-
rado's wild spaces. This species not only provides intrinsic values
for Coloradans they also a extremely important to local and state
economies.

WIiLDLIFE COLORING WALL

Deer, Elk, Antelope and Bear plus all the other North American
Wildlife can fill in the colors, meanwhile there are also traditional
coloring tables and lots of paper and crayons. In one corner, a hid-
den nook reveals a bear cave which your little ones will love
climbing in and out of, probably repeatedly.

14’ers OF COLORADO

Colorado has 58 mountain peaks exceeding 14,000 feet (known as
"fourteeners" or "14ers" locally) — the most of any state. Outdoor
enthusiasts of all skill levels will find peaks ranging from easy to
very difficult, with hiking trails for exploring the state's scenery,
wildlife and rugged beauty.

BROWNS PARK NATIONAL WILDLIFE REFUGE EXHIBIT

Throughout time, this sheltered valley known as Browns Park has
been and remains a place for wildlife and people. The Refuge was
established in 1965 by Public Land Order to provide sanctuary for
migratory birds, conserve endangered and threatened species,
and offer wildlife-dependent recreational opportunities. Wildlife,

101



x A - Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

solitude, scenic beauty, and cultural history combine to make the
Refuge a national treasure.

The 12,150-acre Refuge is administered by the U.S. Fish and Wild-
life Service. The Refuge is one of over 560 refuges in the National
Wildlife Refuge System - a network of lands set aside specifically
for wildlife. The Refuge System is a living heritage, conserving
wildlife and habitat for people today and for generations.

DEER, ANTELOPE, & MOOSE EXHIBIT

DINOSAUR NATIONAL MONUMENT

Dinosaurs once roamed here. Their fantastic remains are still vis-
ible embedded in the rocks. Today, the mountains, desert and un-
tamed rivers flowing in deep canyons, support an array of life. Pet-
roglyphs hint at earlier cultures. Later, homesteaders and outlaws
found refuge here. Whether your passion is science, adventure,
history or scenery, Dinosaur offers much to explore.

OUTDOOR FIRST AID & EMERGENCY SERVICES EXHIBIT

Getting outdoors to enjoy our hobbies is a healthy way to spend
our time, but whether you are a walker, climber, horse rider, ori-
enteer, angler, mountain biker or trail runner, all outdoor activi-
ties carry inherent risks and dangers. Providing first aid in the
outdoor environment provides a number of additional challenges
not faced in the home, office or urban setting. While the principles
of first aid remain the same, the practical application of those prin-
ciples will vary depending on the environment.

SOLAR POWERED CONSERVATION CAROUSEL

The Conservation Carousel will be one of only a few solar-pow-
ered carousels in the world. The carousel will feature hand-
carved and hand-painted North American Animals and have a net-
zero impact on the Yampa Valley Adventure Center's energy con-
sumption. Solar panels power the Conservation Carousel. Any ex-
cess energy is diverted back to the Centers electrical grid.

102



dix A - Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

The carousels animal collection includes wild horses, deer, elk, an-
telope, bear, mountain lion, big horn sheep, eagle, buffalo, moose,
sage grouse, fox, wolf, trout, beaver, black-footed ferret, cougar, &
river otter.

PICNIC EXHIBIT

Apicnicis ameal taken outdoors (al fresco) as part of an excursion
- ideally in scenic surroundings, such as a park, lakeside, or other
place affording an interesting view, or else in conjunction with a
public event such as preceding an open-air theater performance,
and usually in summer.

Picnics are often family-oriented but can also be an intimate occa-
sion between two people or a large get together such as company
picnics and church picnics or clubs and community get togethers
or of community care units. It is also sometimes combined with a
cookout, usually a form of barbecue: either grilling (griddling,

gridironing, or charbroiling), braising (by combining a charbroil
or gridiron grill with a broth-filled pot), baking, or a combination
of all of the above.

MADE IN COLORADO EXHIBIT
Colorado Outdoor Recreational Manufacturers Are Featured.

SMOKEY BEAR EXHIBIT

Wildfires are any unplanned fires that burn in forests and other
wildlands, such as shrub or grass communities. They're a power-
ful natural force we must fully understand, and respect, in order
to best help control. Nearly nine out of 10 wildfires nationwide are
caused by humans and could have been prevented.

103



ppendix A - Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

LEAVE NO TRACE EXHIBIT

Using the power of science, education and stewardship of people
and partners, the Leave No Trace Center for Outdoor Ethics is on
a mission to ensure a sustainable future for the outdoors and the
planet.

WILD HORSES—SAND WASH BASIN HERD EXHIBIT

Horses within the HMA exhibit many different colors, although the
most common are gray and sorrel. Based on genetic analysis, the
herd's highest similarity is to Iberian Spanish breeds, followed by
gaited breeds, North American breeds and Arabian breeds.

COLORADO’S GREAT OUTDOORS IN THE MOVIES
Learn about the movies that had scenes or footage filmed in Colo-
rado.

CRAIG CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, MOFFAT COUNTY VISITORS CEN-
TER, & MOFFAT COUNTY TOURISM ASSOCIATION

MuseEUM OF NORTHWEST COLORADO & WYAMAN'S LIVING His-
TORY MUSEUM

Living History Ranch
& Museum

CRAIG PARKS, RECREATION, & YAMPA RIVER CORRIDOR WATER
PARK

THE “SMORES” STORY EXHIBIT

This summer, 45 million pounds of marshmallows will be toasted
over a fire in America. Many will be used as an ingredient in the
quintessential summer snack: the s'more. Huddling around a
campfire and eating gooey marshmallows and warm chocolate
sandwiched between two graham crackers may feel like primeval
traditions, but every part of the process—including the coat
hanger we unbend to use as a roasting spit—is a product of the
Industrial Revolution.

This exhibit will provide the history of every element that goes
into making the classic campfire treat.

FiSH & FISHING EXHIBIT

104



\ppendix A - Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

CITIZEN ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENTIST EXHIBIT

CR0OSS COUNTRY SKIING & SNOW SHOEING EXHIBIT

WILD TURKEY EXHIBIT

The wild turkey is an upland ground bird native to North America,
one of two extant species of turkey, and the heaviest member of
the order Galliformes. It is the ancestor to the domestic turkey,
which was originally derived from a southern Mexican subspecies
of wild turkey. Although native to North America, the turkey
probably got its name from the domesticated variety being im-
ported to Britain in ships coming from the Levant via Spain. The
British at the time therefore associated the wild turkey with the
country Turkey and the name prevails. An alternative theory pos-
its that another bird, a guinea fowl native to Madagascar intro-
duced to England by Turkish merchants, was the original source,
and that the term was then transferred to the New World bird by
English colonizers with knowledge of the previous species.

TROUT EXHIBIT

105



Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

Rock CLIMBING EXHIBIT
STARGAZING EXHIBIT

DOG SLEDDING EXHIBIT

GEOCACHING EXHIBIT

106



Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Colorado Great Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame

INTERACTIVE VIRTUAL AQUARIUM

By interacting with fish and water on the living floor people be-
come part of the underwater world. Even from a distance The liv-
ing wall« invites people to interact playfully with the 3D animated
fish. The living wall represents the optimum crowd puller.

107



Additional Offering Concepts

Some concepts for additional developments surrounding the Cen-
ter that could be created with little overhead if land nearby is ever
acquired include offering a location to sleep—via glamping or a
hostel—for those who would like the Center to serve as their
“home base” while on an adventure filled vacation. Another con-
ceptis to provide a place to play nearby, creating relaxed outdoor
access for families with children, such as a boulder park or nature
park.

GLAMPING ADVENTURES

A fusion of the words “glamour” and “camping,” glamping de-
scribes a style of camping with amenities and in some cases, resort
style serves not usually associated with traditional camping, and
has become a popular way to go to exciting locations without hav-
ing to experience the less-desired aspects of camping. Glamping
accommodations are often luxurious and can exceed the furnish-
ings found in a typical hotel room. Glamping provides patrons
with more ways to enjoy nature and be out in the wilderness.

Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Additional Offering Concepts

The place to sleep is ready and available to glampers, and there is
generally a shared bathroom/shower facility available to a range
of tents/yurts/etc. Glamping accommodations provide urban
families—who might rarely go camping—with a way of getting
into nature without needing to own their own tent or other camp-
ing gear.

YAMPA VALLEY ADVENTURE HOSTEL

A hostel is a form of inexpensive, short term sheltered sociable
lodging where guest can rent a bed, usually a bunk bed in a dor-
mitory, with shared use of a lodge and sometimes a kitchen.
Rooms can be mixed- or single-sex and have private or shared
bathrooms.

108



Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Additional Offering Concepts

BOULDER PARK

Bouldering is an exciting sport, with more than 9 million plus
climbers and 600 related facilities in the United States. In boul-
dering, one can experience similar challenges as rock climbing,
although the height is usually only 10-20 feet above the ground.
With the popularity of nature play, boulders can also link to other
structures, climbing ropes, or to a balance course.

Boulder parks use natural or manufactured rocks which can be
fitted with climbing holds. The International Play Equipment
Manufacturers Association and the Consumer Products Safety
Commission maintain standards most providers comply with.

snowkingmountain.com

A boulder park in Jackson hole has three such rocks from easy to
difficult as well as a picnic shelter, horseshoe pits, green space,
and a playground with swing sets and slides - all free of charge.

Jjhtownpump.org

109



Boulder parks are designed to fit a community’s environment.
They can even be crafted from molds of real rocks to capture the
diversity of climbing holds in nature, such as these rocks in Moab.

MoabBoulderPark (Facebook)

NATURAL PLAYGROUND

According to Grounds for Play, a natural playground is “a play en-
vironment that consists of elements and textures from the earth
such as tree logs, tree stumps, boulders, plants, drainage paths,
among others instead of a traditional steel playground structure
that includes slides and climbers... These natural landscapes lend
themselves to providing opportunities for children to play,

Appendix A - Description of Offerings | Additional Offering Concepts

explore, imagine, and be challenged by the natural elements. Nat-
ural playgrounds enable children to move freely around the envi-
ronment allowing them to explore, run, jump, climb, crawl, feel,
smell, and more. Studies show children spend even more time
playing outdoors in natural play environments than on traditional
playground environments.”

Tualatin Hills, OR

: Oregon Parks and Recreation

110



Appendix B - Traffic & Licenses | Traffic

APPENDIX B — TRAFFIC & LICENSES

Traffic AIRPORT ARRIVALS

OHYV REGISTRATIONS

Source: IACO (2010 is latest data) Link

Source: CORA

111


source:%20https://www.icao.int/safety/runwaysafety/lists/airport%20movements/allitems.aspx

Appendix B - Traffic & Licenses | Hunting & Fishing Licenses

ANNUAL HIGHWAY TRAFFIC COUNTS County Product Name 2018 2019 2020
Moffat Fishing 1-Day 696 70
Rio Blanco Fishing 1-Day 532 46
Routt Fishing 1-Day 5358 633
Fishing Additional
Moffat Day 714 772 520
Fishing Additional
Rio Blanco Day 455 586 523
Fishing Additional
Routt Day 3228 3168 2407
Moffat Habitat Stamp 11 4 2
Rio Blanco Habitat Stamp 4 3 2
Routt Habitat Stamp 2 5 5
Habitat Stamp Life-
Moffat time 1
Habitat Stamp Life-
. . e . Rio Blanco time 1
Hunting & Fishing Licenses bt S e
Source: CORA Routt time 1
Moffat NR Deer Draw 745 741 117
County Product Name 2018 2019 2020 Rio Blanco NR Deer Draw 268 242 40
Band Tailed Pigeon Routt NR Deer Draw 115 112 15
Routt Permit
Colorado Waterfowl Moffat NR Elk Draw 776 841 490
Moffat Stamp 127 114 73 Rio Blanco NR Elk Draw 37 47 24
Colorado Waterfowl Routt NR Elk Draw 66 65 55
Rio Blanco Stamp 119 119 61 Moffat NR Fishing 5-Day 369 406 399
Colorado Waterfowl . o
Routt Stamp 376 360 223 Rio Blanco NR Fishing 5-Day 316 416 320
Moffat Extra Rod Stamp 931 659 712 Routt NR Fishing 5-Day 1808 1785 1643
Rio Blanco Extra Rod Stamp 404 298 265 Moffat NR Fishing Annual 156 79 108
Routt Extra Rod Stamp 2073 1623 1411 Rio Blanco NR Fishing Annual 158 109 147
Moffat Federal Duck Stamp 101 93 48 Routt NR Fishing Annual 1045 762 795
Rio Blanco Federal Duck Stamp 107 115 57 Moffat NR Furbearer Annual 2 7 1
Routt Federal Duck Stamp 313 308 214 Rio Blanco NR Furbearer Annual 1 2

112



County Product Name 2018 2019 2020
Routt NR Furbearer Annual 1
Routt NR Moose Draw 1
NR Mountain Lion
Moffat OTC 16 37 18
NR Mountain Lion
Rio Blanco OTC 12 46 15
NR Mountain Lion
Routt OTC 9 8 3
Moffat NR Pronghorn Draw 225 231 202
Rio Blanco NR Pronghorn Draw 3 5 1
Routt NR Pronghorn Draw 5 9 19
NR Small Game An-
Moffat nual 96 61 45
NR Small Game An-
Rio Blanco nual 117 91 49
NR Small Game An-
Routt nual 110 80 51
Moffat OHV Permit 504 469 243
Rio Blanco OHV Permit 573 570 271
Routt OHV Permit 280 536 258
Moffat R Deer Draw 134 165 36
Rio Blanco R Deer Draw 78 74 26
Routt R Deer Draw 37 49 23
Moffat R ElIk Draw 97 193 63
Rio Blanco R Elk Draw 41 32 11
Routt R ElIk Draw 24 36 22
Moffat R Fishing 1-Day 202 211
Rio Blanco R Fishing 1-Day 128 122
Routt R Fishing 1-Day 683 751
Routt R Moose Draw 4 1 3
Moffat R Mountain Lion OTC 88 89 30
Rio Blanco R Mountain Lion OTC 66 81 21

Appendix B - Traffic & Licenses | Hunting & Fishing Licenses

County Product Name 2018 2019 2020

Routt R Mountain Lion OTC 33 26 5

Moffat R Pronghorn Draw 99 102 101

Rio Blanco R Pronghorn Draw 14 5 1

Routt R Pronghorn Draw 19 19 18

Moffat R Small Game 1-Day 4 5

Rio Blanco R Small Game 1-Day 2 4

Routt R Small Game 1-Day 2 2

Moffat Res Fishing Annual 1216 1047 1300

Rio Blanco Res Fishing Annual 544 461 579

Routt Res Fishing Annual 4117 3638 3561
Res Furbearer An-

Moffat nual 15 14 9
Res Furbearer An-

Rio Blanco nual 3 1
Res Furbearer An-

Routt nual 11 4 2
Res Small Game &

Moffat Fish 591 469 396
Res Small Game &

Rio Blanco Fish 438 328 264
Res Small Game &

Routt Fish 778 615 479
Res Small Game An-

Moffat nual 383 321 126
Res Small Game An-

Rio Blanco nual 254 218 93
Res Small Game An-

Routt nual 368 357 133
Res Sr Fishing An-

Moffat nual 412 345 207
Res Sr Fishing An-

Rio Blanco nual 276 248 139
Res Sr Fishing An-

Routt nual 1081 999 669

113



County Product Name 2018 2019 2020
Sandhill Crane Per-

Moffat mit 1 1
Sandhill Crane Per-

Rio Blanco mit 3 1
Sandhill Crane Per-

Routt mit 1 3 4
Senior Low Income

Moffat Fishing 18 1
Senior Low Income

Rio Blanco Fishing 19 5 1
Senior Low Income

Routt Fishing 12 8 18

Moffat Small Game 1-Day 100 12

Rio Blanco Small Game 1-Day 70 14

Appendix B - Traffic & Licenses | Hunting & Fishing Licenses

County Product Name 2018 2019 2020

Routt Small Game 1-Day 83 4

Moffat Small Game Add Day 215 104 56

Rio Blanco Small Game Add Day 143 114 67

Routt Small Game Add Day 225 65 68
Youth Small Game

Moffat Annual 106 101 72
Youth Small Game

Rio Blanco Annual 73 88 45
Youth Small Game

Routt Annual 88 62 36

Source: CORA

114



Appendix C — Data Sources | Data Sources

APPENDIX C — DATA SOURCES

Data Sources

Revenue for recreational goods rental, establishments..., Fed-
eral Reserve

Colorado Parks and Wildlife

Travel & Tourism Market Research Handbook- 2011-2012
ChainLinks National Retailer Expansion Guide 2015 Link
Wonder, Minimum Neighborhood Population..., 2017
Fishing & Hunting survey - quick facts - 2016

US Fish & Wildlife Svc., National Survey - Fishing, Hunting,
Wildlife Recreation... - 2016

Visitor Use Management Framework — 2016

Outdoor Recreation Economy - 2017

Wonder, Minimum Neighborhood Population..., 2017
National Shooting Sports Foundation, Target-Shooting-in-
America - 2018

USFS National Visitor Use Monitoring Survey - 2018

USFS Paths More Traveld: Predicting Future Recreation Pres-
sures on America’s National Forests and Grasslands, 2015
Statista, Wildlife Viewing - 2018

SCORP. The 2019 [Colorado] Statewide Comprehensive Out-
door Recreation Plan

Great American Outdoors Act - 2019

NFS National Visitor Use Survey - 2019

National Shooting Sports Foundation, Target-Shooting-in-
America - 2019

Outdoor Foundation, Outdoor Participation Report — 2019
US Bureau of Economic Analysis Outdoor Recreation - 2019
Congressional Research Service, The Outdoor Recreation
Economy - 2019

Bureau of Land Management, Public Land Statistics 2019
Bureau of Economic Analysis Outdoor Recreation Account,
2019

Bureau of Economic Analysis Outdoor Recreation Satellite Ac-
count, 2019,

USDA, Igniting Research in Outdoor Recreation - 2020
USDA, Recreation Economy - 2020

Dean Runyan Associates, Colorado Travel Impacts 200-2019,
2020, prepared for the Colorado Tourism Office

National Shooting Sports Foundation ... Hunting Equipment
Market...2020-2027

Outdoor Recreation Roundtable, Roadmap For 21st Century
Outdoor Recreation Economy

National Forest Svc., Visitor Use -Routt NF, National Visitor
Use Monitoring, FY 2017

Average Percentage Rents Charged in Commercial Leases
link

Percentage Rent in a Commercial Lease Link, Link
Sportsman’s Warehouse 2020 10-K Link, Link

Six Flags 2020 10-K

Lease agreements from Dollar Tree, Fastenal, Domino’s, Kidz
Dentist, Veteran'’s Telehealth

115


http://www.midamericagrp.com/docs/default-source/market-reports/chainlinks_expansionguide_spring2014.pdf?sfvrsn=8
https://www.thebalancesmb.com/average-percentage-commercial-rent-3515423
https://www.nolo.com/legal-encyclopedia/clb-percentage-rent.html
https://www.thebalancesmb.com/average-percentage-commercial-rent-3515423#:~:text=Percentage%20rent%20is%20usually%20about%207%20percent&text=Percentag
https://investors.sportsmans.com/node/9586/html
https://investors.sportsmans.com/static-files/111434fc-0a2e-4679-83ff-b10f29bca8a5

o Meeker-Center-for-Outdoor-Adventure-Study e University of Colorado Boulder, Colorado Business Economy

e Meeker-Adventure-Center-Q-and-A Outlook Link
e Webinar, Steamboat - 2020 e Colorado Dept of Local Affairs, County Data Lookup Link
0 Investin a Great Place for Prosperity.pdf e 2020 10-Kreports
0 Historic Preservation and Urban Revitaliza- 0 Simon
tion.pdf 0 Brixmor
0 Chet Sisk.pptx 0 Kimco Realty
o Ed McMahon.pdf 0 CBL & Assoc
0 Richard Wobbekind.pdf 0 Washington Prime
0 Webinar - Steamboat, 2020-11-20 Packet.pdf 0 Regency Centers
e CORA, license & registration data 0 Macerich
e Moffat County tax rolls o Phillips Edison
e “From Skid Row to LoDo: Historic Preservation’s Role in Den- 0 Weingarten
ver’s Revitalization” Link 0 SITE Centers
e Industry Cluster & Business Recruitment Study — Town of 0 Seritage
Meeker 0 National Retalil

e “Sportsman’s Warehouse to be acquired by owner of Bass
Pro Shops, Cabela’s” Link

e Fishing Hunting Market...2020-2027 Link

e US Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Expenditure Survey -
2020

e USDA, Economic Multipliers in Local Colorado Economies

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank.

116


http://urbanland.uli.org/development-business/from-skid-row-to-lodohistoric-
https://chainstoreage.com/sportsmans-warehouse-be-acquired-owner-bass-pro-shops-cabelas#:~:text=The%20parent%20company%20of%20Bass,Sportsman's%20Warehouse%20operates%20111%20stores.
https://www.marketresearch.com/Grand-View-Research-v4060/Fish-Hunting-Equipment-Size-Share-13145840/
https://www.colorado.edu/business/sites/default/files/attached-files/2020_colo_business_econ_outlook.pdf
https://demography.dola.colorado.gov/population/data/county-data-lookup/

APPENDIX D — COLORADO CERTIFIED COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Alist of Certified Community Development Financial Institutions in Colorado as of March 15, 2021.6

Organization

Name

Affordable Mortgage

Solutions, LLC
Colorado Enterprise
Fund, Inc.

Colorado Housing As-
sistance Corporation
Colorado Housing En-
terprises, LLC
Columbine Federal
Credit Union
Community Choice
Credit Union

Community Enterprise
Development Services

First SouthWest Ban-
corporation, Inc.

First Southwest Bank

Financial
Institution
Type

Loan Fund

Loan Fund

Loan Fund

Loan Fund
Credit Union

Credit Union

Loan Fund

Depository Insti-
tution Holding
Company

Bank or Thrift

6 https://www.cdfifund.gov/faq

Denver

Denver

Denver

Westmin-
ster
Centen-
nial

Com-
merce
City
Aurora

Alamosa

Alamosa

State | Zipcode

CO

CO

CO

CO

Cco

Cco

CO

CO

Cco

80211

80203--115

80204--442

80030--170

80122

80022--210

80012--507

81101--254

81101--254

Address1

3245 Eliot Street

1888 Sherman Street,
Suite 530
670 Santa Fe Drive

7305 Lowell Blvd.
Suite 200
4902 E Dry Creek Rd

6921 E 72nd Ave

1450 S. Havana St.,
Suite 620

720 Main Street P.O.
Box 1139

720 Main Street P.O.
Box 1139

Organization Website

www. habitatmetrodenver.org

http://coloradoenterprisefund.org

www.chaconline.org

www.crhdc.org
https://columbinefcu.org/

www.yourbetterbankingchoice.com

http://www.cedsfinance.org

http://www.fswb.com

http://www.fswb.com

117


https://www.cdfifund.gov/faq

Greenline Community
Development Fund,
LLC

HomesFund (La Plata
Homes Fund, Inc.)
Impact Development
Fund

Mercy Community
Capital

Native American Ban-
corporation, Co.

Native American Bank,
N.A.

NuVista Federal Credit
Union

Oweesta Corporation

Rocky Mountain Micro-
Finance Institute

Triple Bottom Line
Foundation

Loan Fund

Loan Fund

Loan Fund

Loan Fund
Depository Insti-
tution Holding
Company

Bank or Thrift
Credit Union

Loan Fund

Loan Fund

Loan Fund

Denver

Durango
Loveland
Denver

Denver

Denver
Montrose
Long-

mont
Denver

Denver

Cco

Cco

Cco

CO

CO

CcoO

CcoO

CO

CcoO

CO

80202--160

81302--217

80537--487

80202--492

80203--391

80203--391

81401--569

80501--110

80204--813

80220

1324 15th Street

PO Box 2179

200 E. 7th St. #412
1600 Broadway, Suite
2000

201 N Broadway

201 N Broadway
2711 Commercial
Way

2432 Main St

PO Box 48138

7400 W. 14th Ave,
#101

www.greenlineventures.com

www.homesfund.org

http://www.impactdf.org

www.mercycommunitycapital.org

www.nabna.com

www.nabna.com
www.nuvista.org
www.oweesta.org

http://www.rmmfi.org

www.tblfund.org

118



APPENDIX E— SELECTED SECTIONS FROM THE
MEEKER FEASIBILITY STUDY

Sections from the Meeker Feasibility Study included in this ap-
pendix are:
e Executive Summary
Economic & Demographic Summary
Additional Services & Amenities
Shooting Ranges & Facilities
Proposed Facility & Cost Analysis

Executive Summary

In an effort to diversify its economy and create year-round tour-
ism demand, the Town of Meeker (the “Town”) and Rio Blanco
County (the “County”) have commissioned this feasibility study to
explore the viability of a facility that leverages the area’s natural
outdoor recreation assets and existing industry micro-clusters to
create a truly unique center that will become a regional destina-
tion. In order for the proposed facility, hereinafter referred to as
the Center for Outdoor Adventure or the “Center,” to provide a
unique and appealing destination, it will have to feature elements
that are not currently found in the surrounding region. The feasi-
bility study will explore in detail the status of the outdoor experi-
ence market both regionally and nationally, which will provide the
framework and context for the viability of the proposed Center.

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

According to a 2013 survey conducted by the Colorado Parks &
Wildlife (CPW), thirty-six, sixteen, and twelve percent of all Col-
oradans participate in fishing, hunting, and big game hunting,

respectively. The County and Town are well positioned to capital-
ize on this activity due to their location near the White River Na-
tional Forest. The White River National Forest hosts abundant
wildlife and is the most visited National Forest in the country. The
Town is known for big game hunting opportunities in the Flat Top
Wilderness (included in the White River National Forest) area and
excellent fishing along the White River. The Flat Top Wilderness
features the largest elk herd in the state. The White River runs
across the entire County from east to west and is considered one
of the best kept secrets in the State for fly fishing. These unique
competitive advantages will be leveraged to allow the Center to
yield maximum economic impact.

TOTAL ADDRESSABLE MARKET

According to a 2011 U.S. Fish & Wildlife Survey, over 90 million
U.S. residents sixteen years of age and older participated in wild-
life-related recreation. During that year, 33.1 million people
fished, 13.7 million hunted, and 71.8 million participated in at
least one type of wildlife-watching activity including observing,
feeding, or photographing wildlife in the United States.

The five-year comparison of estimates from 2006 to 2011 shows
a three percent increase in the total number of people, sixteen
years of age and older, participating in wildlife recreation activi-
ties in the United States. The increase was primarily among those
who fished and hunted.

119



$2.98 billion was spent in Colorado on Wildlife-related recreation
in 2011 with fifty-two percent of this total, or $1.54 billion dollars,
spent on fishing and hunting alone. These wildlife-related expend-
itures include trip-related and equipment expenditures associ-
ated with fishing, hunting, and wildlife watching.

EXISTING INDUSTRY MICRO-CLUSTERS

In 2013, the National Sporting Goods Association (NSGA) re-
ported that the U.S. archery market was a $535 million market and
had seen significant growth in the past thirty years. Specifically,
the Archery Trade Association (ATA) reported that the number of
archers/bowhunters grew by fourteen percent from 2013 to
2015, reaching a total of 21.6 million participants. The Town is
well positioned to capture economic activity from this industry
segment due to its proximity to hunting game and being home to
two of the largest bow string manufacturers in the world.

Experts within the guide and outfitter industry have reported sig-
nificant growth in the last several years as the hunting and fishing
industry overall grew in terms of participation and expenditures.
The outdoor and wildlife recreation industry is seeing an increas-
ing number of participants who are looking to experience what
outfitters have to offer in order to increase the probability of hav-
ing a successful hunt. The Town already has a micro-cluster within
this industry segment as there are sixteen outfitters located in
Meeker that specialize in guiding services in and around the Flat
Tops Wilderness area.

PROPOSED CENTER FOR OUTDOOR ADVENTURE

The proposed Center will leverage the Town’s competitive ad-
vantages and existing micro-clusters to capture a significant por-
tion of the total addressable market within the region. In order to
differentiate and attract sufficient interest from potential visitors
and establish itself as a destination attraction, the Center will need
to provide a unique blend of activities and technologies including

the most popular traditional shooting sports amenities, the latest
simulation technology, expert instruction, and retail and rental
equipment that focuses on all types of outdoor adventures. Addi-
tionally, the proposed 68,000 square foot facility will feature
Olympic-style indoor archery classrooms for instruction, and a
pro-shop.

While Colorado Parks & Wildlife (CPW) is preparing to construct
a major outdoor shooting complex (the Cameo Complex) in the
Town of Palisade (90 minutes SW from Meeker), the proposed
Center in Meeker is significantly different in scope and mission
and is expected to successfully compete for visitation and con-
sumer spending. Additionally, individuals within CPW have con-
firmed that due to the differences of the proposed Center in
Meeker and the Cameo Complex, CPW would likely be able to
show support for the Center in MeeKer.

PROPOSED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE

Total investment in the facility is estimated at approximately
$9.8M and will require public participation to be financially feasi-
ble. One potential financing structure would involve the public
sector owning the facility and leasing it to a private-sector opera-
tor. The project will require public entities to contribute $3.8M for
initial construction costs, with an additional $4.1M coming from
State and Federal funds, and $1.9M financed by the operator. Pub-
lic investment will be paid back through a lease agreement with
the operator. During the first ten years of operation, the private
sector will pay approximately $5.7M in lease payments to the pub-
lic entities that invested in the facility. After ten years, the opera-
tor will have the option to purchase the facility from the public
sector.

In addition to up-front capital investment, the Center will require

the a public-private partnership for the first ten years by way of
Tax Increment Financing (TIF). After the first ten years, the Center

120



will be fully stabilized and will no longer require TIF. The pro-
posed financing structure provides for financial feasibility of the
Center and has the potential to make a substantial impact on the
local economy.

Economic & Demographic Summary

In order to accurately estimate the number of residents from the
Town and the County that are likely to purchase a membership at
the Center, the demographics of, and current state of the local
economy must be considered. Accurately estimating the number
of memberships at the proposed Center will be essential in fore-
casting the revenue, profitability, and the total cost of the Center
and its impact on the local industry cluster.

DEMOGRAPHIC OVERVIEW OF MEEKER

In order to understand the demographic characteristics in and
around the Town of Meeker, three “drive times” were mapped
within 10, 30 and 60-minute of the Town of Meeker using ESRI
mapping services. Within these “drive times,” all of the basic de-
mographic criteria (population, median household income, hous-
ing units, median age) were measured for the year 2015 and the
estimated statistics for the year 2020. These characteristics are
displayed in Table 1.

TownDfMeekerdemographicdummary

Demographicl Year 10m 30 600
Characteristic Minutes | Minutes | Minutes
Populationd 2015 [FFmR,792 | FHHB,675 | (81,179
(Meeker) 2020 [FFHR,968 | 3,882 | @EB1,795
GrowthRate 1.23% 1.10% 0.39%
Po?Jlsic;on GrowthRate 0.75%
Median@Householdi 2015 $56,739( $58,570| $56,186
Income{Meeker) 2020 $62,825( $64,842| $64,109
Median@ousehold] 2015 $53,217
IncomedUSA) 2020 $60,683
MedianB\gel 2015 39.8 41.4 34.8
(Meeker) 2020 39.5 41.7 34.7
Median@\gel 2015 37.9
(USA) 2020 38.6

Source: U.S. Census, ESRI

Table 1: Summary of Meeker Demographic Characteristics

Map 1 shows the locations within each of the drive times. Within
ten (red area) and thirty (green area) minute drive times from the
Town, the population is growing at a relatively fast rate compared
to the national average. Within ten minutes of the Town, the pop-
ulation is 2,791, the median household income is $56,739 and the
median age is 37.9. As shown in Map 1 on page 122, the City of
Rifle can be reached within a 60-minute drive time (blue area) of
the Town. The City of Craig and the Town of Rangely can also be
reached within a 60-minute drive time of the Town.

121



Source: ESRI

Map 1: Map of Drive Times from Meeker

LocAL MARKET

MARKET SizE

The size of the local market is important for establishing the level
of demand that can be relied upon for the support of local busi-
nesses. Tourism is an important factor and contributes to the
health of many local businesses, but ultimately the local market
size often dictates the number and type of business establish-
ments and amenities that can successfully operate within an area.
Figure 1 depicts the population within a specified driving time,
and shows that Meeker and Rangely have a much smaller local
market size than many of the comparison communities.

200,000 -
160,000 -
c
2 120,000 -
o}
3
2 80,000 -
a
40,000
O T T T T T T 1
. X
P SO
Qo < ,b(\ @
N < >
Qb &
& \@

30Min 45MMin 60@Min

Source: ESRI

Figure 1: Market Size within Driving Radius

In addition to the current local market size, it is important to look
at growth trends within the same driving radii to get a better un-
derstanding of future local market demand. Figure 2 shows the

122



forecasted population growth trends through the year 2020. Fore-
casted population growth over the next five years is much less in
Rangely and Meeker than the comparison cities (other than Rifle),
and is not expected to have a significant impact on the local mar-
ket size. Overall, the small local market size poses a challenge in
establishing the County as a retail node. However, increased mar-
keting efforts associated with the Center and the natural assets in
and around the Town will help establish the Town as an emerging
tourist destination with the State and the Nation. Successfully
branding the Town as an outdoor adventure location will be es-
sential in the Center’s success and in increasing tourism in the
Area. Achieving these goal will take time and a strong commit-
ment from both the public and private partners involved.

3.00% 7
2.50% -
2.00% 7
1.50% -
1.00% A
0.50%
0.00% T T T T T T 1
-0.50% -
-1.00% -

Population? Growth

30Min 45MMin 60MMin

Source: ESRI

Figure 2: Population Growth within Driving Radius

PROXIMITY/ACCESS

The Towns of Rangely and Meeker are located along US Highway
64, and are approximately 75 and 45 miles away from the nearest
Interstate (I-70), respectively. US Highway 40 is the busiest high-
way near Rangely and Meeker and is located approximately 18
and 45 miles to the north, respectively. Additionally, US Highway
13 runs through Meeker and serves as a connection between [-70,
Highway 40, and beyond to I-80.

Distance from major transportation corridors has been a factor
historically in general tourism traffic, although hunting season
and special events have shown that targeted tourism can be suc-
cessful. Both towns are under a two-hour drive to the nearest
large city (Grand Junction, Colorado), but the communities are far
removed from the nearest Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). In
the case of Rangely, the nearest MSA is Salt Lake City, Utah which
is 222 miles to the west. For Meeker, Denver is the nearest MSA
and is located 225 miles to the east. Figure 3 shows that Rangely
and Meeker are in the middle of the range of the comparison cities
in terms of the distance to the nearest MSA. The distance creates
a disadvantage for regional tourism and other industries that rely
on the Front Range as a key market.

123



300 1
250 -
200 A
w
[}
= 150 A
=
100 H
50 -
0 = T T T T T T
. X
\)’é’& ‘ii\\\e (}Q’\% °oe\\\ Pl 3 ol
> o < & Q
> & \} N
& &
N &

Source: Google Maps
Figure 3: Distance to Nearest MSA

Economic OVERVIEW OF RI0 BLANCO COUNTY

COUNTY RESIDENTS

The 2015 population for Rio Blanco County is estimated at 6,826
with the population split quite evenly between Meeker, Rangely
and unincorporated areas of the County. The County experienced
gradual population decrease through the early 2000’s due to sev-
eral years of significant negative net migration. The population
grew steadily from 2006-2012 driven by a mixture of migration
and natural population increase (see Figure 4).

7,000 1 - 300
6,800 - 250
6,600 1 Population - 200
&
6,400 - 150 <
c ©
o) e
56,200 - - 100 ©
© c
> o
2 6,000 - 50 fv
[al8 =)
5,800 1 0 3
o
5,600 1 - -50
5,400 - -100
5,200 — T -150
AN N < N O MNN00O0) O N <
O O O O OO O O O o ™ o o
O O O O OO OO0 oo o o o
AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN

Source: DOLA

Figure 4: Rio Blanco County Population 2001-2014

MEDIAN AGE

Rio Blanco County’s median age increased from 38.4 in 2000 to
40.8 in 2008, which was well above the state average (see Figure
5). The Median age subsequently decreased to 38 in 2014, and is
expected to hold steady and decline slightly until it aligns with the
Colorado state average in the year 2020. The decrease in median
age is attributed to an increase in the 0-17 age group, as well as an
increase in the 25-44 age group (Figure 5).

124



42.01

40.08

38.0 -

Ado

34.00

32.08

30‘0 IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
TN N FTNWORNOVANAO A NMTNONO®OD O
0O 00000000 dddddoddodddodd
SO0 0000000000000 O0O0 O OO
NANNNNNNRANNRNNNRNNRQNANN

Figure 5: Median Age 2001-2020

REAL ESTATE IN Ri0 BLANCO COUNTY

The real estate market is an important aspect of the local econ-
omy, not only in terms of transactional activity, but also in terms
of providing attractive and desirable housing for present and fu-
ture employees. It will also have an impact on the land acquisition
costs for the Center.

The real estate market in Meeker has not fully recovered from the
housing crisis of 2008 and the average sales price was approxi-
mately $180,000 in 2014, which is 8 percent less in than the 2008
average. The number of transactions has yet to reach 2008 levels
(see Figure 6).

$250,000 - 50
- 45

$200,000 - N - 40

g - A
a
@ $150,000 - - 30
Y V
3 - 25
& $100,000 - ~\J - 20
()
Z - 15
$50,000 - - 10
- 5
$- S —— R
ng Al A Q m
(W) (8] (\) N7 N
N N N N <

Source: RBC Assessor and Recorder

Figure 6: Meeker Real Estate Market 2001-2014

Average sales prices in the rural parts of the County have been
significantly more volatile than the Town. Part of the volatility is
due to the broad range of housing values, stretching from modest
homesteads to river-front property in the million-dollar range. A
few transactions in the upper price range have the ability to lift
average prices in a significant way, which is what happened in
2008 and 2012. Although the average sales price was significantly
lower in 2014 than in 2012 or 2008, the number of transactions
has nearly doubled from 2008 (see Figure 7).

125



$900,000 - - 16
$800,000 - 14
o $700,000 L 15
£ $600,000
e > - 10
< $500,000 -
» - 8
& $400,000 -
S - 6
¢ $300,000 -
< - 4
$200,000
$100,000 - ¢ 2
$- e
N > N QS M
QO S (S) N N
N N N N N

Source: RBC Assessor and Recorder

Figure 7: Rural Rio Blanco County Real Estate Market 2001-2014

Overall, housing is very affordable within the Town of Meeker, and
the areas outside of Town provide a wide range of options that
will appeal to a diverse clientele. It is anticipated that increased
visitation driven from the Center will have a significant impact on
the local real estate market by increasing exposure to the diversity
in housing options available near the Town for second home own-
ers.

CLIMATE

TEMPERATURE

It is important to consider the climate of the Town in order to un-
derstand what outdoor and recreational activities occur during all
four seasons. This will help estimate the participation rates of ser-
vices such as ATV & snowmobile tours/rentals, backpacking
tours, wildlife watching tours, fly fishing and others.

The temperature in Meeker closely follows the State average,
while the temperature in Rangely is more extreme in both the
summer and the winter. On average, Rangely is approximately five
degrees warmer than Meeker and the State throughout the spring,
summer, and fall months, and is approximately ten degrees cooler
during the winter months. It is not uncommon for temperatures
to dip into the -20s in Rangely during the winter. Figure 8 shows
how average temperatures compare to the State and National av-
erages.

75 7
65 1
55 -
45 A
35 1

25 A

15 T T T T T T T T T T T 1

A XD N\

(\\)’b \\)'bé @'b&g ?’Q& @lb
NP

- Meeker =—Rangely = Colorado =——US

Source: usa.com
Figure 8: Average Temperature Comparison

PRECIPITATION

The Towns of Meeker and Rangely receive approximately fifteen
and ten inches of precipitation per year, respectively. Both towns
receive less than the State average of seventeen inches per year
(see Figure 9). Runoff from snowfall which feeds into the White

126



River is vitally important to both communities and serves as the
source of drinking water, and provides recreational opportunities
such as fishing, boating, rafting, etc.

2.5 1

&

g %

e

2 1.5

=

[*]

£

= 17

f=

N=]

L d

805 -

2

3

E O T T T T T T T T T T T 1

; S S SN
\},b \)@6 R ‘?‘QQ & \o° R @;—; & 600 & &
SR\ S L L&
& & A A O
¥ 9
= Meeker ~=—=Rangely = Colorado

Source: usa.com
Figure 9: Average Precipitation Comparison

AIR QUALITY

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has established the
Air Quality Index (AQI) as a method of establishing a daily meas-
ure of air quality at a given location. Air quality ranges from low
values to high, or “Good” to “Very Unhealthy” depending on the
level of air pollution. Air quality in Rio Blanco County is good with
a median AQI value of 40. The average AQI in the County is within
the range of neighboring counties, but is higher than other agrar-
ian counties such as Delta (see Figure 10). Overall, the County’s
AQI falls within the “Good” category more than 95 percent of the
time.

45 A
40
g 35 A
(T
> 30 A
x
(]
"_,':-‘ 25 -
£ 20
S
g 15 A
E 10 -
5 -
O -
Delta Gar‘ﬂeld l\/loffat Rio Uintah Mesa
Blanco  (Utah)
Source: EPA
Figure 10: Median Air Quality Index Value
SUMMARY

This chapter emphasizes the strengths and weaknesses associ-
ated with the location, demographics and local economy in the
Town. While the Town may currently experience lower visitation
rates due to its isolated location and distance from major cities, it
possesses the proper outdoor climate, air quality, and precipita-
tion and overall outdoor atmosphere needed to become a destina-
tion for outdoor enthusiasts. The Town'’s natural assets, growing
number of luxury resorts (High Lonesome Ranch & Elk Creek
Ranch) and its gateway location to the beautiful Flat Tops Wilder-
ness will become primary drivers in establishing the area as a
tourist destination.

127



Additional Services & Amenities

INTRODUCTION

As will be discussed in future sections of this report, the proposed
Center will feature multiple indoor shooting ranges, food and bev-
erage offerings, a pro-shop and multiple classrooms for instruc-
tion and training. In order to broaden the scope of the Center and
truly make it a “Center of Outdoor Adventure,” it is recommended
that additional services and amenities be included.

WILDLIFE-WATCHING AND SITE-SEEING TOURS

NATIONAL WiLDLIFE WATCHING

According to a 2011 U.S. Fish & Wildlife Survey, over 90 million
U.S. residents 16 years and older participated in wildlife-related
recreation. During that year, 33.1 million people fished, 13.7 mil-
lion hunted, and 71.8 million participated in at least one type of
wildlife-watching activity including observing, feeding, or photo-
graphing wildlife in the United States.

WiLpLiIFE WATCHING IN COLORADO

According to the same study performed by the U.S. Fish & Wildlife
in 2011, there were approximately 1,456,000 Colorado residents
who participated in wildlife watching during the year, yet there
were approximately 1,782,000 total participants (Colorado resi-
dents and nonresidents) who participated in wildlife watching
within the State in 2011. Thus, Colorado is able to attract wildlife
related activity participants from throughout the region, and not
just from within the State.

A survey conducted by the CPW in 2012 revealed that approxi-
mately 19.2 percent of Colorado’s residents participated in some
form of “wildlife viewing” during the year. Wildlife viewing was
ranked the 12t most popular outdoor activity in the State with a
total of 14,456,827 participation days.

As demonstrated in these reports, wildlife watching is a major
component of outdoor recreation throughout the Nation, but es-
pecially in Colorado due to the many species of wildlife and geo-
graphical features for participants to view and experience. Given
the natural assets and wildlife in and around the Town, wildlife-
watching tours could be an additional service that could dramati-
cally increase the amount of tourism and participation at the Cen-
ter.

Most of the wildlife watching throughout the State is done simply
by driving through National Forests and State Parks. While wild-
life watchers spend less on average than hunters and anglers, they
still spent over $55 billion on equipment and trip-related expend-
itures in 2011, and thirty-one percent of these expenditures are
trip-related. Wildlife watchers have shown that they are willing to
travel to see wildlife and stay overnight in order to visit unique
locations.

There are already thousands of visitors who visit the Town, the
Flat Tops Wilderness, and the White River to experience the wild-
life that this area has to offer. However, a guided tour for wildlife
watchers could increase the incentive for wildlife watchers in and
outside the State to visit the Town and the surrounding wilder-
ness. There are many hunting guides that take clients into the Flat
Tops Wilderness. However, there is no guided tour of the Flat
Tops Wilderness that is focused on wildlife watchers.

The proposed Center could serve as the base camp for a wildlife
watching tour. Visitors could pay a tour fee and leave from the
Center on a jeep, bus, or OHV and travel into the mountains, visit-
ing locations along the way where the probability of seeing wild-
life from the road (or close proximity to the road) is highest.

129



CoLoRADO WILDERNESS RIDES AND GUIDES (CWRG)

Currently, there are multiple site seeing tour agencies in the State.
The majority of these are located in and around the Denver MSA.
These tour agencies include jeep, helicopter, biking, rafting and
hiking tours of the mountains and State Parks. These agencies
aren’t specific to wildlife watching, but site seeing in general. One
of the most well-known site seeing tour agencies in the State is
“Colorado Wilderness Rides and Guides” in Boulder, CO. This site
seeing agency offers a variety of activities that include:

e Backpacking trips

e Bike tours

e Education and Training (for first responders, guides,
medical professionals and outdoor enthusiasts)

e Fly Fishing Trips & Instruction

Guided Hiking Trips

Horseback Riding

Rafting

Mountain Biking

Rock Climbing

Sightseeing tours

Ski tours

Snowshoeing

Team building activities

CWRG is likely able to charge more for its services than the Center
in Meeker due to the proximity of major population centers, but
pricing information will be included within this report as a refer-
ence. CWRG offers package deals for their customers to allow
them to participate in multiple activities during the same visit.
One of the packages includes a 1-hour horseback ride and a half
day whitewater rafting trip for $100 per person. Another package
offers a 2-hour horseback ride followed by a half-day rock climb-
ing trip for $195 per person. Another package offers a full day of
outdoor adventure split into rock-climbing and mountain biking

trips for $260 per person. Other packages may be available by re-
quest for certain groups and preferred activities. Transportation
is provided for all of these activities. The clients and the equip-
ment are transported to the various destinations in vans as seen
in Figure 11.

Source: Colorado Wilderness Rides and Guides website

Figure 11: Colorado Wilderness Rides and Guides Van

The Town features many natural assets similar to those of Boul-
der, CO and a site seeing agency in Meeker could offer similar ser-
vices to those of CWRG. It would be beneficial to communicate
with the owner of CWRG, Josh Baruch to inquire about CWRG’s
possible interest in expanding their geographical market to in-
clude the Town of Meeker. The Center, combined with these addi-
tional services provided by CWRG would be an excellent fit for the
Town and its outdoor recreation-oriented atmosphere.

THE MoAB ADVENTURE CENTER

Another successful site seeing agency is the “Moab Adventure
Center” in Moab, UT which offers:

129



e Rafting trips

Hummer Safaris - ($173/adult and $125/youth for 4
hours)

National Park Tours

Stand up paddle-boarding

Climbing & Canyoneering guided trips

Hot air balloon rides

Mountain biking trips

Scenic flights

Horseback riding trips

Jeep rentals - ($190/day for a 2-door, $210/day for a 4
door

Zip Line Tour

e Private tours

Source: Moab Adventure Center Website

Figure 12: Moab Adventure Center Tours and Jeep Rentals

An average daily rental rate for a jeep is $200. This adventure cen-
ter has also incorporated a “safari” type feel in their tours. The ex-
citement and “adventure” feel associated with the Moab Adven-
ture Center has helped it find success and increase tourism in the
Moab area. The Hummers used in the safari tours can be seen driv-
ing to and from the Adventure Center along Main Street in Moab.
The excellent visibility and appearance of the Center has success-
fully exposed the tour agency to tourists traveling through the
area (see Figure 12.)

Moab is located along Utah State Highway 191 which had an an-
nual average daily traffic (AADT) of 15,850 in downtown Moab
during 2014. In that same year, the Town of Meeker had an AADT
of 5,500 at the corner of Market Street and 3rd Street in the down-
town area. Since the Town lacks a high AADT compared to Moab,
additional marketing efforts would be required to attract tourists
to visit the area. The geographical atmosphere of Moab is similar
to the Town in respect to the desert and wilderness areas that ex-
ist within twenty minutes of each location. An approach similar to
the Moab Adventure Center could prove successful in the Town as
well.

Given the natural assets associated with the Town and surround-
ing area, the site seeing tour based out of the Center could offer
several types of tours, including ones that are similar to those of-
fered at the CWRG and the Moab Adventure Center. Since the
Town features the Flat Tops Wilderness with many elk, deer and
other animals, the focus of these tours could be wildlife watching
and the other trips (horseback riding, mountain biking, backpack-
ing, hiking, OHV tours fly fishing etc.) can be offered as additional
tours. This would allow the Center to reach a broad market and
attract the greatest amount of outdoor enthusiasts, wildlife
watchers, hunters, anglers and more to visit the area.

130



ACCESS TO THE WHITE RIVER NF AND THE FLAT TopPS WILDERNESS

These site seeing and adventure tours would require a quick route
into the National Forest. The “Flat Tops Trail Scenic Byway”, also
known as County Road 8 connects the Towns of Meeker and
Yampa and runs through the Forest, but does not cross into the
Wilderness Area (see Figure 13). Trappers Lake is considered the
heart of the Flat Tops Wilderness, and is located approximately
fifty miles, or about 1.5 hrs. from Town. However, there are mul-
tiple trails, scenic views, other outdoor destinations located
within a shorter drive time.

Once in the Wilderness area, hikers or wildlife watchers may walk
on designated trails to various locations throughout the Wilder-
ness. The extensive OHV trail system would allow for the site see-
ing and adventure tours to visit numerous locations around the
Flat Tops Wilderness. Once in the wilderness area, only hiking and
horseback riding is allowed because no motorized vehicles are
permitted in any Colorado wilderness area.

THE EFFECTS OF OUTDOOR TOURS ON THE WILDLIFE AND THE EN-

VIRONMENT

Increasing the traffic and participation in both the White River NF
and the Flat Tops Wilderness through wildlife and outdoor tours
raises the concern of potential negative impacts on wildlife and
their habitat. However, Bill deVergie, a representative from Colo-
rado Parks and Wildlife, stated that as long as the tour guides and
the participants respect the permitted use requirements for both
trails and roads, there will be little effect on the wildlife in and
around the Flat Tops Wilderness. This was also the feeling of Mr.
Curtis Keetch, a District Ranger for the White River NF. Of course,
such a touring agency would have to acquire a permit from the
USFS, just like the outfitters, in order to operate in the National
Forest.

Source: The Colorado Vacation Directory

Figure 13: Flat Tops Trail Scenic Byway

OFF HIGHWAY VEHICLE RENTAL AND TRAINING

THE MOST EXTENSIVE OHV TRAIL SYSTEM IN COLORADO

The “Blanco Ranger District” encompasses the entire Flat Tops
Wilderness Area (235,406 acres) and surrounding Forest land in
the White River NF near the Town. This District provides access
to a wide range of recreational opportunities. There are nine im-
proved campgrounds, picnic facilities and an abundance of well-
marked trailheads for access to backcountry and wilderness.
There are a total of seventeen OHV trails in the District, making it
the most extensive OHV trail system in the State. There are also
forty-four marked hiking trails in the District covering a total of
160 miles. These trails and access points throughout the Flat Tops
is a major asset to the Town and can be further utilized by offering
OHV tours and OHV rentals.

131



WAGON WHEEL TRAIL SYSTEM AND RENDEZVOUS

In an effort to connect and increase the number of OHV trails in
and around the Town, the Wagon Wheel Trail System was created
by Rio Blanco County and surrounding organizations to create and
interconnect 250 miles of designated riding trails. This has signif-
icantly increased the Town’s and County’s ability to attract OHV
enthusiasts. MeeKker is also considered an “OHV friendly” commu-
nity and allows owners of registered OHVs to ride their vehicles
into Town and on the Town'’s streets. This would make it easy for
an OHV rental agency to be located in Town and still allow cus-
tomers to ride from the downtown area to the surrounding moun-
tains.

The County and local Chamber also host an annual OHV Rendez-
vous that is open to all OHV riders. This annual event is a great
start to what could potentially grow into a series of OHV related
events hosted by the Town and the Center. The Wagon Wheel OHV
Rendezvous is typically held in July and includes various guided
and unguided rides throughout the White River NF. The annual
rendezvous also features live music, an OHV expo, an OHV rodeo
and food vendors in the Town.

OHV RENTAL SERVICE

It is common for touring agencies in places like Moab, UT and Es-
tes Park, CO to rent various OHVs to tourists. For example, High
Point Hummer & ATV in Moab, UT offers guided adventure trips
and OHV rentals. The guided adventure trips include:

Guided Hummer tours

ATV / RZR Guided trips
Canyoneering and Hiking trips
Rock Climbing lessons
Whitewater Rafting trips
Mountain bike tours

High Point rents all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) for $189 per day and
utility task vehicles (UTVs), Razors (RZRs), Jeeps and motorcycles
at varying rates (between $289 and $470 per day) depending on
the size (number of seats) and engine capability of each vehicle.
The Estes Park ATV Rental agency offers a similar set of OHVs and
daily rates. Some tourists may not want to participate in a guided
tour, but may have significant interest in renting an OHV to expe-
rience the mountains on their own. Thus, it is recommended that
the Center serve as a base camp for rentals as well as guided trips
in order to appeal to a broad range of outdoor enthusiasts.

Traffic visibility is critical for ATV rentals and guided tours. Hav-
ing a presence on Market Street in Meeker will be important be-
cause it will provide a potential operator the greatest traffic
counts and exposure.

OHV RACES AND COMPETITIONS

The largest privately owned OHV riding area in the Country is
Windrock Park in Oliver Springs, Tennessee. The Town of Oliver
Springs is located 45 minutes West of Knoxville, TN. Although Ol-
iver Springs is closer to a major MSA than Meeker is to Denver, it
is very similar to Meeker in respect to traffic counts (AADT), pop-
ulation, and surrounding environment. The Town of Oliver
Springs has a population of 3,231 and an approximate AADT of
8,074 along its Main Street. Windrock Park rents OHVs and hosts
OHV competitions including hill climbing, drag racing, mud bog-
ging races and obstacle course races at the Windrock Hollow com-
petition area. This competition area has been specifically designed
to host OHV events and is also located on land owned by Windrock
Park. The Spring Jamboree at Windrock Hollow had approxi-
mately 6,000 attendees in 2015. A photo from the 2015 Spring
Jamboree can be seen in Figure 14.

132



Source: Windrock Park Website

Figure 14: Windrock Hollow Mud Bogging Event

The Park features 350 miles of trails on 72,000 acres of private
land. Windrock Park also features an RV park, seventeen cabins
and an outdoor shooting range for their guests. Windrock Park
has strived to differentiate itself as an outdoor destination by ap-
pealing to individuals interested in RV parks/destination travel-
ing, OHV riding and competitions, camping, hiking, shooting
sports and vacationing in the mountains. The Town and the Cen-
ter have an opportunity to create an environment similar as Win-
drock Park because the Town already has an expansive OHV trail
network, the County fairgrounds facility and the RV parks in Town
to host such events.

Mud bogging, drag racing, and obstacle course competitions such
as those conducted at Windrock Park could be held at the fair-
grounds in Meeker. The Wagon Wheel Rendezvous already fea-
tures some of these types of events and competitions, but could
grow to include several annual events. As described previously,
overnight guests staying at the hotels or RV parks in Town have

the ability to drive their registered OHVs to the fairgrounds or the
OHYV trailheads. This atmosphere makes Meeker an ideal location
for OHV competitions and events.

Source: Windrock Park Website
Figure 15: Windrock Hollow OHV Obstacle Course

Photos of the obstacle course and drag races used at Windrock
Hollow can be seen in Figure 15 and Figure 16 on the following

page.

133



Source: Windrock Park Website

Figure 16: ATV Drag Racing at Windrock Hollow

SEARCH & RESCUE TRAINING

The Town is surrounded by both desert and forest landscapes.
This makes the Town a potential location for various outdoor
training exercises that aim to master both the desert and the for-
est environments. One potential market that may be attracted to

the environment that surrounds Meeker is search and rescue
(SAR) training.

COLORADO SEARCH AND RESCUE BOARD

A conversation was held with Paul Woodward, the President of
the Colorado Search and Rescue Board in regards to current train-
ing methods and locations used in Colorado by Search and Rescue
(SAR) teams. Mr. Woodward says that the majority (seventy-five
percent) of the SAR missions that occur each year take place in the
mountains near the Denver MSA simply due to more people being
in these mountains. Currently, each County SAR team conducts

training within their respective home County. Mr. Woodward says
that the SAR teams prefer to train in their own counties in order
to be most effective because they must be familiar with the land,
trails, access and other individual characteristics associated with
each county. Mr. Woodward also stated that some of the largest
training sessions they’ve had in the Denver SAR teams are groups
of approximately thirty individuals, which does not make up a
large market. It is Mr. Woodward’s opinion that a SAR training
course/seminar in Meeker wouldn’t be effective due to these rea-
sons.

To further explore the potential to incorporate SAR training into
the center, Chris Boyer, the Executive Director at the National As-
sociation of Search and Rescue (NASAR) was interviewed. While
the Colorado County SAR teams prefer to train within their own
County borders, it is Mr. Chris Boyer’s opinion that a large and
growing population of civilians interested in technical instruction
could be attracted to a mountain-style search & rescue training fa-
cility in Meeker. In a conversation with Mr. Boyer, he explained
how the U.S. National Whitewater Center in Charlotte, NC has at-
tracted a large population of search & rescue professionals as well
as regular civilians, looking to learn how to manage intense white-
water rafting. The Center features the world’s largest and most
complex recirculating artificial whitewater river. Those attending
the Center come both to recreate and to learn. The center is con-
sidered a non-profit outdoor recreation and athletic training cen-
ter and is located on approximately 700 acres of land.

It is Mr. Boyer’s opinion that a search and rescue training/recrea-
tional center located in a western location such as Meeker would
be successful. Mr. Boyer stated that such a center could offer wil-
derness, water and fire-fighting training for experts and profes-
sionals, as well as offer tourist and recreational activities such as
a zip-line course, ropes courses and shooting courses. Nothing of
this nature, associated with the NASAR currently exists. Mr. Boyer

134



expressed that he and the Association would be willing to offer
their support of such a facility. Ute Park may be an ideal location.

SNOWMOBILING RENTALS AND TOURS

THE WHITE RIVER SNOWMOBILE CLUB

The White River Snowmobile Club is a non-profit organization lo-
cated in the Town that maintains over 178 miles of trails in Rio
Blanco County. Seventy-eight of these miles are groomed. The
Club hosts an annual snowmobile race, “The White River Rumble”
that takes place in the White River NF. The race is 70 miles in
length and features groomed and ungroomed trails. It begins and
ends near the Town of Buford, East of Meeker. The first race was
held in March of 2016. The primary sponsor of the event was Ex-
treme Power Sports, located in Steamboat Springs, CO. Gary Eu-
bank, the owner of Extreme Power Sports says that the event was
a success and attracted multiple single riders and families.

The peak season for snowmobiling in Colorado is between Janu-
ary and March when the snowpack is sufficiently deep. The first
snowfall near Meeker usually occurs in late October, but melts
quickly. As seen in Figure 17, the snow begins to remain and accu-
mulate in November. Figure 17 depicts the monthly snow depth
(in inches) at Trappers Lake between July 2015 and June 2016.

50

40

45
42
35
33
30
21
20
11

10

o o o o 1 0
0 | |

JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Source: USDA National Resource Conservation Service (NRCS)

Figure 17: Snow depth at Trappers Lake Between 7/15 and 6/16

BACKPACKING TRIPS AND TRAINING

BACKPACKING

Backpacking is typically defined as the outdoor recreation activity
of carrying gear on one's back while hiking. A typical backpacking
trip requires that the backpacker bring food, water, bedding, shel-
ter, clothing, a stove, and cooking kit. Packing all of this gear into
a backpack while not making the backpack too heavy is difficult.
Backpacking trips can consist of a short trip of only a few hours,
to expansive trips that can last for weeks or months, sometimes
aided by planned resupply points or drops.

Survival skills can provide peace of mind and may make the dif-
ference between life and death when the weather, terrain, or en-
vironment turns unexpectedly for the worse. In case of disorien-
tation, orienteering skills are important to determine the current
location and formulate a route to somewhere more desirable.

135



First aid is also important, and many consider it to be one of the
most fundamental backpacking skills.

Learning by experience, or backpacking with those with experi-
ence is the common way of learning these skills. Offering back-
packing guided trips and instruction in the Town and the sur-
rounding wilderness is another way in which Meeker could attract
outdoor enthusiasts to come and experience the Flat Tops Wilder-
ness and surrounding Forest land. The aforementioned Colorado
Wilderness Rides and Guides (CWRG) in Boulder offers backpack-
ing trips. However, these trips don’t offer specific instruction fo-
cused on skills needed in the backcountry.

BECOMING A WORLD-CLASS BACKPACKING DESTINATION

The White River NF and the Flat Tops Wilderness are ideal loca-
tions for backpacking trips. Backpackers are always looking for
new, beautiful, mountainous regions to explore and experience.
To date, the Flat Tops are relatively unknown; the lack of aware-
ness presents an opportunity for growth through targeted mar-
keting, and by leveraging the Center as the ideal destination for
instruction, as well as the access point to the wilderness. Several
types of backpacking tours could be offered out of the Center, in-
cluding day-hikes for beginners and multi-day trips for advanced
individuals.

One potential resource for marking the backpacking trips availa-
ble through the Center is Recreational Equipment Inc. (REI). REI
offers classes, outings and events through “REI Adventures” and
experts from REI set up the hikes with local experts who take
backpackers through the mountain while teaching necessary
skills. It would be beneficial for the Town to identify local experts
in hiking and backpacking who could be added to this list of REI
local experts for the Meeker area. A description of the Town and
the backpacking trails throughout the White River NF and the Flat
Tops Wilderness was sent to REI along with images of the Flat

Tops Wilderness alongside a request to add the Flat Tops Wilder-
ness to REI’s list of Colorado backpacking destinations. This re-
quest was sent on June 13, 2016.

CLASSROOM USE

POTENTIAL USES

As will be presented later in this document, the proposed facility
includes four 800 sq. ft. classrooms. These classrooms will be used
to offer a wide array of training and instructional courses. Some
of the possible uses that have already been addressed are those
related to outfitters and hunting/fishing guides. While these class-
rooms may be used for a variety of activities and seminars. Below
is a list of potential uses for these classrooms:

e OQutfitter training:

0 Insurance Providers and Instruction
Working with Land Owners
Obtaining special-use permits
Taxes and accounting
Marketing to new clientele

0 Creating the ideal customer experience
e Hunting / fishing guide school classes:

O O0OO0Oo

0 Land rights and regulations
0 Stocking / Pursuit classes
0 Backcountry instruction

O Survival skills

0 Firstaid courses

0 Hunter safety review
e Hunter education courses
e Firearm training
0 Understanding your own equipment
0 Longrange shooting
0 General rifle shooting classes
e Fly fishing classes

136



0 Casting courses (taught in classrooms and in ar-
chery range for full-cast practice)
0 Flies, knots and equipment
o Self-defense courses / Concealed carry permits
0 Pistol handling
0 Shooting etiquette
0 Concealed carry permit courses
e Big Game Hunting
0 Spotting, Stalking and Tracking classes
0 Shooting instruction
0 Proper dressing and meat handling
e Search and Rescue classes
0 Rio Blanco SAR team
e Wildlife watching instruction
0 Conservation
0 Backcountry practices
0 Photography
e OHV training & certification
Backpacking instruction

HUNTER EDUCATION

Mr. Bill deVergie stated that the CPW would be interested in using
the classrooms and shooting ranges for hunter education courses.
Students in these courses are required to test their marksmanship
with a rifle. Mr. deVergie also stated that the Center would be a
perfect environment for local hunter education classes due to the
indoor classrooms and shooting ranges being located at the same
facility. There are certified hunter education instructors in all sur-
rounding cities and each County has their own classes so the de-
mand for these courses may be limited during the summer
months to students in Town. However, Mr. deVergie stated that
the indoor shooting range would create a regional draw for stu-
dents in neighboring counties who need hunter education certifi-
cation during the winter months. If Meeker were to offer monthly
hunter education courses, it would capture these students.

INDOOR SHOOTING RANGES IN THE UNITED STATES

According to National Institute for Occupational Safety and
Health, an estimated 16,000 to 18,000 indoor firing ranges are in
operation in the United States. Of these indoor shooting ranges,
only a small number (estimated to be less than 50) incorporate
virtual technology. Those that do utilize virtual technology are
typically geared toward law enforcement, military, and self-de-
fense training. While there are smaller versions of virtual hunting
simulators for both rifle and archery, there are not any indoor
ranges in the U.S. that compare with the MSZU complex in terms
of technology (shot analysis), distance of ranges, and permitted
weapons and ammo. The MSZU complex allows shooters to use
their own rifles, real ammo (full metal jacket, hollow point
rounds), at distances of 25m and 100m. The majority of existing
virtual rifle hunting simulators in the U.S. only allow shooters to
use simulated ammo at a distance up to 25m using a laser-hit de-
tection system.

While the simulated ammo may accurately simulate the recoil of
firing a round, many hunters prefer to “dial in” their rifle, scope
and ammunition by using the same equipment that they’ll be us-
ing in the field at a distance that they're likely to shoot from in the
field. For rifle hunters, an indoor range reaching 25m is simply in-
sufficient, unless the virtual atmosphere is able to accurately sim-
ulated a long-range shot. On a typical outdoor rifle range, shooters
fire at targets 100-300 yards (91-275 meters) or greater. The dis-
tance of the ranges at MSZU (25m up to 300m) and the technology
associated with these ranges have created as real of an atmos-
phere that can be attained in an indoor range.

GANDER MOUNTAIN VIRTUAL SHOOTING RANGES

One of the most well-known virtual shooting ranges in the United
States is the Gander Mountain Academy that features virtual in-
door ranges and training courses in Wisconsin, Florida,

137



Minnesota, Texas and Kansas. Similar to Cabela’s in the Western
States, Gander Mountain is a major outdoor retailer that operates
in the Central and Eastern United States. Gander Mountain fea-
tures a host of outdoor-related products related to hunting, fish-
ing, archery, boating and camping.

The Gander Mountain Academy markets its training courses to all
types of users from beginning shooters all the way to law enforce-
ment officers). Their training courses have been considered the
first in the nation to offer indoor self-defense training to civilians.
These ranges use real firearms that have been modified with laser
recoil kits. The theme associated with the Gander Mountain
ranges is self-defense as can be seen in Figure 18

Source: Gander Mountain Academy Website

Figure 18: Gander Mountain Virtual Shooting Range

There is also a virtual “simulator” in which a shooter is sur-
rounded by canvas screens upon which a picture or video is pro-
jected. The shooter practices shooting in intense scenarios, such
as a hostage situation or a terrorist attack (Figure 19). The major-
ity of the other virtual ranges around the country are similar to
those of Gander Mountain in respect to the length of the virtual

range, the type of ammo, and the virtual technology used. How-
ever, Gander Mountain Academy is well-known in the self-defense
training community due to its multiple range locations and the
structure of its training courses.

Source: Gander Mountain Academy Website

Figure 19: Gander Mountain Virtual Simulator

ARCHERY RANGES IN THE U.S.

Competitive archery involves shooting arrows at a target for ac-
curacy from a set distance. This is the most popular form of com-
petitive archery worldwide and is called target archery. A form
particularly popular in Europe and America is field archery, shot
at targets generally set at various distances in a wooded setting.
Competitive archery in the United States is governed by USA Ar-
chery and National Field Archery Association (NFAA), which also
certifies instructors. A standard Olympic archery range is 70 me-
ters or 76.55 yards.

138



THE EASTON ARCHERY FOUNDATION

Easton Sports Development Foundation exists to further the sport
of archery by bridging the gap between first experience and elite
experience. The goal of The Easton Foundation is to promote and
maintain the viability of archery by growing the sport as a main-
stream activity at the state, regional, and national level. This is ac-
complished by developing grassroots programs in communities
and schools and supporting college and university programs to in-
spire the next generation of prospective Olympians.

The Foundations supports the building and/or operation of out-
door and indoor archery facilities at city parks, schools, universi-
ties, and sports complexes throughout the U.S. In addition to these
facilities, the Foundation provides programs to train aspiring
archers, trainers, coaches, and administrators. Easton Sports De-
velopment Foundation I (ESDFII) awards several grants every
year to clubs, programs, schools, colleges and universities, and or-
ganizations that propose archery-related plans or projects.

A typical Easton Archery Center supports all styles of archery:
Olympic-style training, practice & competition fields, field & 3-D
Courses, and bowhunting ranges. Year round regional and local
archery activities occur at these centers at both indoor and out-
door ranges. There are only four Easton Archery Centers in the
U.S. The closest of these to the Town is in Salt Lake City. Located
less than 5 miles from Salt Lake City International Airport and
close to several hotels, the Easton Salt Lake Archery Center fea-
tures amenities and opportunities for archery enthusiasts of all
levels. In addition to archery classes and group lessons, it also of-
fers private coaching, archery instructor certification, video anal-
ysis, private events, seminars and tournaments.

The Easton Salt Lake Archery Center includes a dedicated indoor
archery range with 92 shooting lanes at 18 meters, or 30 shooting
lanes to 70 meters. The center also has a transition room which

allows archers to shoot from the indoors out. The Easton Salt Lake
Archery Center hosts an outdoor archery range on an artificial turf
field, with a shooting distance out to 90 meters (64 targets).

Source: Easton Foundations Website (http://esdf.org/saltlake/about-the-center/)

Figure 20: The Easton Archery Center in Salt Lake City

LocAL/COMPETING SHOOTING FACILITIES

THE CAMEO SPORT SHOOTING COMPLEX

The Colorado Parks & Wildlife has a proposed a development in
the Town of Palisade (within the Grand Junction MSA) that would
feature a shooting complex and instructional classes for all types
of shooters. These public shooting ranges would include:

e Oneoutdoor main-range (67 positions/lanes) at distances
from 5 to 200 yards

e One outdoor clay target center

e One outdoor archery range at distances from 10 to 65
yards

¢ One outdoor archery field range (fixed bulls eye targets)

e Two outdoor archery hill ranges to provide angled shots
at fixed targets

e Series of specialty ranges for rifles and pistols at distances
from 100 to 1,000 yards

The complex would be located Northeast of Palisade near Inter-
state 70 in the Debeque Canyon. It is the intent of the Colorado

139


http://esdf.org/saltlake/about-the-center/)

Parks & Wildlife (CPW) that this complex feature many major out-
door shooting competitions for both rifle and archery shooters.
Funding for the complex via government grants, the CPW and
other sources totaling approximately $4.5 million have already
been secured for the complex. While certain elements of the facil-
ity may be available within the next few years, the complete facil-
ity is expected to take fifteen or more years to build out.

Due to the close proximity of the proposed Cameo shooting com-
plex to the Town (90 minutes), it is important that the Center be
significantly differentiated so that it can capture interest and ac-
tivity and compete with the Cameo complex. As discussed
throughout this feasibility study, the proposed Center in Meeker
will feature indoor shooting ranges that will allow shooters to
shoot year round. The Center will also feature new virtual shoot-
ing technology that has not yet been implemented in any of the
Nation’s existing shooting ranges. The Town of Palisade does not
possess the same hunting and wildlife reputation as does Meeker,
nor does Palisade feature world-class fly fishing as does Meeker
along the White river. All of these factors work together in creat-
ing an experience that will be unparalleled in the existing hunting,
fishing and shooting communities. Marketing efforts for the Cen-
ter should address all of these factors in order to achieve the
greatest success and profitability.

Conversations were held with Bill deVergie from the CPW in re-
gards to possible funding or support that could be provided by
CPW for the development of the Center in Meeker. Mr. deVergie
expressed that the CPW has heavily invested in the Cameo com-
plex in regards to financial and development assistance and may
not be able to provide grants for shooting range developments in
the near future. However, the CPW would be interested in sup-
porting the Center through other means of support due to the dif-
ferentiated mission and atmosphere associated with the Center. It
is recommended that CPW be included throughout the planning

and development process for the Center in order to increase the
Center’s exposure to the State.

INDUSTRY SUPPORT

EASTON FOUNDATION

A conversation was held with Mr. Doug Engh, the Outreach Direc-
tor for the Easton Archery Foundation in regards to obtaining a
grant to support the funding for the Center. Mr. Engh expressed
that Easton may have an interest in awarding a grant to the
Meeker Center if it meets the Easton grant criteria. There are sev-
eral different categories of centers based on the needs and sizes
of host communities.

The sizes of the Easton-sponsored ranges are listed below in re-
spect to their size (smallest to largest):

1. Local Club or Recreation Department Facility (smallest)
2. Community Archery Facility

3. Archery Center

4. Archery Center of Excellence (largest)

Mr. Engh commented that the criteria for a Community Archery
Facility (CAF) may be flexible based upon the size, scope and na-
ture of the facility. He also expressed his desire to see a prelimi-
nary site plan, feasibility study and pro-forma, accompanied by lo-
cal support for the facility before reviewing a grant application for
the Center. It is recommended that the Center strive to meet the
CAF criteria in order to be eligible for an Easton grant.

406 PRECISION MAXIMUM SHOOTING SCHOOL

In order to establish a safe and efficient shooting range atmos-
phere, it will be necessary to recruit experts in the shooting sports
community. Multiple calls were made to exhibitors from the 2016
Western Hunting & Conservation Expo in order to find these ex-
perts. A shooting school with two range locations (Montana and

140



[llinois) named 406 Precision Maximum Shooting expressed nota-
ble interest in the proposed Center. Jordan Harmon (owner) feels
that an indoor, year round, virtual shooting range would be an
ideal atmosphere in which he and his associates could teach Cen-
ter visitors how to become familiar with, and master their own
equipment in order to shoot effectively and accurately.

Mr. Harmon and his associates have created their own curriculum
for effective rifle shooting techniques and have been teaching
their students how to shoot accurately with the student’s own rifle
and scope. These Precision shooting techniques are used and en-
dorsed by the Northwest’s largest guide school, “The Royal Tine
Guide School.” Mr. Harmon has also expressed interest in manag-
ing/facilitating all shooting sports programs associated with the
Center.

HUNTING GUIDE SCHOOL

The Royal Tine Guide School is located in Phillipsburg, Montana
and offers hunting guide classes related to horsemanship, pack-
ing, guide/hunting skills and outdoor skills. The school is con-
ducted on approx. 17,000 acres of private land; in addition, the
school has permits for surrounding United States Forest Service
lands. For $4,400, a man or woman seeking to become an em-
ployed hunting guide can take a 4-week long guiding experience
at Royal Tine and graduate with a guiding diploma. Royal Tine
then helps the graduates find employment through their guide
hiring program.

A conversation was held with LoRee Hansen from Royal Tine in
regards to establishing a second guide school in the Town. Mrs.
Hansen expressed that Royal Tine would not be interested in es-
tablishing any additional locations for their guide school due to
their desire to maintain the Ranch atmosphere and State-specific
association to “Royal Tine Ranch.”

The City of Montrose also offers hunting and fishing guide classes.
The Colorado School for Guides and Outdoorsmen offers the fol-
lowing courses:

e Basic guide and outdoorsmen training
Whitetail and mule deer guide course
Big game hunting guide series
Packing, horsemanship/equine management
Freshwater, wilderness fly fishing & backcountry fishing
Survival skills

While a hunting guide school operator with interest in expanding
into the Town has not yet been identified, the presence of success-
ful guide school operators in other states suggests that it is possi-
ble that a Meeker-based outfitter could adopt a similar approach
in creating a guide school in the Town, and could leverage the Cen-
ter as a base of operations. The skills and education acquired in
the classroom could then be tested in the outdoors.

THE SPORTSMAN CLUB IN MIEEKER

A conversation was held with John Taylor, the secretary at the
Sportsman Club in Meeker, CO. The Sportsman Club is an outdoor
shooting range located approximately 5.2 miles SW of the Town.
This Club is a non-profit 501c3 organization. Mr. Taylor says that
he would be interested in partnering with the Center by offering a
membership that would allow access to both facilities. There are
elements of training and services provided at the Sportsman Club
that would not be possible within the Center, and vice versa.
Therefore, a dual-membership would allow patrons to access both
facilities for a wider variety of training opportunities and year-
round service. The Sportsman Club currently has approximately
150 paying club members who pay sixty dollars per year.

141



Proposed Facility & Cost Analysis

FACILITY AMENITIES

The proposed Center includes an indoor shooting range that fea-
tures sixteen, seventy-meter long pistol/rifle lanes that include
retractable targets and a full-containment bullet trap. Also in-
cluded are two, twelve-lane firearm simulator rooms that allow
patrons to practice long-range shots out to 1,200 yards in a room
that is only ten meters long. The technology was developed by the
military, and has sufficient accuracy to allow personnel to certify
1,200 yard shots using the indoor range?’. The technology is simi-
lar to what is used in the MSZU complex, but is less expensive and
requires less space. One of the simulator rooms will have a self-
healing shoot-through screen with a bullet trap to handle live-
rounds, and the other room will utilize laser inserts that can be
added to a visitor’s own firearm.

Two, twelve-lane archery simulators that utilize similar technol-
ogy will be included in the facility. The main archery component
will be an eighty-meter archery range that will meet the standards
required for international competitions. In addition to standard
2D and 3D targets, a new technology that the Center will include
is the equivalent of a clay target launcher for archery. The technol-
ogy, developed by Laporte, launches foam disks into the air like a
clay target8. While this activity is often held outdoors, it can be
conducted indoors as long as the ceiling is at least fifteen feet
high2. The Laporte system would be a perfect addition to the Cen-
ter because it is a new technology that is just entering the US mar-
ketplace, and it allows a high volume of participants to rotate
through the activity.

Rounding out the facility will be four- 800 sq. ft. classrooms in
which Instruction for outfitters, fly fishermen, hunters and even
wildlife watchers will take place. As discussed previously in this

7 Interview with Mike Davey, shooting range consultant and designer.

study, the hunting and fishing reputation that Meeker will help
promote these classes/seminars by showing that Meeker is the
place to learn and experience the outdoors. The ceiling height (15
ft.) will allow for fly fishing students to practice casting indoors.
The Center will be within close proximity to the White River and
allow for students to practice their casting techniques on a world-
class fishing river. Students will also be able to practice full-length
fly fishing casting in the archery range (during designated hours)
due to the ample amount of space in the archery range.

Facility®etails

Amenity Number |Squarefeet
Live-round®hootingdanesf@ O@neters 16| mEA9,680
ftRangeBupportfArea

Live-round®imulationanes

LaserBimulation@anes

@l ongRangeBupportBirea

Archerydanes@o@BO0@neters

Archerydanes@@F 8@netersdsameange) 82 -

ArcheryBimulatorianes

Classrooms

Common@pace

RetailBpace

TotalBhootingflanes

TotalBquarefootage®fFacility
Table 2: Center Facility Amenities

There will also be 8,000 sq. ft. of retail and pro-shop space. In total,
the Center will require a building footprint of 67,680 sq. ft. as
shown in Table 2 above.

8 Laporte Website: http://uk.laporte.biz/archerie-paintball.html
142


http://uk.laporte.biz/archerie-paintball.html

LOCATION

Two different potential sites were explored in the County’s economic development strategic plan, including the block between 5t and 6th
Streets and Market and Water Streets, or the Town-owned parcel along 3rd Street, south of Market Street. While either site (and potentially
others) would work and have sufficient area available, the block between 5th and 6th Streets was selected for the analysis due to the prox-
imity to the heart of downtown Meeker. The total land available on this block is approximately 94,500 sq. ft., which would allow for a
maximum building footprint of approximately 70,875 sq. ft. assuming a 75% coverage ratio. All of the proposed amenities will fit within
the block and will create a powerful visitation driver for existing downtown businesses. The land is currently owned by several residents
and would need be assembled.

D). 2
i)
31,240 [{0.6
mm04,670 0.2
PETETED 85,610 [0.6 D
EmMmO08,290 [MmM33,290 [AD.2 0,500

MURRAY,EDPALI.GALIFEESTATE)R
PARR,BHARONMR.,ALEBLANC,BBARNABASEN.REGIANINETTI,ZANDREAR.
BENNETT,BVAYNELE. ,BR.

KILDUFF,ETHOMASA. BBETTYRIEAN
OVERTON,@DOUGLASEN.BREDEBRARM.
GODWIN,ETHOMASEH.REVIELANIEAL.

MORRIS,[IGERALDET . RETWILAB. i mm.7 [@mAS5,000
DOUBLEEENCO,ALC,FALLOLORADOAIMITED Eididiiiiiiiii (70,2 (S, 250

412,130 427,900 840,030 2.73 94,500 8,500
Acquisition@Bremium 82,426
Total@EstimateddlandBAcquisitionost 922,456

Table 3 outlines the current configuration of the block, land and improvement values, and estimated acquisition cost.

143



MURRAY,EDPALR.GLIFEESTATE)R (e 7,280 [HMAN9,780 [FHH).2
PARR,BBHARONMR.,ALEBLANC,/BARNABASEN.RGIANINETTI,FANDREAR. \ iiit: [T, 2
BENNETT,BVAYNEE.,AR. 31,240 .6
KILDUFF,ATHOMASH. . RBETTYAEAN 04,670 .2
OVERTON,@DDOUGLASEA.RREDEBRAM. 85,610 [FH0.6 [T
GODWIN,ETHOMASEH.RAVIELANIEML. @EMO08,290 [MHM33,290 [@D.2 [T ,500
MORRIS,EGERALDE.RETWILAGB. Eididididiidiii [mB0,000 .7 [@#ES5,000
DOUBLEEENCO,ALC,FARCOLORADOMAIMITED ididididiiaiiid [ATB3,630 [W.2 S, 250
412,130 427,900 840,030 2.73 94,500 8,500
Acquisition@remium 82,426
TotalEstimateddandBcquisition@ost 922,456

Table 3: Project Land Ownership

144



PRICING STRUCTURE

RANGE RATES

The average annual membership fee for Colorado shooting ranges and gun clubs is $165, but most indoor ranges offer memberships that
require a one-time initiation fee plus monthly membership fees as shown in Table 4. Aside from the membership pricing, most ranges offer
a non-member hourly rate of $15, or a daily rate of $20. Most of the outdoor ranges offer the daily rate, while the indoor ranges typically
offer an hourly rate. Many of the outdoor rifle ranges are owned and operated by local County governments or by Colorado Parks and
Wildlife. These public ranges typically offer a daily or hourly rate that is less than the average rate for the State.

ColoradoBhooting®Range®Prices

GeneralMMembershipnitiation( . .
. Monthly@embership DailyRate Hourly®Rate RentalRate
R (1-timefee)
ange
1@ - |1 - 18w istol,{
1@Person Family® 1@®erson Family & ersonfjnon ersonfjnon e.aponE?ﬂpls °
member) member) rifle,dow)
AllToloradoBhooting®Rangesz| $100dplusd | $300Gplusk $35 $50 $20 $15 $15
Front®RangefGuniTlubR S100Hplusk $200Eplusk .
30 50 - - 15HRifl
(Denver,O) monthly@ues) [ monthlyRlues) 2 2 SAEiie)
QuickirawArcheryfdLittleton,] ) i $50 $100 <8 i $17.50FBow,BE
CO) arrows,Target)
Whistling®inesfGGunilubpl $195@plus? | $390Hplusk $32.50 $65 Free@1BberFear)
(Colorado®prings,ZO) monthly@ues) | monthly@ues) ' for@nembers

Source: Pricing & Rates made available on each of the Range Websites

Table 4: Colorado Shooting Range Rates



CIVILIAN MEMBERSHIP REVENUE

The proposed membership rate for the facility is $310 for the first
year of membership, which includes a one-time initiation fee of
$100. These types of initiation fees are common throughout
ranges in Colorado. Subsequent years will be billed at $210 annu-
ally. At this rate, memberships will be most appealing to local res-
idents, and those that will be visiting the facility more than ten
times each year.

With the proposed pricing and benefit structure, it is estimated
that the proposed facility will sell memberships to approximately
2.5 percent of residents within the Town of Meeker, 1 percent of
Rio Blanco County residents outside of Meeker, .5 percent of the
population of Rifle as well as the population of Craig. As a con-
servative estimate, it is anticipated that the facility will take ten
years to stabilize and reach this level of membership participa-
tion. The total number of memberships sold at project stabiliza-
tion is estimated at 198 as shown in Table 5.

EstimatedfTotal@Memberships@old

Percent@®fiMarketp]

Location Population [ Memberships
Captured

Town®fMeeker 2.5%

Rio@BlancoXounty 1%

Rifle 0.5%

Craig 0.5%

TOTALBMEMBERSHIPS

Table 5: Estimated Total Memberships Sold

After the first four years, the membership growth rate is esti-
mated at 1% annually. The membership growth and revenue pro-
jections are detailed in Table 6.

TotalMMembership@®evenueforFirstFiveH earsBfEDperation

Total@embershipl

Total@Members
Revenue

New@Members

Yr&
Yr2
Yr3
Yrizd
HrD

Table 6: Total Membership Revenue for First Five Years

ORGANIZATIONAL MEMBERSHIP REVENUE

Multiple conversations were held with various organizations and
departments in the Region to determine their interest in obtaining
an organizational membership to the Center. The following organ-
izations expressed their interest in purchasing such a member-
ship:

Colorado Parks & Wildlife (CPW)

Rio Blanco County Sherriff’'s Department (14 Officers)
Meeker Police Department

Rangely Police Department (5 Officers)

CNCC - National Park Service Program

Mr. deVergie from CPW stated that CPW would be interested in
purchasing an organizational membership due to the pistol and
shotgun training that must be completed by CPW employees. The
CPW already has an organizational membership with the Sports-
man Club in Meeker, but would like a membership that would al-
low them to shoot at both ranges.

Sherriff Mazzola from the Rio Blanco County Sherriff’s Depart-
ment says that the Department would be interested in a member-
ship that allowed the Department’s fourteen deputies to use the
range.

146



TOTAL REVENUE FROM DAILY RATE USERS

Due to the remote nature of Meeker and the proposed facility, the
outdoor training and experience center will have to offer an ap-
pealing rate for daily users. In a sense, the shooting and training
facilities can be viewed as a “break-even operation” to bring visi-
tors to the facility and the Town. Like most shooting ranges, it is
anticipated that a major portion of the revenue generated at the
facility will come from ammunition and retail sales, as well as food
and beverage.

While the Center is providing value far beyond what is offered at
the typical Colorado range, it will have a better chance of success
and greater visitation if range access fees are kept to a reasonable
level. It is proposed that the facility charge a rate of $25/day for
unlimited access to all of the amenities within the facility. This
price point is within the range of what most outdoor Colorado
ranges are charging, and will be an extremely attractive price for
the amenities offered. The anticipated market capture rates at
project stabilization for non-member visitors who frequent the fa-
cility at least once each year are detailed in Table 7.

It is estimated that the visitation rates shown in Table 7 will take
five years to achieve, with 1% annual growth occurring thereafter.

As described previously, range access fees will only play a part of
the overall project revenue model with the larger sources of rev-
enue coming from the goods and services provided by the facility
once people enter. Additional sources of revenue include ammu-
nition sales, food and beverage, bow/firearm rentals, and targets.
Food and beverage sales are estimated at 35% of range access rev-
enue and ammunition at 2.5 times range access revenue. It is an-
ticipated that 10% of membership holders will rent a bow/fire-
arm at least once during the year at a discounted rate of $10/ses-
sion, and will spend approximately $1.50 on targets (discounted

rate) twelve times each year. Spending from non-membership
holders is similar, with the exception of the assumption that 10%
of them will spend $15 on a bow/firearm rental, and each visitor
will spend an average of $3 on targets.

TotalBAnnuallNon-Member®articipants®@Revenue

Percent®f
. . Non-Member@
Location MarketB Population .
Participants
Captured
TownDfMeeker 25%
Rio@Blanco@ounty 12%
fGarfield@ounty,ZCO
[MEagle@ounty,@LO
fRouttounty,@LO
fintalCounty,AUT
Adjacent@ountiesTotal 1% 68,830
Colorado®portsmen 0.5% [T 2 7,000
U.S.Bportsmen 0.025% | mmms 7,397,000
TotalRAnnualiNon-Memberf
Participation
TotalAnnualiNon-Member]
ShTE02,816
Revenue

Table 7: Annual Non-Member Participation & Revenue

ADDITIONAL SERVICES OFFERED BY THE FACILITY

Chapter 6 of this Study sets forth additional services that would
increase profitability, attractiveness and the overall market par-
ticipation associated with the Center. While these additional ser-
vices will increase total expenses for equipment, maintenance and
operations, adding these additional services will have a significant
positive impact in establishing the Center as an outdoor adven-
ture destination. Due to the isolated position of the Town from
nearby micro and major metro areas, a wide market scope will be
needed in order to adequately attract enough tourists to the Town

147



to make the Center profitable. Table 8 displays the proposed ad-
ditional services and associated prices to be offered by the Center.
These prices are conservatively structured at or below the aver-
age prices of similar services offered by touring/rental companies
in both Utah and Colorado.

ProposedfAdditionalBervices®RPricing

Service Quantity Price
ATV&our/rental SEATVs $170@er@nachine/day
Razortour/rental 5@Razors $300@er@nachine/day
Snowmobileour/rental 5Bnowmobiles $250@er@nachine/day
Sight-seeing/WildlifefTours | 1@an@14@assengers)| S75@er@erson/day
HorsebackmRiding S@EHorses S150@perBerson/day
Fly@FishingfTrips 3@eopleler@rip/day | $200@erBerson/day
BackpackinglTrips S@eopleler@rip/day | $1,000@erBerson/week
Table 8: Additional Services & Pricing

In order for the Center to provide these additional services, a sig-
nificant amount of equipment will be needed. Similar to the Moab
Adventure Center described previously, services may be subcon-
tracted from the Center to existing outfitters or other businesses.
Subcontracting these services to existing businesses that are al-
ready experienced in offering these types of services will allow the
Center to offer a sophisticated and exceptional customer experi-
ence, while still providing support to local existing businesses.
Multiple businesses including both existing outfitters and busi-
nesses located outside of the County have expressed interest in
operating one or more of these services. It is recommended that
the section of the operator(s) that will perform these services take
place through the offering of a Request for Proposals (RFP), made
available to all interested parties.

EQuiPMENT COSTS
Multiple assumptions were made in order to most accurately fore-
cast the revenue and expenses for these services. These

assumptions were made based on conversations with local ex-
perts and business owners operating in and around the County.
The sales prices for the equipment are based upon current aver-
age prices in the marketplace. The quantity of vehicles demanded
at the Center is also based upon conversations with local experts
and power sports shop owners. Table 9 lists the type of equip-
ment/vehicles that will be included initially with the Center, and
the initial capital investment required.

INITIALECOSTEDFEEQUIPMENT

Market® #DfRiders] Price®Per
Type®f¥/ehicle (Including® . TotalTost

Demand . Vehicle

driver)

ATV 5 1 $8,000 $40,000
Razor@F000FEPS 1 2 $18,000 | $18,000
Razor®00z 1 2 $12,800 | $12,800
RazorZXP@ELO00EPS 3 4 $22,300 | $66,900
Snowmobile 5 1RoR $11,429 | $57,145
Chevrolet@Express@an 1 15 $32,990 | $32,990
TOTAL@PRICEE®FA/EHICLES $227,835

Table 9: Initial Cost of Equipment

Conversations with these local power sport dealers revealed that
the useful life of ATVs, Razors and Snowmobiles is approximately
3 years, assuming that the machines receive proper maintenance
and are used on a daily basis.

Many power sports dealers replace their entire inventory on a 3-
year basis, taking advantage of the total depreciable value of the
vehicle (initial price less salvage value) equally (straight-line de-
preciation) over those 3 years. The dealers then sell the inventory
to existing clientele or to local residents at the end of the third
year. Replacement costs are also annualized by means of paying
into a replacement account so that the necessary balance is avail-
able at the time of replacement.

148



The Express Van will be used primarily to operate the wildlife watching and sight-seeing
tours in the Forest. The van may also be used to transport customers to fly fishing destina-
tions in and around the Town. The first 10 years of the depreciable value of the van are
depreciated equally and are included in the pro forma as well.

MAINTENANCEZEXPENSES

. Quantity?
Type®fal . Price@er? Number®fl
. Type®fExpenditure . Purchasedn . TotalXost
Machine Machine Machines
Annually
FullBerviceffluids,@lugs,@il) $350 2 10 $7,000
Oilihange $200 5 10 $10,000
ATVSRE Replac.eEDrlveEBeIt $200 2 10 $4,000
Razors NewTires $500 1 10 $5,000
New\irFilter $100 3 10 $3,000
State@Registration $25 1 10 $250
TOTALELOSTHANNUALLY) $29,250
FullBerviceffluids,Blugs,@il) $350 2 5 $3,500
Replace@rive@Belt $200 1 5 $1,000
Snowmobiles  |ReplacerackdeveryRFears) $400 0.5 5 $1,000
Registration $30 1 5 $150
TOTALELOSTHANNUALLY) $5,650
FullBerviceffluids,@hecks,@nspections) $450 1 1 $450
OilfEvery,000Miles) $100 3 1 $300
ExpressiVan TiresHEvery®5,0000MilesBbr3.5/ears) $1,000 0.285 1 $285
Brake@Pads®BBpark@Plugs $1,000 0.5 1 $500
Registration $200 1 1 $200
TOTALELOSTHANNUALLY) $1,735
TOTALELOMBINEDEOSTEDFAMAINTENANCEFANNUALLY) $36,635

Table 10: Vehicle Maintenance Costs

There are various costs associated with maintenance and registration of these vehicles.
The average costs for maintaining and registering all vehicles associated with the Center
were also based upon conversations with local experts and owners of existing power
sports stores. Some of these maintenance costs such as full service tune-ups, replacing air
filters and changing the oil, etc. occur multiple times throughout the year, while others
types of maintenance only occur once every year or even less frequently. Any repairs or

replacement costs associated with poor
rider handling will be paid by the cus-
tomer renting the machine. It is the
standard structure used by most ATV,
OHV and Snowmobile rental agencies
that the customer assumes the insurance
deductible for these “avoidable” ex-
penses. The various expenses associated
with maintaining these vehicles/ma-
chines are displayed in Table 10.

PARTICIPATION IN OUTDOOR SERVICES
Itis assumed that all of the outdoor activ-
ities are offered daily, seven days a week.
For purposes of defining the revenue
model, it is assumed that each month
contains 30 days which would mean the
Center is open 360 days of the year. In or-
der to estimate the utilization for each of
the additional services, they have been
grouped into “warm” and “cold” month
activities. All additional services except
for snowmobile rentals/tours are consid-
ered warm-month activities.

The following model was used to esti-
mate utilization rates and is based on
conversations with owners of regional
power sport rental businesses and repre-
sents the percentage of usage for each
machine/activity during a particular
month. For example, during the peak
warm season, a utilization rate of 75%
would indicate that 75% of the available
ATVs would be utilized on a given day.

149



Anticipated utilization rates for warm-month activities are:

January - March (0 percent)

April (25 percent)

May (50 percent)

June - August (75 percent)
September (70 percent)

October (60 percent)

November - December (0 percent)

The conservative participation rates for cold-month activities
(snowmobiling and snowshoeing) are:

January - March (75 percent)
April (50 percent)

May - November (0 percent)
December (60 percent)

These warm and cold month utilization rates can be seen as the
goal or target rates that will be attained when the Center has suc-
cessfully marketed its services to the public and has achieved sta-
bilized visitation. It is assumed that these participation rates
would not be attained until year 5. Actual utilization rates, as a
percentage of the total target rate for years 1-5 is detailed below:

Year 1 (50 percent of target rates)
Year 2 (60 percent of target rates)
Year 3 (70 percent of target rates)
Year 4 (85 percent of target rates)
Year 5 (100 percent of target rates)

TOTAL REVENUE

The total revenue associated with the Center for Outdoor Adven-
ture includes revenue from both the indoor activities (ranges, pro
shop, restaurant, classroom instruction) and outdoor activities

(ATV/Razor rentals, snowmobile rentals, wildlife-watch-
ing/sight-seeing tours, fly-fishing trips, backpacking trips). The
total projected revenue for all services offered by the Center dur-
ing the initial ten years of operation (stabilization) is displayed in
Table 11.

This column left blank intentionally

150



Total®rojected®evenue

YrA Yr2 Yr3 Yri# HFrD HrD ANrT HrB HrD® HrA0

Total@embers [FFFFTETEEEERTS O | (FFFFFPFACCECCERRCD | (FEFFEFPFFFOCCENIDNO | (PEFEEEEFFTFPFEN 1O | CPPFFPERRRERRRTRASQ | FFFFFEFEEEERREASS | (FFFFFFFFEENNEN 78 | (FFEFFPPFORCENOS | (PPFFEEERRPPRRFENOQ | FPFFFFEFEEERETEAIOS

RangeRevenue $18,397 $18,595 $22,749 $26,903 $35,211 $39,365 $43,519 $47,673 $41,541 $41,541

Food@ndBevi35%mdfRangeRevenue) $6,439 $6,508 $7,962 $9,416 $12,324 $13,778 $15,232 $16,686 $14,539 $14,539

RANGEREVENUE | Ammunitiond1.5&imes®RangeRevenue) $27,595 $27,892 $34,123 $40,354 $52,817 $59,048 $65,279 $71,510 $62,312 $62,312

(Members) WeaponRentald20%DfEnembers,Bncederd $119 $158 $198 $237 $277 $317 $356 $396 $396 $396
year@%10)

Targets{$1.5/person, B 2®imesBeryear) $1,068 $1,424 $1,780 $2,136 $2,492 $2,849 $3,205 $3,561 $3,561 $3,561

TotaliMember®Revenue $53,618 $54,577 $66,812 $79,047 $103,121 $115,356 $127,591 $139,826 $122,349 $122,349

TotalNon-Member@isits (FFFFFFNG, 639 | (EFFFPPFEIONG, 445 | CEFFEERRRPPA,2S 1 | CPFFFEEREEEREB,056 ,668 | F1,279 | [mm2,890 | M4, 501 | FHmS,307 | M6, 113

Range@Revenued$25merierson) $140,986 $161,126 $181,267 $201,408 $241,690 $281,971 $322,253 $362,534 $382,675 $402,816

RANGEREVENUE | Concessionsd35%mfRangelRevenue) $49,345 $56,394 $63,444 $70,493 $84,591 $98,690 $112,788 $126,887 $133,936 $140,986

(Non-Member¥isitors) Ammunitiond2.5@imes@angefevenue) $352,464 $402,816 $453,168 $503,520 $604,224 $704,928 $805,632 $906,336 $956,688| $1,007,040

WeaponRental{$15Berierson, B 0%mbfE $8,459 $9,668 $10,876 $12,084 $14,501 $16,918 $19,335 $21,752 $22,961 $24,169

TargetfFeed$3merBerson) $16,918 $19,335 $21,752 $24,169 $29,003 $33,837 $38,670 $43,504 $45,921 $48,338

TotaliNon-Member®Revenue $568,172 $649,339 $730,507 $811,674 $974,009| $1,136,344| $1,298,679| $1,461,014| $1,542,181| $1,623,348

Facility®RentaldorEvents $36,000 $36,720 $37,454 $38,203 $38,968 $39,747 $40,542 $41,353 $42,180 $43,023

Training®Anstruction@ourses $35,000 $35,700 $36,414 $37,142 $37,885 $38,643 $39,416 $40,204 $41,008 $41,828

ProBhopBales $640,000 $652,800 $665,856 $679,173 $692,757 $706,612 $720,744 $735,159 $749,862 $764,859

ATV/RazorRentals@nd@Tours $166,733 $181,890 $212,205 $257,678 $303,150 $306,182 $309,213 $312,245 $315,276 $318,308

ATVBales®RBervice $216,000 $220,320 $224,726 $229,221 $233,805 $238,481 $243,251 $248,116 $253,078 $258,140

REVENUEEROME | SnoWmobileRentals&Tours $69,094 $76,757 $89,473 $108,571 $127,796 $129,437 $130,726 $132,008 $133,290 $134,572

ADDITIONALBERVICES | WildlifeMVatching/SiteleeingTours $74,498 $82,760 $96,470 $117,062 $137,791 $139,560 $140,950 $142,333 $143,715 $145,097

Horseback®Riding $5,321 $5,911 $6,891 $8,362 $9,842 $9,969 $10,068 $10,167 $10,265 $10,364

FlyFFishing@ours@ndidessons $177,375 $194,919 $227,326 $275,963 $324,730 $328,350 $331,608 $334,860 $338,111 $341,362

Backpackingrips $38,431 $41,925 $48,913 $59,394 $69,875 $70,574 $71,273 $71,971 $72,670 $73,369

Booking®Fees@vithenter@ffiliates $25,000 $25,500 $26,010 $26,530 $27,061 $27,602 $28,154 $28,717 $29,291 $29,877

TotalDutdoorBervicesiRevenue $1,483,451| $1,555,202| $1,671,738 $1,837,298| $2,003,660( $2,035,156| $2,065,945| $2,097,132| $2,128,747| $2,160,800

TOTAL®PROJECTEDREVENUE $2,105,241| $2,259,119| $2,469,057| $2,728,019| $3,080,790( $3,286,856| $3,492,214| $3,697,971| $3,793,277| $3,906,497

Table 11: Total Projected Revenue
FACILITY COSTS (HVAC) requirements are extensive for indoor shooting ranges,

Facility costs are based on concrete tilt-up construction with mod-
ern design and architectural elements that make the facade and
interior of the building attractive and inviting to visitors. The base
price for concrete tilt-up is typically approximately $65/sq. ft., but
due to the complexity of the design and requirements that are spe-
cific to indoor shooting ranges, a premium of $5/sq. ft. is applied
for an adjusted base cost of $70/sq. ft. Heating and ventilation

and the industry standard is to plan on $25,000 per lane, which
yields an anticipated cost of $400,000. Adding in an estimate of
$7.50/sq. ft. for finishings, and $9.98/sq. ft. for construction con-
tingencies brings the estimated hard construction cost total to just
over $7.3M (see Table 12).

151



Total /GSF

Total

/GSF

Hard@osts

Site@osts
Site@Vork
Demolition
Road@Vork

Soft@osts
Developer®verhead®osts

TotalBite@osts
Construction®osts
Shellosts
Bullet@ontainmentBystem,®argetetrieval
HVAC

[mR48,162.40 [T E.62

(FEFFEEEER), 798,789 (EHHRFO0.00
(S 7 2,000
[T 00,000 5.83

Finishings [rrn 14,156
SubTotalMHardXosts TS, 633,108  [FHHHMIIBG6.95
Hardostontingency (e 83,877
TotallHardTosts [THITTR, 316,985

Table 12: Hard Construction Cost Estimates

Accounting®eserve 0.22
Administrative@Mliscellaneous 0.22
DeveloperFee 0.00
SubTotalDeveloper®verheadXosts [FATTS 0,000 [FHHHTTD.44
Financing@osts

Bank@ppraisal 0.11
Bank@nspections /,500 0.11
BonddAssuancefee [FEa 00,000 1.46
SubTotalFinancingosts [T 15,000 1.68
Taxes@BFees

Project®lan®ReviewFeesRBuilding@®Permitd 1.09
anddnspection®Fees

ImpactFees 0.00
ConnectionFees (FEEFTFPITTEEL 5,000 0.22
PropertyfTax [N 62,000 2.36
SubTotalfTaxes®RFees TR 52,000 3.68
Property@romotion

Marketing (PR 5,000 0.66
Signage (e 5,000 0.36
SubTotal®Property@romotion [T 0,000 1.02
Studies@®@esign

ALTABurvey [FHEFERFERREREERL O, 000 0.15
Architecture®MDesign i) 4.27
CivilEngineering@nsite (s 6,585 0.53
EnvironmentalBtudy (R, 000 0.07
Geotechnicall@nvestigation (TR 5,000 0.22
TrafficBtudy i 0.00
SubTotalBtudies®@esign [FHHHTE59,264 5.24
Risk@Mlitigation

Builder's®Risk@nsurance 0.36
LegalfFees 0.12
Performance® & ompletion@Bond [P 0,000 0.73
Property,Aiability, REasualty@nsurance (TR 8,000 0.26
Title®olicyR@pdates (TP 5,000 0.22
SubTotalRisk@litigation [TTA16,000 RN EL.69
SubTotalBoftTosts [AAAT942,264 [AAARREL3.74
Soft@ost@ontingency (D 4,226 [ . 37
TotalBoftTosts [FHTTE, 036,491 (R 5.12

Table 13: Soft Construction Cost Estimates

152



Soft costs are estimated based on experience with similar pro-
jects, and are projected to cost a total of $1M, or approximately
$15/sq. ft. (see Table 13). The developer fee, which would typi-
cally equal 4-5% of the hard construction costs is waived in this
case due to the proposed public-private partnership and owner-
ship model. Total development cost (excluding range equipment)
is shown in Table 14. Initial operating equipment, such as ATVs,
snowmobiles and the simulator range equipment costs are sum-
marized in Table 15.

TotalTonstructionXosts Total /GSF
TotalMard® osts [TETPETR, 316,985  [HRIHHTHID6.93
TotalBoftosts [T, 036,491
TotalXonstructionXosts ,353,475
Building@®quare#ootage 68,554
Construction@ostsperBquareFoot [T 21.85
Table 14: Total Construction Cost Estimates

Equipment Total /GSF
ATV/UTVRentals 37,700
SnowmobileRentals [T 7,145
Express@an

Simulator®anges ‘ 7 7.00
Total [ 07,835 7.00

Table 15: Equipment Cost Estimates

After adding the equipment cost and land acquisition to the total
construction costs, the entire project is anticipated to require an
initial investment of $9.98M.

The facility’s capital stack is shown in Table 16. The proposed
structure includes multiple sources of capital, including owner eq-
uity, Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) financing, debt, and
Tax Increment Financing (TIF).

SOURCES Total /SF PCT
Privatenvestment ®,583,766 96.04 66%

OwnertEquity @,745,307 25.46 17%

PACE®Financing @,391,390 20.30 14%

Debt 3,447,070 50.28 35%
Non-Traditional®Financing 3,400,000 49.60 34%
mGrants@ind@onations @,400,000 20.42 14%
[raxB@ncrement®inancing 2,000,000 29.17 20%
Total [®,983,766 145.63 100%
USES Total /SF PCT
Building®ard osts 7,316,985 106.73 73%
BuildingBoftosts @,036,491 15.12 10%
BuildingBubtotal @,353,475 121.85 84%
Equipment @I707,835 10.33 7%
Land@Acq [#M22,456 13.46 9%
Total ,983,766 145.63 100%

Table 16: Capital Stack

Under the proposed model, TIF financing is only required for the
first fifteen years of the project, and the amount provided to the
operator decreases over time.

Under the proposed scenario, the operator achieves a nominal 2%
return during the first two years of operations, growing to 5% in
year three. Year four dips back down to 3% due to the cost of buy-
ing new motorsports equipment to renew the fleet. Year five, the
first year which the outdoor services reach stabilization, the oper-
ator is projected to achieve a 10% cash-on-cash return. The objec-
tive is to maintain the approximate 10-15% cash-on-cash return
during the length of the TIF financing incentive, taking into con-
sideration that the first few years of operations with minimal re-
turns will need to be made up for with a larger return in the stabi-
lized years. A simplified pro forma for the first ten years of

153



operations, including public incentives through TIF, is shown in

Table 17.
Simplified@roForma
Yra Yr2 Yr3 Yr@ Yrd Yr®d Yr Yr3 Yr® YrZ0

GrossRevenue m®,105,241  [@,259,119 [@,469,057 [@,728,019 8,080,790 [B,286,856 08,492,214 0[B,697,971 8,793,277  [@B,906,497
Expenses [#,833,971 [,976,832 Mm,117,637 M,416,470 M®,546,309 m,707,514 M,834,330 8,145,771 8,224,024 3,310,892
EBITA [R71,270  [@RR282,287 @351,420  @WB11,550  @RB34,481 579,342 [mB57,884  @MB52,200  @#B69,253 @EmB95,605
DebtBervice [mR92,869 {292,869 [RR92,869  @MR92,869  [MMR92,869 [RR292,869 [R92,869  @MR30,592  @@R30,592 @mR230,592
TIFdoan@ayment [ 49,889 @A 49,889 [PA49,889  @WA49,889  MMA49,889 @A 49,889 @mA49,889  MMA49,889  MMA49,889 @A 49,889
ExpensesBV/@lebt@ndETIF@bligation E®,276,729 @®,419,590 [@,560,395 [®,859,228  [@,989,067 [B,150,272  [B,277,088 08,526,252 [B,604,505 @B,691,373
Free@ash@Flow EEf171,488) [(ERL60,472) [EEED1,338) [OEEI31,209) MHERE®1,723 @EA36,584  @EER15,126 @EBA71,719  @EEASS,772  @ER1S,124
TIF@Provided®operator [{#R210,068 [ 93,758 [A98,846  @WR03,961  MRA21,612 MRA22,876  OWWB2,769  [MB3,629  [MB4,497  [MEA2,687
CashFlowR\fterAncentives [ (38,580  [(33,287  @MA07,508  [N[F2,753 2 [@#ER13,335  [@WER59,460 [PR97,895  [MR55,348 [MR73,269 [RPR57,811
Operatorash-on-Cash®Return 2% 2% 5% 3% 10% 12%

Table 17: Simplified Ten-Year Pro Forma

See Appendix A for a detailed 15-year pro forma and cash flow
statement. Additional detail can also be found in the supplemental
Excel spreadsheet.

CONCLUSION

The proposed Center for Outdoor Adventure in Meeker will re-
quire public participation through TIF as well as coordinating and
facilitating grant applications, but the funding gap can be closed
by utilizing available tools to create a project that will be attractive
to the private sector. The public sector has the opportunity to in-
vest strategically to create an asset that can be leveraged to stabi-
lize seasonal tourism, create a regional draw, and ultimately help
in the County’s process of diversifying its economy. The facility
will play a critical role in setting a new vision for the community
and providing a visual anchor that will help to develop and expand
the outdoor recreation and shooting sports cluster for the Town.

14%

12%

13%

12%

154



REDEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS REDEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and
entered into as of , 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CRAIG URBAN
RENEWAL AUTHORITY, a body corporate and politic of the State of Colorado (the “Authority”)
and YAMPA VALLEY ADVENTURE CENTER LLC (the “Developer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on January 26, 2021, the Authority was established pursuant to the City of
Craig (the “City”) Resolution No. 4 (2021) as a duly constituted urban renewal authority and
authorized by the City to transact business and exercise its powers as an urban renewal
authority, all under and pursuant to the City Charter and C.R.S. § 31-25-101 et seq. (the “Act”);
and

WHEREAS, the Authority was created as a body corporate and a political subdivision with
all the purposes and powers now or hereinafter authorized in the Act and all additional and
supplemental powers necessary or convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and
provisions of the Act, and such other powers and authority as provided by law; and

WHEREAS, more specifically, the Authority was created for the acquisition, clearance,
rehabilitation, conservation, development, or redevelopment, or a combination thereof, of slum
or blighted areas; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Act, and pursuant to Resolution 17 (2021), the City
Council of the City approved the Craig Urban Renewal Plan #1 (the “Plan”) under the Act on July
13, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Developer is the contract purchaser of two parcels of property consisting
cumulatively of approximately 6.74 acres at 1111 W. Victory Way, Craig, CO, 81625, described in
Exhibit A (collectively, the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property is included in the area described in the Plan (the “Plan Area”);
and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized under the Plan and the Act to finance urban
renewal projects within the Plan Area by any method authorized by the Act or any other
applicable law, including without limitation, tax increment financing (including property, sales
and use tax increments); and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized under the Plan and the Act to enter into
development or redevelopment agreements or other contracts with developers or property

1
2978808.8



owners determined to be necessary to carry out the purposes of the Plan, which agreements
may include the pledge by the Authority of Pledged Revenues (defined below) to pay Eligible
Costs (defined below) pursuant to the Act or other applicable law; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the Plan, the Developer intends to renovate and redevelop
the Property by causing the construction and operation of a development consisting of 90,000
square feet of vacant mall space. The redevelopment will consist of two separate uses: (a) the
CGOE Component, a development of extraordinary public benefit operated by a non-profit
entity, which will utilize equipment, displays, and support for a wide variety of educational and
interactive exhibits, outdoor recreational activities and information promoting a complete
program of outdoor adventure experiences celebrating the environment and recreational
opportunities throughout Northwest Colorado; and (b) the YVAC Component consisting of
specialized retail offerings, unique eating experiences and services. The project will house and
support 23 businesses and will take five years to build to capacity when the project is stabilized.
At stabilization, the project will create 186 direct jobs and generate $6,963,840 in payroll. The
project is further described and depicted in Exhibit B (the “Development Project”); and

WHEREAS, the proposed Development Project will contribute to diversification of the
region’s economic base and attract significant investment and revenue from outside the region
and the State of Colorado; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, finding development of the Property within the Plan Area to be
within the best interest of the Authority and the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the
City and necessary to carry out the purposes of the Plan, intends to provide financial assistance
to the Development Project in order to facilitate the redevelopment of the Property with the
expectation that the Authority’s involvement will encourage and accelerate the timing of
development, thus alleviating and preventing blight by developing, constructing, and operating
the Development Project; and

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to ensure development of the Property is financially
feasible and successful by providing financial assistance to the Development Project with funds
generated from the collection of the Pledged Revenue (defined below) resulting from the
Development Project; and

WHEREAS, both Parties intend this Agreement to set forth: (i) the public finance structure
made available to the Development Project to ensure that blight in the Plan Area is prevented
or mitigated; (ii) the respective roles and responsibilities of the Authority and the Developer to
finance, develop and construct the various components of the Development Project; and (iii) the
timetable for the financing and construction of the Development Project.

2978808.8



AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the Parties
contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are
hereby acknowledged, the Parties mutually agree as follows:

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals to this Agreement are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth in the body of this Agreement.

Section 2. Capitalized Terms and Definitions. Capitalized terms in this Agreement have the
meanings set forth in this Section 2, or otherwise defined herein, unless a different meaning
clearly appears from the context:

2978808.8

“Act” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals of this Agreement.

“Administrative Fee” means a fee, paid to the Authority on a yearly basis. The yearly
Administrative Fee shall be 5% of the Pledged Revenues in the first five years of the
Agreement. The yearly Administrative Fee shall be 2.5% of the Pledged Revenues for the
remaining years of the Agreement.

“Affiliate(s)” means one or more entities owned or controlled by the Developer.
“Authority” has the meaning set forth in the initial paragraph of this Agreement.

“Available Property Tax Increment Revenues” means all Property Tax Increment
Revenues, if any, received by the Authority from the Property after the Effective Date
after deducting Taxing Body Increment from such revenue received from the entire Plan
Area.

“Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues” means all Sales and Use Tax Increment
Revenues, if any, received by the Authority from the Property after the Effective Date.

“City” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals of this Agreement.

“Certificate of Occupancy” means the first shell certificate of occupancy or temporary
certificate of occupancy issued by the Craig/Moffat Regional Building Department for a
structure within the Property.

“Certificate of Completion” means the certificate of completion issued by the Authority
upon Completion of Construction for a structure within the Property.




2978808.8

“CGOE Component” means the component of the Development Plan that will be owned,
maintained, and operated by a non-profit entity for the purpose of attracting, educating,
and introducing visitors to the region as described in Exhibit B.

“Completion of Construction” means, for each component of the Development Project
identified on Exhibit B, the date that is the last to occur of the following: (i) the Developer
obtaining (and providing the Authority with) a copy of the Certificate of Occupancy for
such component from the Craig/Moffat Regional Building Department; (ii) the Developer
providing the Authority with a signed, written statement confirming that all of the
improvements which are the Eligible Costs required to obtain the related Certificate of
Occupancy have been substantially completed in accordance with this Agreement and
the Construction Documents; (iii) issuance by the Authority of a Certificate of
Completion.

“Construction Documents” means the final plans, drawings, and specifications, and all
modifications thereto, for the Development Project prepared by the Developer and
approved by the Authority and the Craig/Moffat Regional Building Department.

“County” means, individually or collectively as applicable, Moffat County, the County
Assessor, the County Treasurer, and the Tax Administrator.

“County Treasurer” means the Moffat County Treasurer’s Office.

“County Assessor” means the Moffat County Assessor’s Office.

“Developer” has the meaning set forth in the initial paragraph of this Agreement.

“Development Project” means the scope of work as described in Exhibit B attached
hereto.

“Effective Date” has the meaning set forth in the initial paragraph of this Agreement.

“Eligible Costs” means all reasonable and necessary costs that the Authority has
determined have a public benefit in furtherance of the Act and the Plan as set forth on
Exhibit C. Eligible Costs shall not include any costs paid for by the City for improvements,
installations, or upgrades of utilities. Eligible Costs shall not include any items or costs
which are included in any payment by the City or on its behalf to the Developer, its
successors, or assigns, except that, notwithstanding any language in this Agreement, any
loan or grant funds for this Development Project obtained with the assistance of the City
or the Authority shall be used for the intended purpose of assisting with the planning,
design, development, construction, furnishing, maintaining, repair, replacement, or

4



2978808.8

operation of the Development Project as may be specified in the requirements related
to such loan or grant.

“Legal Fee” means a one-time legal fee in the amount of $5,000 for fees and charges
incurred or to be incurred by the Authority for legal review, administrative review,
finance review, or incurred by the Authority for the review, processing, and
administration of the Developer’s application for tax increment financing funds, the
administration of this Agreement, and for other services provided by or on behalf of the
Authority. The Legal Fee shall be withheld by the Authority from the deposit of Pledged
Revenues in the first year that Pledged Revenues are deposited in the Special Account,
and in subsequent years as necessary until paid in full.

“Maximum Reimbursement Obligation” means the lesser of any of the following: (i) the
amount set forth on Exhibit C as the total amount of Eligible Costs, or (ii) the total amount
of Pledged Revenues paid to the Developer during the Term, or (iii) the amount set forth
in Section 8.C.

4

“Party(ies
Developer.

means, individually or collectively as applicable, the Authority and the

“Permitted Assignment” has the meaning set forth in Section 15 of this Agreement.

“Plan” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals of this Agreement.

“Plan Area” means the area of land within the boundaries of, and described within, the
Plan. The Property is included within the Plan Area.

“Plan Area Base Value” means the total assessed value of the entire Plan Area as certified
by the County when the Plan was approved and as adjusted from time to time in
accordance with C.R.S. 31-25-107(9)(e).

“Pledged Revenue Calculation Period” means the period of time for which Pledged
Revenues are calculated for purposes of Section 8.D. The initial Pledged Revenue
Calculation Period shall begin upon the verification of the Completion of Construction in
accordance with Section 5.C and shall end on the next July 15™. The duration of each
succeeding Pledged Revenue Calculation Period shall be twelve (12) months, beginning
on the July 16" following the termination of the immediately preceding Pledged Revenue
Calculation Period.




2978808.8

“Pledged Revenues” means, collectively, the Available Property Tax Increment Revenues;
the Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues. The methodology for calculating
Pledged-Revenues is set forth in Section 9.

“Property” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals of this Agreement, and as described
and depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto.

“Property Base Value” means (i) for the purpose of calculating Available Property Tax
Increment Revenues, $2,074,080, the assessed value of the Property as certified by the
County as of the time the Plan Area Base Value was established; and (ii) for the purpose
of calculating Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues, S , the amount
of sales and use taxes collected from the Property at the time the Sales and Use Tax Base
Amount was established. The Property Base Value will be used to calculate Pledged
Revenues for the Term.

“Property Tax Increment Revenues” means all property tax revenues, if any, actually
received by the Authority each year from the Plan Area during the Property TIF Period in
excess of the property tax revenues attributed to and generated from the levy of
property tax by taxing entities against the Plan Area Base Value.

“Property TIF Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.B of this Agreement.

“Reimbursement” means the reimbursement of the Developer for Eligible Costs by the
Authority.

“Reimbursement Obligation” means the Authority’s obligation to reimburse the
Developer for Eligible Costs, which shall not exceed the Maximum Reimbursement
Obligation.

“R&R Subaccount” means a subaccount within the Special Account established for the
purposes stated in Section 10 dedicated to repair and replacement of materials and
equipment in connection with the CGOE Component of the Development Project.

“Sales and Use Tax” means the City’s 4.0% general fund municipal sales and use tax
authorized by City Council, as allocated to the Authority by the City pursuant to one more
agreement between the Authority and the City, as such agreements may be amended
from time to time; provided that any such amendment shall not reduce, impair, or
otherwise jeopardize the Pledged Revenues or any existing financial obligation of either
Party.




2978808.8

“Sales and Use Tax Base Amount” means the total collection of general fund municipal
Sales and Use Tax levied within the Property in the twelve-month period ending on the
last day of the month prior to the effective date of the approval of the Plan, in accordance
with C.R.S. §31-25-107(9)(a)(l).

“Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues” means Sales and Use Tax Revenues collected
by the City each year from the Plan Area during the Sales and Use TIF Period in excess of
the Sales and Use Tax Base Amount.

“Sales and Use Tax Revenues” means the funds generated by imposition of the Sales and
Use Tax.

“Sales and Use TIF Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.B of this Agreement.

“Special Account” has the meaning set forth in Section 10 of this Agreement.

“Special Fund” has the meaning set forth in Section 10 of this Agreement.

“Tax Administrator” means the Property Tax Administrator for the State of Colorado.

“Tax Increment Agreements” means, collectively, the agreement or agreements between
the Authority and the taxing bodies that levy property taxes and/or Sales and Use Tax in
the Plan Area relating to the allocation of the Property Tax Increment Revenues and Sales
and Use Tax Increment Revenues generated in the Plan Area in accordance with the Act,
as such agreements are amended from time to time.

“Tax Increment Revenues” means, collectively, the Property Tax Increment Revenues and
the Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues.

“Taxing Body Increment” means the Property Tax Increment Revenues pledged by the
Authority to taxing bodies that levy property taxes in the Plan Area pursuant to Tax
Increment Agreements.

“Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 3 of this Agreement.

“TIF Periods” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.B of this Agreement.

“Work” means everything required to be furnished and done by the Developer as
described in the Construction Documents, including but not limited to, obtaining
necessary building permits.



“YVAC Component” means the component of the Development Project described in
Exhibit B.

Section 3. Term. Unless earlier terminated as expressly provided for in this Agreement, the term
of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall commence on the Effective Date and will continue through
and including the TIF Periods. Nothing herein will limit the ability of the Parties to enter into
future amendments to this Agreement that have the effect of extending the Term. After
expiration of the Term, this Agreement will be deemed terminated and of no further force and
effect; provided, however, such termination will not affect any obligation of any Party which
arises under this Agreement during the Term but is not fully performed as of the end of the Term,
including payment to the Developer for reimbursement of Eligible Costs from Pledged Revenues
during the TIF Periods.

Section 4. Eligible Costs. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Authority shall
reimburse the Developer for Eligible Costs up to the Maximum Reimbursement Obligation, in
accordance with Section 8, from the Pledged Revenues. The estimated Eligible Costs that will be
incurred for the Development Project are set forth in Exhibit C. Eligible Costs paid by the
Developer shall be certified by the Developer as to the actual amount paid and shall be approved
by the Authority. Eligible Costs may exceed the current estimates, and shall be finalized at the
time of issuance of Certificates of Occupancy for each component of the Development Project
identified on Exhibit B. While the costs for individual line items may increase or decrease, and
the Developer may allocate cost savings in the line items listed in Exhibit C to any cost overruns
in any other line item, in no event will the total Reimbursement from the Authority exceed the
Maximum Reimbursement Obligation. Upon request by the Authority, the Developer will
provide backup documents (such as invoices and contract documents) as the Authority may
request in a form satisfactory to the Authority in its reasonable discretion.

Section 5. Construction and Completion. The Developer shall have no obligation to commence
or complete construction of the Development Project; however, the Authority shall have no
obligation to reimburse the Developer for Eligible Costs for any component of the Development
Project identified on Exhibit B until Completion of Construction for such component has
occurred. The Developer covenants and agrees to perform the redevelopment and renovation
work for the Development Project required by this Agreement in accordance with all applicable
laws, ordinances, standards, policies, and the Plan.

A. Construction Documents. The Developer shall prepare, submit, and use good
faith, commercially reasonable efforts to secure the approval of the Construction Documents for
each component of the Development Project identified on Exhibit B from the Authority and from
the Craig/Moffat Regional Building Department. The Developer will copy the Authority on all
additional submittals which materially modify the Development Project, or which materially
modify the Construction Documents relating to the improvements which are Eligible Costs
reimbursed hereunder.

2978808.8



B. Commencement of Construction. In reliance on this Agreement, as of the
Effective Date, and subject to the first sentence of Section 5 above, the Developer agrees to use
good faith, commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the necessary building permits for the
Work in order to commence construction on the Work and actually commence construction on
the Work by the date indicated on the timeline in Exhibit D for commencement of construction
on the Work.

C. Completion of Construction. The Developer shall use good faith, commercially
reasonable efforts to achieve Completion of Construction by the dates indicated by the timeline
in Exhibit D for Completion of Construction of each component of the Development Project. The
Authority shall issue the Certificate of Completion or notify the Developer of any deficiencies
within fourteen (14) days of Completion of Construction. The Developer shall have the option
to request one or more extensions of the date for Completion of Construction up to a cumulative
maximum of one year upon written notice to the Authority provided at least fourteen days (14)
prior to the date or extended date for Completion of Construction, provided that the Developer
provides evidence to the Authority that such extension is for good cause and that the Developer
is diligently working to achieve Completion of Construction. Any extension for up to the first six
months is subject to approval of the Authority Executive Director. Any extension beyond six
months is subject to approval by the Board of Commissioners of the Authority. The Developer
acknowledges and accepts the risk that extension of and delays to the date for Completion of
Construction pursuant to this Section 5.C may result in the generation of less overall Tax
Increment Revenues throughout the remainder of the TIF Periods.

D. Authority Right of Access. The Authority shall have the right to permit a
representative of the Authority access to the Property to inspect the Work at any reasonable
time and with prior notice to the Developer during the construction period and upon Developer’s
delivery of the items described in (i) through (iii) in the definition of Completion of Construction
to determine that the Work is under construction or constructed in conformance with the
requirements of this Agreement. Approvals by the Authority under this section shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.

E. Schedule of Construction. The Developer agrees to use good faith, commercially
reasonable efforts to achieve the schedule and timelines for construction outlined in this Section
5 and Exhibit D.

Section 6. Insurance. At all times prior to Completion of Construction, the Developer, within ten
(10) days after request by the Authority, will provide the Authority with proof of payment of
premiums and certificates of insurance showing that the Developer is carrying or causing prime
contractors to carry, insurance in the amounts and types acceptable to Developer and the
Authority. Such policies of insurance shall be placed with financially sound and reputable
insurers, require the insurer to give at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice of

2978808.8



cancellation to the Authority and will include the Authority as an additional insured on such
policies.

Section 7. Indemnification. Except for negligence of the Authority’s inspectors, employees,
agents, and other representatives, the Developer will defend, indemnify, assume all
responsibility for, and hold the Authority, its board members, officers, and employees harmless
(including, without limitation, for attorney fees and costs) from all claims or suits for and
damages to property, environmental liability, and injuries to persons, including accidental death,
that may be caused by any of the construction activities under this Agreement, whether such
activities are undertaken by the Developer or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or under
contract to the Developer or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or under contract to the
Developer, whether such damage shall accrue or be discovered before or after termination of
this Agreement.

Section 8. Reimbursement by Authority, Maximum Reimbursement, TIF Periods, and Pledged
Revenues.

A. Reimbursement. The Authority’s Reimbursement Obligation to the Developer for
Eligible Costs shall be paid only from Pledged Revenues and shall not exceed the Maximum
Reimbursement Obligation. The Reimbursement Obligation shall be paid solely from the Special
Account described in Section 10 of this Agreement. The Reimbursement Obligations shall not be
paid from any other revenues of the Authority, except that any loan or grant funds for this
Development Project obtained with the assistance of the City or the Authority shall be used for
the intended purpose of assisting with the planning, design, development, construction,
furnishing, maintaining, repair, replacement, or operation of the Development Project as may
be specified in the requirements related to such loan or grant. If Pledged Revenues are not
received by the Authority in any fiscal year, then no Reimbursement shall be made for that year;
provided, however, the Authority shall take the steps specified in Section 11 to assure to the
extent possible that Pledged Revenues shall be deposited in the Special Account each year this
Agreement is in effect and the obligation to pay the unpaid Reimbursement shall carry over to
the next fiscal year. Reimbursement of carryover obligations shall be paid prior to the
subsequent year’s allocation.

B. TIF Periods. Unless the Authority agrees otherwise, the Reimbursement by the
Authority shall commence upon Completion of Construction and terminate upon (i) for Available
Property Tax Increment Revenues, December 31, 2046, which is the expiration of the period for
which the Authority is authorized by the Act to receive Property Tax Increment Revenues (the
“Property TIF Period”), and (ii) for Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues, July 13, 2046,
which is the expiration of the period for which the Authority is authorized by the Act to receive
Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues (the “Sales and Use TIF Period,” and together with the
Property TIF Period, collectively, the “TIF Periods”).

10
2978808.8



C. Maximum Reimbursement Obligation. The Parties agree that the Maximum
Reimbursement Obligation will not exceed the lesser of the total amount of Pledged Revenues
deposited in the Special Account during the Term or $7,674,235.

D. Pledged Revenues. Pledged Revenues means the revenue defined in Section 2 of
this Agreement, which amounts shall be calculated in accordance with Section 9, and paid to the
Developer during each year of the Pledged Revenue Calculation Period. Pledged Revenues shall
not include interest, if any, earned by the Authority. No other tax increment financing revenues
received by the Authority, or any other revenues received by the Authority shall be considered
Pledged Revenues unless received for the purpose of benefitting this Development Project. The
Authority hereby irrevocably pledges the Pledged Revenues to payment of the Reimbursement
Obligation to the Developer as provided herein for the Term. The Authority is only obligated to
pay the Pledged Revenues in years that it receives Property Tax Increment Revenues in an
amount equal to or greater than the amount produced by the tax levy against the Developer’s
Property Base Value or Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues in an amount equal to or greater
than the Sales and Use Tax Base Amount. The Authority shall not enter into any agreement or
transaction that impairs the rights of the Developer under this Agreement and shall take
reasonable and timely steps to defend and protect the Developer’s right to receive the Pledged
Revenues.

The Authority hereby irrevocably pledges the Pledged Revenues to payment of the Authority’s
Reimbursement Obligation. The Pledged Revenues, when and as received by the Authority shall
be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical delivery, filing, or further act. The
Authority shall transfer the Pledged Revenues in the Special Account and R&R Subaccount as
specified in Section 10. The Authority shall keep, maintain, and apply the Pledged Revenues as
required exclusively to payment of the Authority’s Reimbursement Obligation for the Term of
this Agreement. The Authority’s Reimbursement Obligation established by this Agreementis and
shall be an obligation of the Authority pursuant to Section 31-25-107, C.R.S. The Authority has
elected to apply the provisions of Section 11-57-208, C.R.S., to this Agreement. Creation,
perfection, enforcement and priority of the pledge of the Pledged Revenues as provided herein,
shall be governed by Section 11-57-208, C.R.S. and this Agreement. The lien of such pledge on
the Pledged Revenues and the obligation to perform the contractual provisions made herein
shall have priority over any of all other obligations and liabilities of the Authority with respect to
the Pledged Revenues for the Term of this Agreement.

Section 9. Calculation and Deposit of the Pledged Tax Increment Revenues. The Pledged
Revenues shall be calculated each year in accordance with the definitions of Available Property
Tax Increment Revenues and Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues set forth in
Section 2 and the table set forth in this Section 9 below. Because the definitions of Available
Property Tax Increment Revenues and Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues already
deduct the Taxing Body Increment such amount shall not be deducted a second time from
Pledged Revenues.

11
2978808.8



The amount of Available Property Tax Increment Revenues paid each year will be calculated and
remitted only after the Developer demonstrates proof of its tax bill and payment of its taxes for
that year. Provided the current Property Base Value for the Plan Area is met or exceeded in any
year during the Term, the Authority shall deposit all Available Property Tax Increment Revenues
received that year in the Special Account and thereafter into the R&R Subaccount. Provided the
current Sales and Use Tax Base Amount for the Plan Area is met or exceeded in any year during
the Term, the Authority shall deposit all Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues
received that year in the Special Account and thereafter into the R&R Subaccount.

Section10.

Total Available Property Tax Increment Revenues received by the
Authority attributable to the Property

lus Total Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues received by
the Authority attributable to the Property
Minus Administrative Fee

Minus The applicable treasurer’s collection fee on the Development
Project

Equals Pledged Revenues to be deposited in the Special Account and
thereafter into the R&R Subaccount. Note: the one-time Legal Fee

will be withheld by the Authority from the deposit of Pledged
Revenues in the first year that there are Pledged Revenues to be

deposited in the Special Account and thereafter into the R&R
Subaccount.

Section 10. Account of the Special Fund. Pursuant to the Act, the Authority is
required to keep the Tax Increment Revenues it receives in a special fund dedicated for that
purpose (the “Special Fund”). Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Authority agrees
to establish, make deposits into, make disbursements from, and provide reports with respect to
line items within the Special Fund established for this Agreement (the “Special Account” and
“R&R Subaccount”). The Special Account and R&R Subaccount shall include only the Pledged
Revenues set forth in Section 9 of this Agreement. No other tax increment financing revenues
received by the Authority, or any other revenues received by the Authority shall be included in
the Special Account or R&R Subaccount unless received for the purpose of benefitting this
Development Project. Subject to Section 8 of this Agreement, the Authority agrees to annually
budget, appropriate, and deposit into the Special Account and thereafter into the R&R
Subaccount, the Pledged Revenues.

12
2978808.8



Section 11. Methodology and Risk Allocation of the Pledged Revenue; Protests or Abatements.
The Parties understand and acknowledge that Property Tax Increment Revenues are remitted to
the Authority according to policies and procedures adopted by the Tax Administrator, the County
Assessor, and the County Treasurer and based on the annual valuation of all properties located
within the Plan Area. The Parties understand and acknowledge further that Sales and Use Tax
Increment Revenues are remitted to the Authority according to policies and procedures adopted
by the City. Accordingly, the timing and payment by the County to the Authority of all, or some
portion, of the Tax Increment Revenues is a matter that is out of the control of the Authority.
Nothing herein is intended to be, or shall be construed as, a promise or guarantee by the
Authority that the Pledged Revenues will be collected and remitted to the Authority in projected
or anticipated amounts. The Authority shall take reasonable steps to (a) provide the County
Assessor with information of activities that increase the assessed value of all property within the
Plan Area, including, without limitation, proper allocation to the increment portion of the
assessment roll of all increases in the assessed value of the Property attributable to the
acquisition of the Property by the Developer and the Development Project, (b) meet with the
County Assessor at least annually to assist the County Assessor in calculating the total assessed
value of the Plan Area and the Property, and (c) review the calculation of assessed values and
the allocation of value to the Property Base Value and proper allocation of increases in assessed
value to the increment portion of the assessment roll each year to assure to the extent
reasonably possible that such calculations and allocations related to the Plan Area and the
Property are true and accurate.

A. Methodology. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Tax Increment
Revenues attributable to the properties located within the entire Plan Area are calculated and
remitted to the Authority in the aggregate for the entire Plan Area as specified in Section 9.
Therefore, to the extent that the total annual Tax Increment Revenues received by the Authority
do not exceed the current Property Base Value for calculation of either the Available Property
Tax Increment Revenues or the Available Sales and Use Tax Increment Revenues or both in any
year during the Term, the amount of Pledged Revenues will be reduced accordingly. The
Authority will use a reasonable methodology for allocating its funds and revenues actually
received to the Developer pursuant to this Agreement, including a description of the Authority’s
review of the calculations of the County Assessor and the City, as applicable, related to the
Property Base Value in question; provided nothing in this this Section 11.A will relieve the
Authority of its obligation to assure that all such calculations and allocations are true and
accurate or to make the deposits into the Special Account and R&R Subaccount in accordance
with the provisions of Section 9. In such event, the Authority will provide to the Developer an
explanation of its methodology, together with supporting documentation.

B. Allocation of Risk. The Developer acknowledges that the generation of Pledged
Revenues is dependent upon an increase in Tax Increment Revenues from the Property and
agrees that, except for reasonable obligations related to collection, deposit in the Special
Account and R&R Subaccount, and payment of the Reimbursement Obligation, the Authority is

13
2978808.8



in no way responsible for the amount of Pledged Revenues actually generated. The Developer
further acknowledges that the Tax Administrator and the County Assessor may modify the
process for calculating Property Tax Increment Revenues, and the City may modify the process
for calculating Sales and Use Tax, which may reduce the amount of Pledged Revenues. The
Developer therefore agrees to assume the entire risk that insufficient Pledged Revenues will be
generated to reimburse all Eligible Costs, provided that any such amendment shall not reduce,
impair, or otherwise jeopardize the Pledged Revenues or any existing financial obligation of
either Party.

C. Protests or Abatements. The Developer agrees it will not protest the County
Assessor’s valuation of the Property that impairs or reduces the Reimbursement Obligation, nor
will the Developer seek abatement of the Property’s property tax for the Term of the Agreement.
Such obligation will run with the land and be binding upon subsequent purchasers of the
Property.

Section 12. Payment Procedure. Subject to Section 11 above, the Authority shall disburse the
Pledged Revenues to the Developer within thirty (30) days after receipt from the County
Treasurer or the City.

Section 13. Books and Accounts. The Authority will keep, or cause to be kept, proper and current
books and accounts in which complete and accurate entries shall be made of the amount of
Pledged Revenues received by the Authority and the amounts deposited into and paid out from
the Special Account.

Section 14. Inspection. All books, records, and reports (except those required by applicable law
to be kept confidential) in the possession of the Authority relating to the Pledged Revenues, and
allocation of such revenue to the Special Account, including the books and records described in
Section 13, shall at all reasonable times be open to inspection by accountants or other agents of
the Developer as provided by law.

Section 15. Transfer or Assignment. Prior to Completion of Construction, this Agreement shall
not be assigned or transferred by the Developer without the prior written consent of the
Authority, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. In the
event of an assignment or transfer, this Agreement will be binding on successors and assignees.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Developer may transfer its rights and obligations under this
Agreement to one or more Affiliates or pledge, collaterally assign or otherwise encumber all or
any part of the Developer’s rights under this Agreement, including the rights to the Pledged
Revenues, to a lender (each a “Permitted Assignment”). In the event of a Permitted Assignment,
the Developer shall notify the Authority of the Permitted Assignment, and the Authority shall
adjust its payments accordingly, however, in no event shall the Authority be required to send
more than one payment of Pledged Revenues annually to more than one designated entity or
individual.

14
2978808.8



A. The Developer may lease, sell, lien or otherwise transfer its interest in the
Property (including but not limited to individual units) to third parties, in the ordinary course of
the Developer’s business, and such lease, sale, lien, or transfer shall not be deemed to
automatically assign or transfer any of the Developer’s rights to the Pledged Revenues, which
rights shall be retained by the Developer.

B. Notwithstanding the above, the Developer may pledge, collaterally assign or
otherwise encumber all or any part of its rights arising under this Agreement, including the rights
to the Pledged Revenues, to a lender.

Section 16. Obligations of the Authority Limited by the Tax Increment Agreements. As noted in
Section 9, the Pledged Revenues do not include the Taxing Body Increment pledged by the
Authority to taxing bodies that levy property taxes in the Plan Area as described in the Tax
Increment Agreements.

Section 17. Authority Sign(s) on the Property. The Developer agrees to permit the Authority to
erect a sign on the Property at the Authority’s expense, recognizing the Authority’s involvement
in the Property and contribution to the redevelopment and renovation of the Property. Such sign
shall be posted on the Property from the start of construction until the Completion of
Construction. The location, message, lettering, configuration, materials, design and other criteria
shall be subject to approval by the Authority and the Developer.

Section 18. Notices. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given for all purposes if delivered by email, upon
acknowledged receipt; in person; by prepaid overnight express mail or reputable overnight
courier service; or by certified mail or registered mail, postage prepaid return receipt requested,
addressed to the Party to whom such notice is to be given at the address set forth on the
signature page below, or at such other address as has been previously or subsequently furnished
in writing, to the other Party.

Section 19. Exhibits. All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are by reference incorporated
herein for all purposes.

Section 20. Delays. Any delays in or failure of performance by any Party of its obligations under
this Agreement shall be excused if such delays or failure are a result of “acts of God”, fires, floods,
strikes, labor disputes, accidents, pandemics, regulations, or order of civil or military authorities,
shortages of labor or materials, or other causes, similar or dissimilar, which are beyond the
control of such Party.

Section 21. Default. Time is of the essence, subject to Section 20 above. If any payment or any
other material condition, obligation, or duty is not timely made, tendered, or performed by any

15
2978808.8



Party, then, subject to notice and the opportunity to cure as set forth below, any non-defaulting
Party may seek any remedy available at law or in equity, including damages, court costs, and
attorney fees and costs as may be proper; provided, however, any such default shall not affect
the obligation of the Authority to pay the Pledged Revenues after the Developer has achieved
Completion of Construction for any component of the Development Project identified on Exhibit
B; and provided further that in the event the Developer shall be in default of this Agreement
prior to obtaining a temporary Certificate of Occupancy from the Craig/Moffat Regional Building
Department, the Authority’s sole remedy shall be to terminate this Agreement; but nothing shall
permit the Authority to terminate this Agreement in a manner that adversely affects the rights
of third parties to receive all or any part of the Pledged Revenues in connection with a collateral
assignment authorized by this Agreement.

Section 22. Notice of Default and Cure Period. In the event of an alleged default by a Party,
prior to the non-defaulting Party’s ability to move forward with remedies pursuant to Section 21
above, the non-defaulting Party must deliver written notice to the defaulting Party of such
default, and the defaulting Party shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of the notice to cure
such default or commence to cure if such default cannot be cured within such period.

Section 23. Section Captions. The captions of the sections are set forth only for the convenience
and reference of the Parties and are not intended in any way to define, limit, or describe the
scope or intent of this Agreement.

Section 24. Additional Documents or Action. The Parties agree to execute any additional
documents or take any additional action that is necessary to carry out this Agreement.

Section 25. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing
signed by the Parties.

Section 26. Waiver of Breach. A waiver by any Party to this Agreement of the breach of any
term or provision of this Agreement must be in writing and shall not operate or be construed as
a waiver of any subsequent breach by any Party.

Section 27. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Colorado and venue for any litigation shall be Moffat County, Colorado.

Section 28. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the
Parties and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns, provided that
nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to permit the assignment of this Agreement except
as otherwise expressly authorized herein.

16
2978808.8



Section 29. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same
instrument.

Section 30. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except for transferees under Section 15, this
Agreement is intended to describe the rights and responsibilities only as to the Parties hereto.
This Agreement is not intended and shall not be deemed to confer any rights on any person or
entity not named as a Party hereto.

Section 31. No Presumption. The Parties to this Agreement and their attorneys have had a full
opportunity to review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this Agreement.
Accordingly, this Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or other rule
of construction against the Party causing the Agreement to be drafted.

Section 32. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement as applied to any Party or to any
circumstance shall be adjudged by a court to be void or unenforceable, the same shall in no way
affect any other provision of this Agreement, the application of any such provision in any other
circumstances or the validity, or enforceability of the Agreement as a whole.

Section 33. Minor Changes. The Parties executing this Agreement are authorized to make non-
substantive corrections (as determined in the sole discretion of the Chair of the Authority) to
this Agreement and attached exhibits, if any, as the Parties mutually consider necessary.

Section 34. Days. If the day for any performance or event provided for herein is a Saturday, a
Sunday, a day on which national banks are not open for the regular transactions of business, or
a legal holiday pursuant to Section 24-11-101(1), C.R.S., such day shall be extended until the next
day on which such banks and state offices are open for the transaction of business.

Section 35. Good Faith of Parties. In the performance of this Agreement or in considering any
requested approval, acceptance, modification required in connection with financing the
Development Project, or extension of time, the Parties agree that each will act in good faith and
will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay
any approval, acceptance, or extension of time required or requested pursuant to this
Agreement.

Section 36. Parties not Partners. Notwithstanding any language in this Agreement or any other
agreement, representation, or warranty to the contrary, the Parties shall not be deemed to be
partners or joint venturers, and no Party shall be responsible for any debt or liability of any other
Party.

Section 37. Nonliability of Authority Officials and Employees. No board member, official,
employee, agent or consultant of the Authority or the City shall be personally liable to the

17

2978808.8



Developer in the event of a breach of this Agreement or any indenture for any amount that may
become due to the Developer under the terms of this Agreement or any indenture. No member,
manager, agent or employee of the Developer shall be personally liable in the event of a breach
of this Agreement.

Section 38. Right to Return. The Authority understands that the Developer retains the right to
return to the Authority with an application for tax increment financing or grants on additional
projects and parcels or expansion of the scope of the Development Project.

Section 39. Termination. Unless earlier terminated by mutual agreement of the Parties or as a
result of remedies properly exercised by a non-defaulting Party as set forth in Section 21 above,
except as otherwise provided, this Agreement shall automatically terminate on the earlier of: (a)
expiration of the Term; or (b) as of the date of the Authority’s final payment to the Developer of
the Maximum Reimbursement Obligation.

[Signatures on Following Pages]

18
2978808.8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto in their respective
,2021

names as of

Authority:

CRAIG URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY,
a body corporate and politic of the State of

Colorado

By:
Title:
ATTEST:

By:

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

22978808.8



Signature Page
Developer:

YAMPA VALLEY ADVENTURE
CENTER, a Colorado limited
liability company.

By:
Name:Frank Moe

Its:

950 Alta Vista Drive,
Craig, CO 81625

Address for Notices

Attn. [ ]
[ ]

[ ]

22978808.8



EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Golden Meadows, according to the recorded plat thereof in the
records of the Clerk and Recorder of Moffat County; except property described in Book 436 at
page 65 (Safeway) and Lot 2A of the Replat of Lot 2, (Village Inn); and

Lots 1 through 16, inclusive, Block 2, Golden Meadows, according to the recorded plat
thereof in the records of the Clerk and Recorder of Moffat County,

All in the County of Moffat, State of Colorado.

22978808.8



EXHIBIT B

DESCRIPTION/DEPICTION OF REDEVELOPMENT AND RENOVATION OF THE PROPERTY

Yampa Valley Adventure Center (YVAC) - The Yampa Valley Adventure Center (YVAC) is envisioned
as Northwest Colorado’s one-stop location for outdoor adventure and active lifestyles. The YVAC
will provide equipment and support for a variety of outdoor recreational activities along with
specialized retail offerings, unique eating experiences and services (such as outfitting and tours)
for outdoor adventures throughout the region.

YVAC will be a privately-owned, for-profit venture that generates revenues from leases to the
retail shops and restaurants in the renovated former Centennial Mall. The YVAC will also operate
several enterprises within the facility including an outfitter that will provide sales, service and
rentals of outdoor recreation equipment, ATVs, snowmobiles, hunting / fishing gear and tours.

Colorado Great Outdoors Experience / Museum & Hall of Fame (CGOE) — The Colorado Great
Outdoors Experience/Museum & Hall of Fame will create an immersive experience to introduce
visitors to the individuals, organizations, and companies who have been the pioneers of the
outdoor recreation industry — especially in Colorado. Interactive displays, rides, exhibits and
simulators will be integrated throughout the YVAC common areas.

The CGOE is a 501c3 non-profit that will provide 40+ outdoor experiential displays and exhibits
in the common areas of the YVAC. Visitors will be able to purchase RFID bracelets that give them
access to all of the exhibits - providing experiential learning about conservation, climate,
recreation, nature, history, and health and fitness. These interactive activities, exhibits, and
simulators will allow visitors to walk behind and touch a waterfall, step into a fishing boat and
reel in a big fish, hit the trail on a mountain bike or snowmobile, and much more. Exhibits will
also recognize and show appreciation to those individuals, organizations, and companies who
have advanced the recreational enjoyment and preservation of our great outdoors through
outdoor enjoyment and participation, dedication, competition, innovation, product
development, policy and preservation.

22978808.8



EXHIBIT C

ELIGIBLE COSTS

1. Roof $400,000
2. Exterior facade, lighting, & 900,000
signage

3. Common area design, 203,250
amenities, architect &

engineering

4. Code requirements (HVAC, 600,000

electrical, plumbing, drywall

5. Public parking — asphalt 287,000
repair
6. Landscaping 125,000
7. Exhibits, displays, CGOE 5,158,985
stabilization

TOTAL $7,674,235

Cost savings in any line item can be used to pay shortfalls in any other line item, but the total
Reimbursement Obligation cannot exceed the total Maximum Reimbursement Obligation.

22978808.8



EXHIBIT D

PROJECT TIMELINE

1. Effective date of Agreement 10/13/2021
2. Select architect; update 11/01/2021
budgets and timelines

3. Apply for loans, grants, project 12/01/2021
financing, bonding

4. Complete project financing; 5/01/2022
purchase Property

5. Approval of Construction 7/01/2023
Documents; start construction

6. Completion of Construction 7/01/2024
7. Design & installation of 11/01/2025

Dimensional Innovations exhibits







	10.13.21 CURA Agenda.pdf
	Where: Craig City Hall – Council Chambers
	VI. Adjournment

	CURA Agenda + Packet.pdf
	06.09.21 CURA Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	YVAC _CGOE Staff Memo.pdf
	Memo
	__________________________________________________________________


	YVAC URA Board Summary V8a.pdf
	Yampa Valley Adventure Center
	Craig Urban Renewal Authority Board
	Project Summary
	General Project Overview
	Market Case / Project Viability
	Community Impact
	Tax Increment Financing Request
	Property Tax TIF
	Sales Tax TIF

	Renewable Energy
	Financial Summary


	YVAC Feasibility Study 2.pdf
	CURA_YVAC Redevelopment & Reimbursement Draft Agreement.pdf
	REDEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	EXHIBIT B
	EXHIBIT D




